
 

 
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 

 
 

 
 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

 

 

 CITY COUNCIL 
AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

MONDAY, JUNE 6, 2022 - 6:00 PM 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS  
 

WATCH THE MEETING:   
 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 
 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 
 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON: 
 
Members of the public may provide comments in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL: 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting.  

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 
 
NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE: Pursuant to Adopted Resolution No. 8098 by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
effective January 12, 2022, the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies may participate via teleconference and/or video 
in Accordance with Government Code Section 54953 as permitted under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 

 
 

 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 1 of 290

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – June 6, 2022 
Page 2 of 6
 

 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING: 
 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 
 

 Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 
 Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 
 Passcode:  924965 
 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS  

 
A. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO MISSION CITY BASEBALL LEAGUE’S 

VOLUNTEERS 
 

B. PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE MONTH OF JUNE AS 
PRIDE MONTH 

 
 
DECORUM AND ORDER 
 

The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment. Public members attending City Council meetings shall observe the same rules 
of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person making 
impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the 
City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the room if the 
Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from further 
audience before the City Council. 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 2 of 290



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – June 6, 2022 
Page 3 of 6
 

 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
Members of the public may provide comments in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda. Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council and read into 
the record.  
 
Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 

 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-061 approving the Warrant 
Register. 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER FOR THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Recommend that the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency adopt 
Resolution No. 170 approving the Warrant Register. 
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
MEETINGS FOR THE PERIOD OF JUNE 14, 2022 TO JULY 13, 2022, OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO’S LEGISLATIVE BODIES IN COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 
54953(E) AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8155 re-authorizing remote 
teleconference meetings for the period of June 14, 2022 to July 13, 2022, of the City of San 
Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) and 
other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361. 
 

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 3 of 290

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – June 6, 2022 
Page 4 of 6
 

 

4) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION DECLARING JUNE 19TH AS “JUNETEENTH 
NATIONAL INDEPENDENCE DAY” AND OBSERVED AS AN OFFICIAL PAID HOLIDAY FOR CITY 
EMPLOYEES 

 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8154 declaring June 19th as “Juneteenth National Independence 

Day” and observed as an official paid holiday for City employees; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to close City facilities on Monday, June 20, 2022, in 
observance of Juneteenth National Independence Day. 

 
5) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING DATE TO 

CONSIDER THE PLACEMENT OF LIENS ON REAL PROPERTY FOR NON-PAYMENT OF 
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES BILLINGS 
 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8152 declaring the City Council’s 
intention to place liens on real property for non-payment of residential and commercial solid 
waste collection services billings and setting the date for the Public Hearing on July 18, 2022. 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION SUSPENDING SECTION 54-5 (CAMPING) AND 
SECTION 54-4 (FIRE) OF THE SAN FERNANDO MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE FAMILY HIKING 
AND WILDLIFE ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP PROGRAM OVERNIGHT CAMPING 
WORKSHOP   

 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8150 temporarily suspending Section 54-5 (Camping) and Section 

54-4 (Fire) of the City of San Fernando Municipal Code for one night only on Saturday,  
July 16, 2022, for the Family Hiking and Wildlife Environmental Stewardship Program 
overnight camping workshop to be held at Rudy Ortega Sr. Park, and;  

 
b. Provide staff direction, as appropriate. 
 

7) CONSIDERATION TO AUTHORIZE RELEASE OF A NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR THE DESIGN OF 
THE LAS PALMAS PARK REVITALIZATION PROJECT 

 
Recommend that the City Council authorize staff to release a Notice Inviting Bids soliciting 
professional services from qualified and experienced firms to develop a set of biddable plans, 
specifications and a project cost estimate for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project. 

 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 4 of 290



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – June 6, 2022 
Page 5 of 6
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
8) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 6TH CYCLE  

2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT, SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE, AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 

a. Conduct a Public Hearing;  
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8153 approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing Element, Safety 
Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration; and  
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to make iterative changes to the 2021-2029 Housing Element 
in response to comments from the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development to support state certification of the 2021-2029 Housing Element. 

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
9) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE ADOPTION OF MANDATORY 

WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8151 requiring the adoption of mandatory water conservation 

measures in the City of San Fernando; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to implement education and enforcement programs to 
support mandatory water conservation efforts to reduce water usage by 20 percent from 
2020 water usage levels.  

 
10) FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET STUDY SESSION NO. 3 
 

Recommend that the City Council review and discuss the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Proposed 
Budget. 
 

11) SECOND READING FOR ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 1710 ADDING CHAPTER 24 TO THE 
SAN FERNANDO MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROHIBIT SMOKING IN MULTI-UNIT HOUSING 

 
Recommend that the City Council conduct a second reading, in title only, of Ordinance  
No. 1710 titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, 
adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal Code to prohibit smoking in multi-unit 
housing.” 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 5 of 290



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – June 6, 2022 
Page 6 of 6
 

 

12) DISCUSSION REGARDING A CLEANUP AND IMPROVED LIGHT AND SAFETY MEASURES ON 
THE BIKE PATH 
 

This item was agendized by Councilmember Sylvia Ballin. 
 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted:  June 2, 2022 (5:00 p.m.)  

 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves  as concurrent Regular Meeting s of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 6 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 7 of 290



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 8 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 9 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 10 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

By: Sonia Gomez-Garcia, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  June 6, 2022    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-061 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 22-061 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 11 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-061 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND/ WARRANT REGISTER NO.  22-061 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the demands (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly audited, for 
completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as shown to 
designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2. That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to 
the City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of June 2022. 
 
  
                 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of        
      San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 12 of 290



RES. NO. 22-061 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 22-061 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of June, 2022.  

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 13 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 14 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 15 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 16 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 17 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 18 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 19 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 20 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 21 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 22 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 23 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 24 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 25 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 26 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 27 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 28 of 290



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 29 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 30 of 290



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 31 of 290



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECK

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 32 of 290



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-061

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 33 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061

SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 34 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 35 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 36 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 37 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 38 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-061SPECIAL CHECKS

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 39 of 290



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 40 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 41 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 42 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Chair Mary Mendoza and Board Members 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, Executive Director 
 By: Sonia Gomez-Garcia, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  June 6, 2022  
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register for the 

Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency adopt 
Resolution No. 170 (Attachment “A”) approving the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court issued an opinion in California  
Redevelopment Association v. Matosantos, upholding Assembly Bill x126 (legislation 
dissolving redevelopment agencies) and invalidating Assembly Bill x127 (legislation 
permitting redevelopment agencies to continue operation if they made certain payments to 
the State).  

 
2. On August 15, 2011, the City of San Fernando City Council adopted Resolution No. 7452 

electing for the City to serve as the Successor Agency for the City's Redevelopment Agency 
upon the Agency's dissolution.  

 
3. On February 1, 2012, as a result of the Supreme Court's decision, all redevelopment agencies 

in the State, including the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, were dissolved. In addition, 
successor agencies were designated as successor entities to the former redevelopment 
agencies.  

 
4. On February 6, 2012, the City Council, acting as the governing body of the Successor Agency 

to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, adopted Resolution No. 1 establishing rules and 
regulations for the operations of the Successor Agency as a new legal entity separate from 
the City, pursuant to Part 1.85 of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code.  

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 43 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register for the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency 
Page 2 of 2   
 
 
5. As the Successor Agency, the City is responsible for making payments to holders of 

enforceable obligation per the approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) for 
current period. 
 

6. The current period is ROPS 21-22B, which covers payments for enforceable obligations from 
January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2022. All payments included on the attached warrant 
register are being made in accordance with the approved ROPS 21-22B. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 170 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 44 of 290



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 170 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE SAN FERNANDO 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT 
DEMANDS PRESENTED ON DEMAND/ WARRANT REGISTER NO. 170 

 
 

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the demands (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly audited, for 
completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as shown to 
designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2. That the Secretary shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to 
the City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of June 2022. 
 
 
                 

Mary Mendoza, Chair of the Successor 
Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment 
Agency 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, Secretary 
 

ATTACHMENT “A” 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 45 of 290



RES. NO. 170 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, Secretary of the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 170 which was 
regularly introduced and adopted by the Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment 
Agency, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 6th day of June 2022, by the following vote: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ____ day of June, 2022.  

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, Secretary 
 

 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 46 of 290



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 170 June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 47 of 290



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 48 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 49 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 50 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
Date:  June 6, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference 

Meetings for the Period of June 14, 2022 to July 13, 2022, of the City of San 
Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance with Government Code Section 
54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8155 (Attachment “A”)  
re-authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the period of June 14, 2022 to July 13, 2022, 
of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with Government Code (GC) 
Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361. 

BACKGROUND:  
 
1. On October 4, 2021, the City Council was presented with an agenda report regarding 

adopting a resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings of the City of San 
Fernando’s Legislative Bodies under the provisions of Assembly Bill (AB) 361 (Attachment 
“B”), which was signed into law on September 17, 2021.  The City Council did not adopt the 
resolution, thereby reverting all legislative body meetings to comply with all Ralph M. Brown 
Act (Brown Act) requirements for public meetings.  

 
2. On January 12, 2022, due to the surge of the Omicron variant of the COVID-19 virus, the City 

Council adopted Resolution No. 8089 to authorize remote teleconference meetings of the 
City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 
days, effective January 12, 2022 through February 11, 2022. 

 
3. On February 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8119 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective February 12, 2022 through  
March 13, 2022. 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 51 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
June 14, 2022 to July 13, 2022, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance with 
Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On March 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8124 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective March 14, 2022 through April 13, 2022. 

 
5. On April 4, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8134 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective April 14, 2022 through May 13, 2022. 

 
6. On May 2, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8144 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective May 14, 2022 through June 13, 2022. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that 
waived certain teleconferencing requirements under the Brown Act, allowing public agencies to 
conduct public meetings via teleconference, while still complying with open meeting 
requirements and abiding by public health orders.  The Executive Order N-29-20 expired on 
September 30, 2021.  

AB 361 amends the Brown Act’s Government Code Section 54953 to allow a local agency the 
option to hold teleconference meetings without complying with teleconferencing requirements 
of the Brown Act, if certain circumstances and findings are met.  The special circumstances are 
found particularly in subsection (e) of Section 54953, and require that the legislative body holds 
a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and: 

1. That state and local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing; or 

2. The legislative body holds a meeting for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, 
whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks 
to the health or safety of attendees; or 

3. The legislative body holds a meeting and determines by majority vote, that as a result of 
the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of the attendees. 

On May 2, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8144 making a determination approving 
findings in accordance with AB 361, to allow the City to continue the option to hold 
teleconference meetings without complying with certain teleconferencing requirements of the 
Brown Act.  The resolution is only effective for 30 days and expires on June 13, 2022.  The City 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 52 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
June 14, 2022 to July 13, 2022, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance with 
Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Council may renew the resolution, every 30 days, at which time a subsequent resolution 
(Attachment “A”) will need to be adopted.  If the resolution lapses, the City’s Legislative Bodies 
will be required to comply with the Brown Act (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic) until a new resolution 
is adopted to make the initial determinations and findings again. 

 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact associated with consideration of the proposed resolution.  The cost of 
the Zoom virtual meeting platform is included in the FY 2021-2022 Adopted Budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8155 (Attachment “A”)  
re-authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the period of June 14, 2022 to July 13, 2022, 
of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with Government Code (GC) 
Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill (AB) 361.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8155 
B. Assembly Bill (AB) 361 

 
 
 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 53 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8155 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF 
EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND 
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS FOR ALL 
LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, FROM  
JUNE 14, 2022 THROUGH JULY 13, 2022, PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTON 54953(E) IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 (also known as the “Coronavirus Disease”) is a respiratory disease 
that was first reported in China in December 2019, it has now spread throughout the world, 
including the State of California and the City of San Fernando (“City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State of Emergency in 
response to the rising cases of COVID-19 throughout the state of California; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Health (“LACDPH”) declared a local emergency and local 
public health emergency in response to the spread of COVID-19 throughout the County; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2020, in response to the conditions of extreme peril to the safety 
of persons within the City, the San Fernando City Council (“City Council”) declared a local 
emergency consistent with the declaration of local emergency by the LACPH; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill  
No. 361 (“AB 361”), which, until January 1, 2024, authorizes a local agency to use 
teleconferencing without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”) when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting 
during a declared state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials 
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing or when the legislative 
body has determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of attendees; and  

 
WHEREAS, since the declaration of emergency by LACDPH, LACDPH have issued a series 

of Health Officer Orders containing mandates and recommendations for keeping individuals safe 
and preventing the spread of COVID-19; and  

 
WHEREAS, the LACDPH Health Officer Order issued March 23, 2022, and effective  

April 1, 2022, continues to advise that all individuals and businesses are strongly urged to follow 
the LACDPH Best Practices Guidance, containing health and safety recommendations for  
COVID-19;  

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 54 of 290



  RES. NO. 8155 

2 

WHEREAS, the LACDPH Best Practices Guidance provides, among other things: 
 
1. Masks are strongly recommended in most indoor public settings to prevent 

transmission of the virus particularly to persons with prolonged, cumulative 
exposures (e.g., workers and to those with higher risk of illness (e.g., unvaccinated, 
older persons, or those with underlying medical conditions such as 
immunocompromised persons); and  
 

2. Per state and federal law, visitors and workers must continue to wear masks in 
specified high-risk settings to continue protecting vulnerable populations and the 
workforce that delivers critical services in these settings; and  

 
3. Identify and regularly clean frequently touched surfaces and objects such as 

doorknobs, elevator buttons, tools, handrails, phones, headsets, bathroom surfaces 
and steering wheels;  

 
4. Whenever possible, take steps to reduce crowding indoors and encourage physical 

distancing including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Limiting indoor occupancy to increase the physical space between employees at 
the worksite, between employees and customers, and between customers;  
 

b. Using tape, signs, or other visual cues such as decals or colored tape on the floor, 
placed six feet apart, to guide customers about where to stand to avoid crowding 
and to encourage distancing where lines may form; and 

 
c. Continuing, where feasible, to offer telework options and continue those 

teleworking arrangements that do not interfere with business operations as 
telework significantly reduces the risk of exposure for employees, their 
households, and communities. 

 
 WHEREAS, the surges in COVID-19 variants overseas have the potential to quickly spread 
in the United States warranting continued vigilance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, AB 361 requires legislative bodies that conduct teleconferenced meetings 
under its the relaxed and abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting 
and post agendas, as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and 
address the legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may 
access the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing 
before the legislative body; and 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 55 of 290



  RES. NO. 8155 

3 

WHEREAS, AB 361 requires the legislative body take no further action on agenda items 
when there is a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the meeting, or 
in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members of the 
public from offering public comments, until public access is restored; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 

submitted in advance of the meeting and specifies that the legislative body must provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in real time; and 
 

WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from closing the public comment period 
and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment period has 
elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council meetings and meetings of certain other subordinate bodies 
of the City (e.g, the Planning and Preservation Commission) are open and public, as required by 
the Brown Act, so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the City 
Council or City Commission conduct their business; and 

 
WHEREAS, in light of the continuing State declaration of emergency resulting from the 

COVID-19 pandemic, the continuing recommendation by Los Angeles County Public Health 
officials to maintain various infection control and containment measures referenced above , the 
City Council desires to make the findings required by AB 361 to allow the City Council and all City 
Boards and Commissions to continue to meet under AB 361’s abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:  

 
SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 

this Resolution by reference; and 
 
SECTION 2. The City Council finds that the State and County declarations of emergency 

in response to the COVID-19 pandemic remain in place; and 
 
SECTION 3. The City Council finds that local officials, specifically, the Los Angeles 

County Department of Public Health, has continued to recommend social distancing measures.  
 

SECTION 4. The City of San Fernando staff along with the City Council are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 
Resolution including, taking measures to ensure that meetings of the City Council, the Planning 
and Preservation Commission and all meetings of other commissions subject to the Brown Act 
are conducted in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54953(e) to the 
extent such bodies continue to avail themselves of the relaxed and teleconferencing procedures 
permitted under AB 361.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 56 of 290



  RES. NO. 8155 

4 

SECTION 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without 
regard to whether any portion of this Resolution would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 6. The operational provisions of this Resolution shall take effect  
June 14, 2022 and expire upon the earlier of the following (i) 12:00 am on July 13, 2022; or (ii) 
such time the City Council adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 
section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of the City of San 
Fernando may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953. 
 

SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS  6th day of June, 2022. 

  
       
           

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California  

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 57 of 290



  RES. NO. 8155 

5 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8155 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 58 of 290



Assembly Bill No. 361 

CHAPTER 165 

An act to add and repeal Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, and to amend, repeal, 
and add Section 54953 of, and to add and repeal Section 11133 of, the Government 
Code, relating to open meetings, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect 
immediately. 

[ Approved by Governor  September 16, 2021. 

 Filed with Secretary of State  September 16, 2021. ] 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

AB 361, Robert Rivas. Open meetings: state and local agencies: teleconferences. 

(1) Existing law, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires, with specified exceptions, that all
meetings of a legislative body of a local agency, as those terms are defined, be open and
public and that all persons be permitted to attend and participate. The act contains
specified provisions regarding the timelines for posting an agenda and providing for the
ability of the public to directly address the legislative body on any item of interest to the
public. The act generally requires all regular and special meetings of the legislative body
be held within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises
jurisdiction, subject to certain exceptions. The act allows for meetings to occur via
teleconferencing subject to certain requirements, particularly that the legislative body
notice each teleconference location of each member that will be participating in the public
meeting, that each teleconference location be accessible to the public, that members of
the public be allowed to address the legislative body at each teleconference location, that
the legislative body post an agenda at each teleconference location, and that at least a
quorum of the legislative body participate from locations within the boundaries of the local
agency’s jurisdiction. The act provides an exemption to the jurisdictional requirement for
health authorities, as defined. The act authorizes the district attorney or any interested
person, subject to certain provisions, to commence an action by mandamus or injunction
for the purpose of obtaining a judicial determination that specified actions taken by a
legislative body are null and void.

Existing law, the California Emergency Services Act, authorizes the Governor, or the 
Director of Emergency Services when the governor is inaccessible, to proclaim a state of 
emergency under specified circumstances. 

Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for 
teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic provided that notice and accessibility 
requirements are met, the public members are allowed to observe and address the 
legislative body at the meeting, and that a legislative body of a local agency has a 
procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for 
individuals with disabilities, as specified. 

ATTACHMENT "B"
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 59 of 290



This bill, until January 1, 2024, would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 
without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. 
Brown Act when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a declared 
state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, during a proclaimed 
state of emergency held for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and during a 
proclaimed state of emergency when the legislative body has determined that meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, as provided. 

This bill would require legislative bodies that hold teleconferenced meetings under these 
abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting and post agendas, 
as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and address the 
legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may access 
the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a 
manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public 
appearing before the legislative body. The bill would require the legislative body to take 
no further action on agenda items when there is a disruption which prevents the public 
agency from broadcasting the meeting, or in the event of a disruption within the local 
agency’s control which prevents members of the public from offering public comments, 
until public access is restored. The bill would specify that actions taken during the 
disruption are subject to challenge proceedings, as specified. 

This bill would prohibit the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 
submitted in advance of the meeting and would specify that the legislative body must 
provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in 
real time. The bill would prohibit the legislative body from closing the public comment 
period and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment 
period has elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified. When 
there is a continuing state of emergency, or when state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, the bill would require a legislative 
body to make specified findings not later than 30 days after the first teleconferenced 
meeting pursuant to these provisions, and to make those findings every 30 days 
thereafter, in order to continue to meet under these abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures. 

Existing law prohibits a legislative body from requiring, as a condition to attend a meeting, 
a person to register the person’s name, or to provide other information, or to fulfill any 
condition precedent to the person’s attendance. 

This bill would exclude from that prohibition, a registration requirement imposed by a third-
party internet website or other online platform not under the control of the legislative body. 

(2) Existing law, the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, requires, with specified exceptions, 
that all meetings of a state body be open and public and all persons be permitted to attend 
any meeting of a state body. The act requires at least one member of the state body to 
be physically present at the location specified in the notice of the meeting. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 60 of 290



The Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the requirements of the Bagley-
Keene Open Meeting Act for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided 
that notice and accessibility requirements are met, the public members are allowed to 
observe and address the state body at the meeting, and that a state body has a procedure 
for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals 
with disabilities, as specified. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 
accessibility requirements, a state body to hold public meetings through teleconferencing 
and to make public meetings accessible telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all 
members of the public seeking to observe and to address the state body. With respect to 
a state body holding a public meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend 
certain requirements of existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference 
location be accessible to the public and that members of the public be able to address 
the state body at each teleconference location. Under the bill, a state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and 
address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any 
requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and 
offer public comment. The bill would require that each state body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. 
The bill would urge state bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to existing law, as provided. 

(3) Existing law establishes the various campuses of the California State University under 
the administration of the Trustees of the California State University, and authorizes the 
establishment of student body organizations in connection with the operations of 
California State University campuses. 

The Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 generally requires a legislative body, as 
defined, of a student body organization to conduct its business in a meeting that is open 
and public. The act authorizes the legislative body to use teleconferencing, as defined, 
for the benefit of the public and the legislative body in connection with any meeting or 
proceeding authorized by law. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 
accessibility requirements, a legislative body, as defined for purposes of the act, to hold 
public meetings through teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 
telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe 
and to address the legislative body. With respect to a legislative body holding a public 
meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend certain requirements of 
existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference location be accessible 
to the public and that members of the public be able to address the legislative body at 
each teleconference location. Under the bill, a legislative body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and address the 
meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any requirement that the 
legislative body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and offer public 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 61 of 290



comment. The bill would require that each legislative body that holds a meeting through 
teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. The 
bill would urge legislative bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to existing law, as provided. 

(4) This bill would declare the Legislature’s intent, consistent with the Governor’s 
Executive Order No. N-29-20, to improve and enhance public access to state and local 
agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future emergencies by allowing 
broader access through teleconferencing options. 

(5) This bill would incorporate additional changes to Section 54953 of the Government 
Code proposed by AB 339 to be operative only if this bill and AB 339 are enacted and 
this bill is enacted last. 

(6) The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the purpose of ensuring public 
access to the meetings of public bodies and the writings of public officials and agencies, 
to comply with a statutory enactment that amends or enacts laws relating to public records 
or open meetings and contains findings demonstrating that the enactment furthers the 
constitutional requirements relating to this purpose. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(7) Existing constitutional provisions require that a statute that limits the right of access to 
the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies be adopted 
with findings demonstrating the interest protected by the limitation and the need for 
protecting that interest. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(8) This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute. 

DIGEST KEY 

Vote: 2/3   Appropriation: no   Fiscal Committee: yes   Local Program: no   

 
BILL TEXT 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. 

 Section 89305.6 is added to the Education Code, to read: 

89305.6. 

 (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 
accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a legislative body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 62 of 290



or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 
the legislative body. 

(b) (1) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant 
to this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the legislative body, or the public, as a condition of 
participation in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 
this section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 
proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the legislative body at each teleconference 
conference location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

(E) At least one member of the legislative body be physically present at the location 
specified in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A legislative body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members 
of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 
electronically, consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) 
and (e), shall have satisfied any requirement that the legislative body allow members of 
the public to attend the meeting and offer public comment. A legislative body need not 
make available any physical location from which members of the public may observe the 
meeting and offer public comment. 

(d) If a legislative body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section 
and allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the legislative body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 
modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 
of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each legislative body that holds 
a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 
according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 
otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 63 of 290



(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 
instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 
any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 
been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 
of the means of public observation and comment, a legislative body may satisfy this 
requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 
rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 
observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 
time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the legislative body’s 
internet website. 

(f) All legislative bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged 
to use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as 
reasonably possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to 
maximize transparency and provide the public access to legislative body meetings. 

(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 2. 

 Section 11133 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

11133. 

 (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 
accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a state body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 
or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 
the state body. 

(b) (1) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 
this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 
the clerk or other personnel of the state body, or the public, as a condition of participation 
in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this 
section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 
meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 
proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the state body at each teleconference conference 
location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 64 of 290



(E) At least one member of the state body be physically present at the location specified 
in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A state body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of 
the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, 
consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), shall 
have satisfied any requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend 
the meeting and offer public comment. A state body need not make available any physical 
location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 
comment. 

(d) If a state body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section and 
allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the state body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 
modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 
of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 
according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 
otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 
members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 
instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 
any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 
been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 
of the means of public observation and comment, a state body may satisfy this 
requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 
rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 
observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 
time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the state body’s 
internet website. 

(f) All state bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged to 
use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 
possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to maximize 
transparency and provide the public access to state body meetings. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 65 of 290



(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 3. 

 Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 
specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 
teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 66 of 290



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 
of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 
following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 
required by this chapter. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 67 of 290



(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 
agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 
the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 
include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 
service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 
the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 
legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 
service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 
agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 
option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 
public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 
54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 
the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 
legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 
through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 
the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 
required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 
participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 
item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 
public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 
per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 
including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 
otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 
correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 68 of 290



opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 
following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 
proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 
(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 3.1. 

 Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency in person, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 
conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 
rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 
specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 69 of 290



(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 
teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 70 of 290



(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 
advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 
of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 
of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 
purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 
determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 
emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 
following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 
required by this chapter. 

(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 
agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 
the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 
include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 
service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 
the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 
legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 
meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 
of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 
service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 
agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 
option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 71 of 290



public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 
54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 
the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 
legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 
comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 
through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 
the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 
required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 
participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 
item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 
public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 
per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 
including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 
otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 
correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 
opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 
comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 
subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 
following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 
safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 
distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 
proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 
(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 72 of 290



(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 
repealed. 

SEC. 4. 

 Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

 (a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 
agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 
and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 
proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 73 of 290



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice
and agenda of the meeting.

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section.

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the
advisory committee has 12 or more members.

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024.

SEC. 4.1. 

 Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and
all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local
agency, in person except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall
conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil
rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other
nondiscrimination obligations.

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency
may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local
agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The
teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter
and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or
proceeding.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 74 of 290



(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 
connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 
All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 
agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 
before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 
identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 
the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 
subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 
body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 
through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 
vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 
in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 
Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 
paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 
(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 
records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 
the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 
when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 
that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 
the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 
number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 
participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 
and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 
members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 
authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 
authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 75 of 290



(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant
to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the
Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1
(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting
pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2
(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the
advisory committee has 12 or more members.

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024.

SEC. 5. 

 Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill incorporate amendments to Section 54953 of the 
Government Code proposed by both this bill and Assembly Bill 339. Those sections of 
this bill shall only become operative if (1) both bills are enacted and become effective on 
or before January 1, 2022, but this bill becomes operative first, (2) each bill amends 
Section 54953 of the Government Code, and (3) this bill is enacted after Assembly Bill 
339, in which case Section 54953 of the Government Code, as amended by Sections 3 
and 4 of this bill, shall remain operative only until the operative date of Assembly Bill 339, 
at which time Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill shall become operative. 

SEC. 6. 

 It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this act to improve and enhance public access 
to state and local agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future applicable 
emergencies, by allowing broader access through teleconferencing options consistent 
with the Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, permitting 
expanded use of teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SEC. 7. 

 The Legislature finds and declares that Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, repeal, 
and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, further, within the meaning of paragraph 
(7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the purposes
of that constitutional section as it relates to the right of public access to the meetings of
local public bodies or the writings of local public officials and local agencies. Pursuant to
paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the
Legislature makes the following findings:

This act is necessary to ensure minimum standards for public participation and notice 
requirements allowing for greater public participation in teleconference meetings during 
applicable emergencies. 

SEC. 8. 

(a) The Legislature finds and declares that during the COVID-19 public health
emergency, certain requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9
(commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the
Government Code) were suspended by Executive Order N-29-20. Audio and video

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 76 of 290



teleconference were widely used to conduct public meetings in lieu of physical location 
meetings, and public meetings conducted by teleconference during the COVID-19 public 
health emergency have been productive, have increased public participation by all 
members of the public regardless of their location in the state and ability to travel to 
physical meeting locations, have protected the health and safety of civil servants and the 
public, and have reduced travel costs incurred by members of state bodies and reduced 
work hours spent traveling to and from meetings. 

(b) The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, which adds and repeals
Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, Section 2 of this act, which adds and repeals
Section 11133 of the Government Code, and Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend,
repeal, and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, all increase and potentially limit
the public’s right of access to the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public
officials and agencies within the meaning of Section 3 of Article I of the California
Constitution. Pursuant to that constitutional provision, the Legislature makes the following
findings to demonstrate the interest protected by this limitation and the need for protecting
that interest:

(1) By removing the requirement that public meetings be conducted at a primary physical
location with a quorum of members present, this act protects the health and safety of civil
servants and the public and does not preference the experience of members of the public
who might be able to attend a meeting in a physical location over members of the public
who cannot travel or attend that meeting in a physical location.

(2) By removing the requirement for agendas to be placed at the location of each public
official participating in a public meeting remotely, including from the member’s private
home or hotel room, this act protects the personal, private information of public officials
and their families while preserving the public’s right to access information concerning the
conduct of the people’s business.

SEC. 9. 

 This act is an urgency statute necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, health, or safety within the meaning of Article IV of the California Constitution and 
shall go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are: 

In order to ensure that state and local agencies can continue holding public meetings 
while providing essential services like water, power, and fire protection to their 
constituents during public health, wildfire, or other states of emergencies, it is necessary 
that this act take effect immediately. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 77 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 78 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 79 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 80 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
   
Date:  June 6, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Declaring June 19th as “Juneteenth National 

Independence Day” and Observed as an Official Paid Holiday for City Employees 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8154 (Attachment “A”) declaring June 19th as “Juneteenth National 

Independence Day” and observed as an official paid holiday for City employees; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to close City facilities on Monday, June 20, 2022, in observance 
of Juneteenth National Independence Day. 

 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. June 19, 1865, is considered the date when the last slaves in America were freed when 
General Gordon Granger rode into Galveston, Texas, and issued General Order No. 3, almost 
two and one-half years after President Lincoln issued the Emancipation Proclamation. 
 

2. On June 18, 2021, the United States Congress approved a bipartisan bill to approve June 19 
as “Juneteenth National Independence Day”, to be observed as a legal public holiday, and the 
bill was signed into law by President Biden on June 17, 2021. 
 

3. On November 15, 2021, City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 
the San Fernando Police Civilian Association (SFPCA), which included Juneteenth as the 13th 
City paid federal holiday. 

 
4. On March 7, 2022, City Council approved a MOU with the San Fernando Management Group 

(SFMG), which included Juneteenth as the 13th paid federal holiday. 
 
 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 81 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Declaring June 19th as “Juneteenth National Independence Day” 
and Observed as an Official Paid Holiday for City Employees  
Page 2 of 2 

ANALYSIS: 

President Abraham Lincoln issued the Emancipation Proclamation on January 1, 1863, and 
declared that all persons held as slaves" within the rebellious states "are, and henceforward shall 
be free," paving the way for the passing of the thirteenth amendment which formally abolished 
slavery in the United States of America.  June 19, 1865, is considered the date when the last 
slaves in America were freed when General Gordon Granger rode into Galveston, Texas, and 
issued General Order No. 3, almost two and one-half years after President Lincoln issued the 
Emancipation Proclamation. 

June 19, which became known as “Juneteenth,” symbolizes freedom, celebrates the abolishment 
of slavery, reminds all Americans of the significant contributions of African Americans to our 
society, and is a time for reflection and rejoicing, assessment, self-improvement, and planning 
for the future.  Juneteenth, also known as "Juneteenth National Independence Day," 
"Emancipation Day," "Emancipation Celebration," and "Freedom Day," is the oldest known 
celebration commemorating the ending of slavery in the United States.   

By declaring Juneteenth as the twelfth federal legal holiday, the United States Congress 
encouraged all United States’ citizens to join together in celebration of freedom, family and 
community by embodying a spirit of peace, respect, and brotherly love, and to honor and salute 
our City’s rich cultural legacy and diversity.   

Through the proposed resolution, the City of San Fernando is demonstrating leadership in 
celebrating, honoring, and recognizing Juneteenth by closing City facilities in observance of this 
federal holiday. 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

Adoption of the attached Resolution will result in an additional 8 hours of paid holiday time off 
for City employees.  Additional overtime may be incurred by employees responding to work on 
the observed holiday per the provisions of each bargaining unit MOU. 

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that City Council adopt the proposed Resolution declaring June 19th as 
“Juneteenth National Independence Day” and observed as an official paid holiday for City 
employees. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution No. 8154

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 82 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8154 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
DECLARING JUNE 19, AS “JUNETEENTH NATIONAL INDEPENDENCE DAY” 
AND OBSERVED AS AN OFFICIAL PAID HOLIDAY FOR CITY EMPLOYEES 

WHEREAS, Juneteenth, also known as "Juneteenth National Independence Day," 
"Emancipation Day," "Emancipation Celebration," and "Freedom Day," is the oldest known 
celebration commemorating the ending of slavery in the United States; and has been celebrated 
by the Black Community for over 150 years; and 

WHEREAS, President Abraham Lincoln issued the Emancipation Proclamation on 
January 1, 1863, and declared that all persons held as slaves" within the rebellious states "are, 
and henceforward shall be free," paving the way for the passing of the thirteenth amendment 
which formally abolished slavery in the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, June 19, 1865, is considered the date when the last slaves in America were 
freed when General Gordon Granger rode into Galveston, Texas, and issued General Order 
No. 3, almost two and one-half years after President Lincoln issued the Emancipation 
Proclamation; and  

WHEREAS, June 19, symbolizes freedom, celebrates the abolishment of slavery, reminds 
all Americans of the significant contributions of African Americans to our society, and is a time 
for reflection and rejoicing, assessment, self-improvement, and planning for the future; and 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2021, the United States Congress approved a bipartisan bill to 
approve June 19 as “Juneteenth National Independence Day”, to be observed as a legal public 
holiday, and the bill was signed into law by President Biden on June 17, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the residents of the City of San Fernando are encouraged to join together in 
celebration of freedom, family and community by embodying a spirit of peace, respect, and 
brotherly love, and to honor and salute our City’s rich cultural legacy and diversity. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1: The representations set forth in the Recitals above, are true and correct. 

SECTION 2:  That, by adoption of this Resolution, the City Council of the City of San 
Fernando recognizes June 19 as “Juneteenth National Independence Day” observed as an 
official paid holiday for all City of San Fernando employees.  When June 19 falls on a Saturday, 
the holiday shall be observed the preceding Friday and when June 19 falls on a Sunday, the 
holiday shall be observed on the following Monday; and 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 83 of 290



  RES. NO. 8154 
 

2 

SECTION 3:  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall 
cause a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of June, 2022. 

 
 
        

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 84 of 290



  RES. NO. 8154 
 

3 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8154 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June 2022.  

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 85 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 86 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 87 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 88 of 290



 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 (818) 898-1222 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Department      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Mathew Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 

Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 

Date: June 6, 2022 

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing Date to Consider the 
Placement of Liens on Real Property for Non-Payment of Residential and 
Commercial Solid Waste Collection Services Billings  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8152 (Attachment “A”) declaring 
the City Council’s intention to place liens on real property for non-payment of residential and 
commercial solid waste collection services billings and setting the date for the Public Hearing on 
July 18, 2022. 

BACKGROUND: 

1. On May 16, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1655 (Attachment “B”), authorizing
the placement of liens on real property for non-payment of residential solid waste collection
billings.  The City’s ability to place delinquent sums on the tax roll is conditioned upon the
local solid waste hauler having made multiple attempts to collect the invoice by sending
multiple notices to the customer and at least one notice to the owner of the property served
by the solid waste account (in those instances where the customer and the property owner
are different). After following the process prescribed by Government Code Sections 5473,
5473a and related statutes, the City Council, by resolution, may approve the placement of
certain delinquent sums on the tax roll by 2/3 vote.

2. With the COVID-19 pandemic causing an economic hardship on families and businesses, City
Council deferred the lien process in FY 2019-2020.

3. On August 16, 2021, City Council deferred the placement of liens on real property for non-
payment of solid waste collection services billings for a second year (FY 2020-2021) to
ameliorate economic hardships caused by the COVID-19 pandemic with the intention of
reinstating the lien process the end of Fiscal Year 2021-2022.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 89 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing Date to Consider the Placement of Liens 
on Real Property for Non-Payment of Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection Services 
Billings 
Page 2 of 4 

4. As of May 31, 2022, the total of all outstanding unpaid fees was $156,854.88.
• 71 commercial business - $97,658.44 in unpaid fees
• 156 residential properties - $59,196.44 in unpaid fees

ANALYSIS: 

Pursuant to Article 10 of the Franchise Agreement, the contractor is responsible for the billing 
and collection of payments for all solid waste collection services.  Rates are set according to the 
Maximum Service Rates established as part of the franchise agreement.  Article 10 specifies other 
billing terms, including partial month service, production of invoices, billing inserts, methods of 
payment and delinquent service accounts, among others. 

Article 10, Section 10.01.7 of the City’s franchise agreement includes provisions relative to 
delinquent service accounts.  In accordance with this section, the contractor may report 
delinquent accounts to the City on a monthly basis.  The City is not responsible for the collection 
of delinquent accounts or compensation of the contractor for lost revenue.  Additionally, the City 
does not realize direct revenue related to these unpaid accounts.  A franchise fee is provided by 
the contractor under the franchise agreement to fund the cost of administering the solid 
waste/recycling program and vehicle impacts to City streets, among others.   

Lien Process for Delinquent Accounts. 
After following the process prescribed by Government Code Sections 5473, 5473a and related 
statutes, the City Council, by resolution, may approve the placement of certain delinquent sums 
on the tax roll by 2/3 vote.  

The following are some of the more salient aspects of the annual tax roll collection process: 

• Annual Report:  Annually, the City must prepare and file a report with the City Clerk
describing each delinquent account and the real property parcel to which the account
corresponds so that the delinquent sums may be placed on the annual tax roll (Health &
Safety Code § 5473 and § 5473a).

• Publication:  The City Clerk must also cause notice of the time and place for a Public Hearing
wherein the report is to be considered and approved by the City Council before the
delinquent accounts identified in the report and the sums owed may be placed on the tax
roll.  The Public Hearing notice must be published at least fourteen days prior to the date of
the hearing and once a week for two consecutive weeks, with at least five days between
publication dates.  The notice must be published in a newspaper of general circulation (§
5473.1).

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 90 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing Date to Consider the Placement of Liens 
on Real Property for Non-Payment of Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection Services 
Billings 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
• Mail Notice:   The City will also be required to undertake mailed notice of the hearing to each 

real property parcel tied to a delinquent service account (§ 5473.1). 
 
Pursuant to City Council direction, both customer and property owner have been notified of their 
account delinquency.  Additionally, property owners will be given one last opportunity to pay the 
delinquent sums prior to the placement on the tax roll.  During the Public Hearing, the City 
Council will be able to make modifications to the report in so far as delinquencies are cured either 
in full or partially or in so far as a customer or property owner is able to prove to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the City Council that the account was never delinquent or that there is some other 
error in the report for which correction is justified.  
 
The following timeline is proposed for placing delinquent sums on the property tax roll: 
 
• June 6, 2022 

o Establish Final Payment Due Date of July 17, 2022 
o Set Public Hearing Date for July 18, 2022  
 

• June 13, 2022 
o Mail Notice to Account Holders/Property Owners (Paid/Coordinated by Solid Waste 

Hauler) (Attachment “C”) 
 

• June 23 and 30, 2022 
o Publication of Public Hearing (Paid by Solid Waste Hauler) 

 
• July 11, 2022 

o Annual Report/Listing of Delinquent Accounts Provided to City 
 

• July 18, 2022 
o Public Hearing (Account Holders/Property Owners will have until Sunday, August 7, 2022 

to bring account current); payments can be made online 
 

• August 10, 2022 
o Updated Delinquent Account List Forwarded to LA County for Inclusion on Tax Roll 

 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The City will incur administrative costs associated with the preparation of the annual report, 
complying with noticing requirements and payment of sums to the County of Los Angeles for 
their role in collecting delinquent sums on the tax roll. To offset these costs, the City’s Ordinance 
authorizes a five percent (5%) administration fee to recover such costs which will be deducted 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 91 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing Date to Consider the Placement of Liens 
on Real Property for Non-Payment of Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection Services 
Billings 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
from sums actually collected on the tax roll before sums owed to the solid waste hauler are 
remitted to the hauler by the City.  
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 8152 setting a Public Hearing 
date of July 18, 2022, to consider the placement of liens on real property for non-payment of 
solid waste collection services billings.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8152 
B. Ordinance No. 1655 
C. Draft Tax Lien Letter 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 92 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 8152 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO 
CONSIDER THE PLACEMENT OF LIENS ON REAL PROPERTY FOR 
NON-PAYMENT OF RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL SOLID 
WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES BILLINGS AND SETTING A DATE, 
TIME AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

WHEREAS, on the 16th day of May, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1655 
declaring that periodically the City shall, by resolution, order that liens be placed on real property 
for the collection of solid waste fees reported delinquent pursuant to delinquent solid waste 
account reports; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will provide notice more than fourteen (14) days prior to the public 

hearing to all property owners and account holders by United States mail, that on July 18, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m., a public hearing shall be held to hear the above mentioned report and any 
objections or protests thereto.  In addition, a list of delinquent service addresses and outstanding 
balances will be published in a newspaper of general circulation on two (2) dates prior to the 
public hearing, as required by California Health and Safety Code Section 5470-5474.10;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1: That the above recitals are all true and correct. 
 

SECTION 2: That it is the intention of the City Council, consistent with the public 
interest and convenience, to consider the placement of liens on real property for non-payment 
of residential and commercial solid waste collection services billings.  
 

SECTION 3: That account holders or property owners shall be allowed to resolve 
outstanding fees owed through July 17, 2022, to bring accounts current. 

 
SECTION 4: Public Notice is hereby given that July 18, 2022, at the hour of 6:00 p.m., 

in the Council Chambers of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 117 Macneil Street, San 
Fernando, California, being the regular meeting place of said City Council is the time and place 
fixed by this City Council for the hearing of protests, comments or objections in reference to the 
placement of liens on real property for non-payment of residential and commercial solid waste 
collection services billings.  Any interested person who wishes to object to the placement of liens 
may file a written protest with the City Clerk prior to the conclusion of the public hearing, or, 
having previously filed a protest, may file a written withdrawal of that protest.  A written protest 
shall state all grounds of objection, and a protest by a property owner shall contain a description 
sufficient to identify the property owned by the property owner.  At the hearing, all interested 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 93 of 290



RES. NO. 8152 

2 

persons shall be afforded the opportunity to hear and be heard, and the City Council shall 
consider all oral statements and all written protests made or filed by any interested person. 

SECTION 5: The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish a copy of this 
Resolution in The San Fernando Valley Sun newspaper, a newspaper of general circulation in said 
City; said publication shall be published once a week for two consecutive weeks, with at least five 
days between publication dates before the date of said Public Hearing. 

SECTION 6: The City is hereby authorized and directed to mail written notice to 
affected property owners by United States mail, with postage properly affixed, informing them 
that at the meeting of July 18, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the City Council of 
the City of San Fernando, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, a public hearing shall be 
held to hear the above mentioned report and any objections or protests thereto.  Said notice 
shall be mailed more than fourteen (14) days prior to the hearing. 

SECTION 7: Inquiries relating to the procedures, protest procedure, documentation, 
and/or information of a procedural or technical nature, please contact the Department of Public 
Works, (818) 898-1222 or email: publicworks@sfcity.org. 

SECTION 8: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Council and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution and enter 
it into the book of original Resolutions. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2022. 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of 
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 

Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 94 of 290

mailto:publicworks@sfcity.org


RES. NO. 8152 

3 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8152 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 95 of 290



ATTACHMENT "B"
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 96 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 97 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 98 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 99 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 100 of 290



ATTACHMENT “C” 

[DATE] 

[NAME] 
[ADDRESS] 
[ADDRESS] 

Re: Address:   , SAN FERNANDO  
Account No.:  
Parcel #: «PARCEL»     Amount Due: $  «Total__Tax_lien_letter» 

Dear Property Owner(s): 

Pursuant to Chapter 70 (Sections 5473 & 5473A) of the San Fernando Municipal Code, the City shall place a lien for unpaid refuse 
collection charges on real property if the owner(s) of the property served does not make a payment directly to Consolidated Disposal 
Service, LLC.  Consolidated’s records indicate that the owner(s) of the property referenced above is delinquent in the payment for rubbish 
charges for the period of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2022. 

To avoid having a lien placed against your property for rubbish charges and collection costs, you must make payment directly to the City’s 
Contractor (Consolidated) by July 17, 2022.  When making payment please mark “LIEN” on your payment envelope, as well as, your 
check/money order to help identify and record the payment.  The contractor’s address is as follows: 

CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL SERVICE, LLC. 
12949 TELEGRAPH ROAD 

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA  90610 
Phone:  (562) 347-4016      FAX:  (562) 347-4092 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that if you wish to protest the charges, you may attend a Public Hearing to be held at City of San Fernando City 
Hall, City Council Chambers, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, on July 18, 2022 at 6:00 pm.  All interested persons may attend and be 
heard at that time. 

Sincerely, 

Nick Kimball 
City Manager 

……………………………………………………………………………........................................ 
PLEASE TEAR ALONG DOTTED LINE ABOVE AND MAIL THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE 

Subject Property/Service Address:  
Dollar Amount of Delinquent fees and Penalty: $  «Total__Tax_lien_letter» 
Name and Phone Number of Company:      Consolidated Disposal Service 
Providing Trash Collection Services:  (562) 347-4016
Account Number: 
Parcel Number: «PARCEL» 

    IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD OR DEBIT CARD, PLEASE FILL OUT BELOW. WE ALSO ACCEPT CHECKS BY PHONE 

 MASTERCARD  VISA  AMERICAN EXPRESS  ATM/DEBIT Security code on the back of Credit card_________ 
** WE WILL PROCESS YOUR PAYMENT OVER THE PHONE AT NO CHARGE  BY CALLING 562 347 4016** 
CARDHOLDER NAME: 

CARDHOLDER ADDRESS:     ZIP: 

CARD NUMBER:        EXPIRES: 

SIGNATURE 

AMOUNT PAID:     $ 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 101 of 290



CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL SERVICE 
__12949 TELEGRAPH ROAD, SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670 - TELEPHONE (800) 298-4898 FAX (562) 347-4092__ 

 
 
June 13, 2022 
 
«O_NAME» 
«O_ADD» 
«O_CITY», «O_STATE», «O_ZIP»  
   

________________________________________________________________________ 
PROPERTY OWNER NOTICE 

 
Account #:  902 - «CUST»   
Service Address: «S_ADD», «S_CITY» 
Balance Due:             $ «TOTAL» 
Parcel:  «PARCEL» 
 
Dear Customer, 
 
The service address listed above has been identified as having an unpaid balance. This letter is a 
friendly reminder regarding the balance.  Please bring the account current to avoid further 
collection action or additional charges that may be assessed against your property.    
 
If your property is a rental, this letter may indicate that your tenant has a balance due for trash 
services.  You may want to ask the tenant to bring the trash account current. The property owner 
may be held responsible for any unpaid trash service. In addition, unpaid balances may be placed 
on the property tax lien for the service location. 
 
If you are a new property owner please fax or mail a copy of this letter including your escrow 
papers, grant deed and a phone number where you can be reached to (562) 347-4092 or 12949 
Telegraph Rd, Santa Fe Spring, CA 90670. 
 
If you have any questions regarding your account, please contact the Collection 
Department within the next Ten (10) days, by calling (562) 347-4016: or by mail to 12949 
Telegraph Rd, Santa Fe Spring, CA 90670 
 

"Se Habla Español". 
 
If you have already made arrangements for this balance to be paid, please disregard this notice. 
 
Thank you for your prompt attention. 
 
Respectfully, 
Collection Department 

 
For your convenience we now accept Visa, Master card, and checks over the phone. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 102 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 103 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 104 of 290



 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Juan Salas, Recreation and Community Services Supervisor 

Date: June 6, 2022 

Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Suspending Section 54-5 (Camping) and 
Section 54-4 (Fire) of the San Fernando Municipal Code for the Family Hiking and 
Wildlife Environmental Stewardship Program Overnight Camping Workshop   

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 8150 (Attachment “A”) temporarily suspending Section 54-5 (Camping)
and Section 54-4 (Fire) of the City of San Fernando Municipal Code for one night only on
Saturday, July 16, 2022, for the Family Hiking and Wildlife Environmental Stewardship
Program overnight camping workshop to be held at Rudy Ortega Sr. Park, and;

b. Provide staff direction, as appropriate.

BACKGROUND: 

1. On October 15, 2018, City Council authorized the submittal of a grant application to the
California Department of Parks and Recreation, Habitat Conservation Fund program to fund
the Family Hiking and Wildlife Environmental Stewardship Program (FHP).

2. On October 22, 2019, the City and the State entered into an agreement for the City to conduct
educational workshops and implement wildlife activities that expose residents to diverse
parks, wildlife areas, and ecosystems.

3. Recreation and Community Services (RCS) staff began to coordinate educational workshops,
hiking excursions, and overnight camping trips.  Nine (9) hiking outings and three (3)
overnight camping trips were to take place between 2019 through 2024.  However, the
COVID-19 pandemic suspended the FHP and all activities were temporarily canceled.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 105 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Suspending Section 54-5 (Camping) and Section 54-4 (Fire) of the 
San Fernando Municipal Code for the Family Hiking and Wildlife Environmental Stewardship Program 
Overnight Camping Workshop  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. In the latter part of 2021, the pandemic restrictions regarding in-person activities were 

lessened by the Los Angeles Department of Public Health (LADPH), allowing RCS staff to 
resume programming for the FHP. 

 
 

 ANALYSIS: 
 
Through the Habitat Conservation Fund, the California Department of Parks and Recreation 
allocates approximately $2 million each year to cities, counties, and districts.  This program 
intends to protect, restore, and enhance wildlife habitat and fisheries, which are vital to 
maintaining California’s quality of life.  The impact of the increase in the state’s human population 
results in an urgent need to fund projects that protect rapidly disappearing wildlife habitats that 
support California’s unique and varied wildlife resources.  Eligible projects include nature 
interpretation programs to bring urban residents into park and wildlife areas, protection of 
various plant and animal species, and acquisition and development of wildlife corridors and trails. 
  
The City applied for and received a Habitat Conservation Fund grant to implement the Family 
Hiking and Wildlife Environmental Stewardship Program (FHP).  The objective of FHP is to 
implement an education curriculum that educates and informs participants about the distinctions 
between state and national parks vs. a local urban park, the impact of humans on the ecosystems 
within each wildlife activity area, and how to support the protection, restoration, and 
enhancement of these areas as advocates and through career paths. 
 
Nine (9) hiking trips and three (3) overnight camping trips were scheduled for the 2019 – 2024 
funding cycle.  The trips staff had originally planned included visits to Coldwater Canyon Park, 
Joshua Tree National Park, Malibu Creek State Park, Malibu Lagoon State Beach, and Catalina 
Island Conservancy.  Each park visit also had a pre-park visit workshop scheduled to educate and 
provide participants with information on the wildlife area activity.  Unfortunately, the onset of 
the COVID-19 pandemic shut down all in-person programming and the FHP was paused.  
 
As COVID-19 restrictions were lifted, RCS resumed the FHP and staff hosted a hiking trip to 
Coldwater Canyon Park in November 2021 and another hiking activity at Malibu Creek in February 
2022.  RCS staff is currently planning an overnight camping trip to Joshua Tree National Park.  Part 
of this trip will involve an overnight camping workshop planned at Rudy Ortega Sr. Park on July 
9, 2022.  The workshop provides participants with the fundamentals of overnight camping, 
including, but not limited to, site selection and tent set up, proper food storage, starting a 
campfire, tools and clothes to have on hand, etc. 
 
The San Fernando Municipal Code, Chapter 54 (Parks and Recreation) Article 1 (General) Section 
54-5 (Camping) states “No person shall camp or lodge within a park or recreation center without 
authorization.  Such authorization can be obtained by applying to the City Council through the 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 106 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Suspending Section 54-5 (Camping) and Section 54-4 (Fire) of the 
San Fernando Municipal Code for the Family Hiking and Wildlife Environmental Stewardship Program 
Overnight Camping Workshop  
Page 3 of 3 

Director of Recreation and Community Services, who will forward his recommendation to the 
Council for consideration before council approval.”  Suspending Section 54-5 (Camping) of the 
Municipal Code allows RCS staff to host the overnight camping workshop at Rudy Ortega Sr. Park. 

The City of San Fernando Municipal Code, Chapter 54 (Parks and Recreation) Article 1 (General) 
Section 54-4 (Fires) states “No person shall make or kindle a fire in any park or recreation center, 
except in picnic stoves or barbecue pits provided for that purpose, or without first having 
obtained a sidewalk vending permit issued in accordance with article III of Chapter 58 of this 
Code, or without prior authorization from the city council.  Such authorization can be obtained 
by applying to the City Council through the Director of Recreation and Community Services, who 
will forward his recommendation to the council before council approval.”  Suspending Section 
54-4 (Fires) of the Municipal Code allows RCS staff to have campfires.  No fires will be started
without first having clearance and approval from Los Angeles Fire Department Inspector.

This camp workshop is scheduled to take place on Saturday, July 16, 2022, between 4:00 pm and 
12:00 pm the next day, Sunday, July 17, 2022.  The overnight camp workshop is only within the 
boundaries of Rudy Ortega Sr. Park.  The National Parks Conservation Association, which will 
facilitate the workshop sessions, is providing the supplies needed to conduct the workshop.  RCS 
staff has arranged the support of the Police Department to have reserve officers and explorers 
assist with security at the park.  The workshops as well as the camping trip to Joshua Tree National 
Park are free for participants.   

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The Habitat Conservation grant requires a dollar-for-dollar match. The staff time committed to 
the workshop is approximately 45 hours; a total value of  $5,042.  Funding for the in-kind staff is 
included in the Recreation and Community Services Department General Fund budget.  

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8150 temporarily suspending 
Section 54-5 (Camping) and Section 54-4 (Fire) of the City of San Fernando Municipal Code for 
one night only on Saturday, July 16, 2022, for the overnight camping workshop being held at Rudy 
Ortega Sr. Park and provide staff direction, as appropriate. 

ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 8150

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 107 of 290

https://library.municode.com/ca/san_fernando/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CO_CH58PESO


ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8150 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY 
AND LIMITED SUSPENSION OF SECTION 54.5 (CAMPING) AND 
SECTION 54.4 (FIRES) OF ARTICLE I (IN GENERAL) OF CHAPTER 
54 (PARKS AND RECREATION) OF THE SAN FERNANDO 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO FACILITATE AN OVERNIGHT CAMPING 
EVENT SCHEDULED FOR JULY 16, 2022  

 
 
WHEREAS, the people of the State of California have enacted the California Wildlife 

Protection Act of 1990, which provides funds to the State of California for grants to local agencies 
to acquire, enhance, restore or develop facilities for public recreation and fish and wildlife habitat 
protection purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the 

responsibility for the administration of the Habitat Conservation Fund (HCF) Program, setting up 
necessary procedures governing project application and grant awards under the HCF Program; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation awarded the City of San 

Fernando a HCF grant to implement the Family Hiking and Wildlife/Environmental Stewardship 
program (FHP); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Recreation and Community Services Department will host an overnight 

camping program (“Event”) as part of the FHP at Rudy Ortega Sr. Park, 2025 Fourth St. San 
Fernando, California 91340 on July 16, 2022; and 

  
WHEREAS, Section 54.5 (Camping) of Article I (In General) of Chapter 54 (Parks and 

Recreation) of the San Fernando Municipal Code provides:  
 
“No person shall camp or lodge within a park or recreation center without authorization.    
Such authorization can be obtained by applying to the city council through the director of 
recreation and community services, who will forward his recommendation to the council 
for consideration before council approval.”; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 54.4 (Fires) of Article I (In General) of Chapter 54 (Parks and 

Recreation) of the San Fernando Municipal Code provides:  
 
“No person shall make or kindle a fire in any park or recreation center, except in picnic 
stoves or barbecue pits provided for that purpose, or without first having obtained a 
sidewalk vending permit issued in accordance with article III of chapter 58 of this Code, or 
without prior authorization from the city council. Such authorization can be obtained by 
applying to the city council through the director of recreation and community services, 
who will forward his recommendation to the council before council approval.”; and  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 108 of 290

https://library.municode.com/ca/san_fernando/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CO_CH58PESO


RES. NO. 8150 

2 

WHEREAS, the City seeks to facilitate this Event by temporarily suspending Section 54.5 
(Camping) and Section 54.4 (Fires) of Article I (In General) of Chapter 54 (Parks and Recreation) 
of the San Fernando Municipal for the limited purpose of allowing Event participants to attend 
an overnight camping workshop to learn essential camping lessons; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the public welfare and interest will be served by 

such suspension, subject to the terms, conditions and limitations set forth in this Resolution 
below.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1: The representations set forth in the Recitals above are true and correct. 
 
SECTION 2: The City temporarily suspends Section 54.5 (Camping) and Section 54.4 

(Fires) of Article I (In General) of Chapter 54 (Parks and Recreation) of the San Fernando Municipal 
effective Saturday, July 16, 2022, between the hours of 4:00 pm to Sunday, July 17, 2022,  
12:00 pm., at the following location: Rudy Ortega Sr. Park, 2025 Fourth St., San Fernando, 
California 91340, bordered by 4th St. on the west, Hubbard St. on the North and Meyer St. on the 
south. 

 
SECTION 3: The temporary suspension shall be for the limited purpose of an overnight 

camping workshop and campfires.  Participants will experience sleeping in a tent and learn the 
fundamentals of overnight camping. Including but not limited to site selection and tent set up, 
proper food storage, tools and clothes to have, etc. 

 
 SECTION 4: The workshop will occur two (2) hours before sundown. The park will be 

locked and secured at sunset. RCS staff, Reserve Officers and cadets will be onsite at all time 
during the overnight camping experience to ensure security.  

 
SECTION 5: The specified section of the San Fernando Municipals (Section 54.5 and 

54.4) shall remain in full force and effect throughout the remainder of the City. 
 
SECTION 6: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its approval by the San 

Fernando City Council and the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2022. 

 
 
        

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 109 of 290



RES. NO. 8150 

3 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of Resolution No. 8150 which was regularly introduced and adopted by the City Council of 
the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 6th day of June, 2022, by the 
following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 110 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 111 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 112 of 290



 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Date: June 6, 2022 

Subject: Consideration to Authorize Release of a Notice Inviting Bids for the Design of the 
Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize staff to release a Notice Inviting Bids 
(Attachment “A”) soliciting professional services from qualified and experienced firms to develop 
a set of biddable plans, specifications and a project cost estimate for the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project. 

BACKGROUND: 

1. On February 5, 2018, the City Council adopted the Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PMP)
as an instrument for developing a comprehensive vision for park facility improvements and
recreational programming offered to the residents of San Fernando.  The PMP identified
multiple park sites that needed improvements in order to maintain the continuity of
recreational services.

2. On June 5, 2018, the voters of California approved Proposition 68, “Parks, Environment, and
Water Bond Act.”  The measure authorized $4 billion in general obligation bonds for state
and local parks, environmental protection and restoration projects, water infrastructure
projects, and flood protection projects.  The California Department of Parks and Recreation
was the agency assigned to administer a grants program for Proposition 68.

3. On July 10, 2020, the California Department of Parks and Recreation released the Statewide
Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program (SPP) Round 4, for
revitalizing projects throughout the State.  SPP allocated $395.3 million in competitive grant
funding to create, expand or renovate parks in low-income and disadvantaged communities.

4. On February 16, 2021, the City Council authorized staff to submit a SPP grant application for
Recreation, Las Palmas, and Pioneer Parks for facility renovations identified in the PMP and
to enhance recreational opportunities for the community.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 113 of 290



Consideration to Authorize Release of a Notice Inviting Bids for the Design of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 2 of 4 

5. Throughout the application process, RCS staff discussed the renovation projects of the three
park applications with the Parks, Wellness and Recreation Commission.  In addition, staff
conducted several community meetings via Zoom and in-person to gather feedback relating
to the park renovation projects.  The final grant application included the community’s
feedback on the planned renovations.

6. On December 8, 2021, the California Department of Parks and Recreation announced that
the City’s SPP grant application for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project had been
selected for funding.  The grant award of $4.2 million includes pre-construction costs such as
plan development, specifications, design, cost estimates, and construction documents.

ANALYSIS: 

The Parks and Recreation Master Plan, along with input from community planning meetings 
involving families, seniors and youth groups, provided guidance and vision in developing the Las 
Palmas Park Revitalization Project.  Additional design ideas came from residents and user groups 
via Zoom and in-person meetings.  The Las Palmas Park Site Plan (Attachment “A”, Exhibit “1”) 
shows where the recommended park improvements are to be located.  However, the final design 
for the project may differ based on a community engagement effort that will involve the 
contracted design consultant.   

The initial design elements of the Las Palmas Park Revitalization project will be based on the 
Grant Scope Items detailed in the grant application.  The project’s recreational features and 
major support amenity improvements include:  

a) Renovation of the playground adding ADA accessibility and shading
b) Renovation of the basketball court with lighting
c) Construction of a new tennis/pickleball court with lighting
d) Construction of a new splash pad
e) Renovation of three baseball fields with lighting
f) Renovation of the concession stand
g) Renovation of the outside restrooms
h) Construction of a new multi-purpose field with lighting
i) Renovation of the outdoor exercise equipment
j) Renovation of the picnic shelters and walking path lighting
k) Construction of new landscaping throughout the park
l) Renovation of the recreation center/learning center including 2 patio restrooms

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 114 of 290



Consideration to Authorize Release of a Notice Inviting Bids for the Design of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
The Notice Inviting Bids (NIB) requests the services from an experienced landscape 
architect/engineering firm to develop a cost estimate, a set of construction bid ready plans and 
specifications for the project.  RFP submittals must respond to the guidelines and instructions 
detailed in the “Scope of Services” of the NIB (Attachment “A”).  The minimal bid requirements 
include the following sections: 
 

• A Proposal Summary 
• The Firm’s Profile 
• The Firms Qualifications (detailing experience providing the requested service for similar 

projects/clients) 
• A Project Work Plan 
• A Project Staffing Description 
• A Proposal Cost breakdown 

 
Prospective firms must submit their bid package on or before 4:00 pm on Thursday,  
July 7, 2022. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The total estimated cost for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project is $4,234,980.  Funding is 
included in the City’s Fiscal Year 2021-2022 adopted budget through the Statewide Park 
Development and Community Revitalization (SPP) Grant.   
 
SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
Statewide Parks Program (Grant) 010-422-0156-4600 $ 4,234,980 
 

 
$  

Total Sources:  $ 4,234,980 
 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Pre-construction Cost  010-422-0156-4600 $ 705,830 
    Plans, Specifications, Cost Estimates, Permits   $ 0 
    Groundbreaking, public meetings   $ 0 
Construction 010-422-0156-4600 $ 3,529,150 
Expenditures-to-Date   $ 0 
    
Total Uses:   $4,234,980 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 115 of 290



Consideration to Authorize Release of a Notice Inviting Bids for the Design of the Las Palmas Park 
Revitalization Project 
Page 4 of 4 

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize staff to release a Notice Inviting Bids soliciting 
professional services from qualified and experienced firms to develop a set of biddable plans, 
specifications and a project cost estimate for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project. 

ATTACHMENT: 

A. Notice Inviting Bids
Exhibit 1: Las Palmas Park Site Plan 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 116 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

NOTICE INVITING BIDS 

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received by the City of San Fernando, 
California, for furnishing the following: 

DESIGN OF THE LAS PALMAS PARK REVITALIZATION PROJECT 

in strict accordance with the Specifications on file in the office of the SAN FERNANDO RECREATION 
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, 91340. 
Copies of specifications and proposal documents may be obtained from the City’s website at 
http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois 

One (1) original and one electronic copy of the proposal must be submitted to the CITY CLERK 
DEPARTMENT in a sealed envelope at CITY HALL, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, 
91340, not later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, July 7, 2022.  Bids must be clearly marked Bid for 
DESIGN OF THE LAS PALMAS PARK REVITALIZATION PROJECT.  Any bidder may withdraw their 
proposal, without obligation, at any time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals. 
A withdrawal will not be effective unless made personally or by telephonic notification received 
prior to the closing date.  Proposals may later be referred to the City Council for appropriate action.  
The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals as the best interests of the City may dictate. 

By: ________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

Published in   The San Fernando Sun on June 9, 2022. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 117 of 290

http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois


Page 2 of 11 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

The Recreation and Community Services Department is requesting proposals for: 

DESIGN OF THE 
LAS PALMAS PARK REVITALIZATION PROJECT

RELEASE DATE: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 

RESPONSE DUE: Thursday, July 7, 2022 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 118 of 290



 Las Palmas Park Design RFP 

Page 3 of 11 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

The City of San Fernando offers seven park facilities that provide recreational opportunities to 
the community.  All park facilities are conveniently located within a 2-mile radius and easily 
accessible to residents.  Typical amenities include activity rooms, picnic shelters, softball 
diamonds, and multi-purpose fields that may be reserved for private use; as well as 
indoor/outdoor basketball courts and picnic tables that are available on a first-come, first-served 
basis. 

The City of San Fernando is interested in contracting with an experienced and qualified firm to 
provide professional design services for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project detailed in the 
Scope of Service.  Las Palmas Park is approximately 7.7 Acres located at 505 North Huntington 
Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 in a residential neighborhood.   

The existing park amenities include an open field, ball diamonds, a playground, several picnic 
shelters, and basketball courts. The is also a Community Center housing a gymnasium, Banquet 
room, and a Learning Center.  The objective of the Las Palmas Park Renovation Project is to 
renovate, replace and enhance the major recreation features and park amenities to provide 
greater recreational opportunities for the surrounding community, provide employment or 
volunteer opportunities for residents, and incorporate environmental elements for efficient use 
of water and other natural resources. 

The Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program is funding the Las 
Palmas Park Revitalization Project.  As such, all contracted work must comply with the provisions 
of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code.  

BACKGROUND 

The City of San Fernando incorporated in 1911 is governed by a City Council/City Manager form 
of government with seven departments, consisting of the Administration, City Clerk, Community 
Development, Finance, Police, Public Works, and Recreation and Community Services 
Departments. The City employs approximately 125 full-time employees from a total Adopted 
Budget for the fiscal year 2021-2022 of $62.7 million, which includes a General Fund budget of 
$22.5 million.  The City is a cost-conscious provider of outstanding public services to its citizens 
and local businesses.  The City actively pursues grants to enhance the public services offered to 
its citizens and local businesses.  The Recreation and Community Services Department is currently 
administering the Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program. 

The City believes that the open competition for services and products provides the City with the 
best results for its public dollars. The City is interested in receiving responsive and competitive 
proposals from experienced and qualified firms that can demonstrate knowledge and expertise 
in developing a final design and contract documents for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization 
Project.  A description of the technical environment, contractor staffing, qualifications, and 
performance expectations for this RFP follows. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 119 of 290



        Las Palmas Park Design RFP                                                                       

 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING FIRMS 
 

A. Examination of Proposal Documents 
 

By submitting a proposal, the prospective firm represents that it has thoroughly examined 
and has become familiar with the services required under this RFP and that it is capable of 
delivering quality services to the City in a creative, cost-effective & service-oriented manner. 
 

B. Walkthrough  
 
All prospective firms are encouraged to attend a walkthrough of the Las Palmas Park site 
scheduled for Monday, June 20, 2022, at 11:00 A.M.  The project’s scope discussion and site 
inspection will assist prospective bidders in designing the recreational features and major 
support amenities the grant will fund.    
 

C. Questions/Clarifications 
 

Please direct any questions regarding this RFP to Mr. Venegas, via e-mail at 
jvenegas@sfcity.org.  Questions must be submitted by 1:30 p.m. on Friday, June 24, 2022.  
Responses to all questions will be posted to the city’s website/Business at http://ci.san-
fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois by Monday, June 27, 2022.    

 
D. Submission of Bid Proposals 

 
Bid proposal submissions may be mailed and emailed. Mailed proposals can be sent to City 
Hall, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, California, 91340. Proposals must be received no 
later than 4:00 P.M. on Thursday, July 7, 2022, (postmarks will not be accepted) and clearly 
marked “Design for Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project” c/o City Clerk.  Email submittals 
must be addressed to Julian Venegas at jvenegas@sfcity.org, and the subject line shall read 
“City of San Fernando RFP – Design for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project.”  Emailed 
proposals must be received no later than 4:00 P.M. on Thursday, July 7, 2022.  All proposals 
received after that time will not be accepted. 
 
The scheduled Bid opening is on Thursday, July 7, 2022, at 4:15 P.M. exactly.    

 
E. Withdrawal of Proposals 

 
A firm may withdraw its proposal at any time before the submission due date by delivering 
a written request for withdrawal signed by, or on behalf of the prospective firm. 

 
 
 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 120 of 290

mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org
http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois
http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois
mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


 Las Palmas Park Design RFP 

Page 5 of 11 

F. Rights of City of San Fernando

This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, nor does it obligate the City to
pay for any costs incurred in the preparation and submission of proposals or anticipation of
a contract.

The City reserves the right to:

1) Make the selection based on its sole discretion;
2) Reject any and all proposals without prejudice;
3) Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal;
4) Postpone opening for its own convenience;
5) Remedy technical errors in the Request of Proposal process;
6) Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-contractors;
7) Negotiate with any, all, or none of the prospective firms;
8) Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the prospective firms;
9) Accept other than the lowest offer; and/or
10) Waive informalities and irregularities in the proposal process.

G. Contract Type

It is anticipated that a standard form Professional Services Agreement contract will be
executed subsequent to the City Council’s review and approval of the recommended firm.

H. Collusion

By submitting a proposal, each prospective firm represents and warrants that; its proposal
is genuine and not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of any person
not named therein; that the prospective firm has not directly, induced, or solicited any other
person to submit a sham proposal or any other person to refrain from submitting a proposal;
and, that the prospective firm has not in any manner sought collusion to secure any improper 
advantage over any other person submitting a proposal.

SCOPE OF SERVICE 

The following section describes the specific services requested by this Request for Proposal.  The 
City of San Fernando is requesting landscape architect and engineering design services from 
qualified and experienced firms to develop a biddable set of plans, specifications and a project cost 
estimate to revitalize Las Palmas Park. 

The Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project aliens with the City’s Park and Recreation Master Plan in 
its continued effort to meet the recreational and facility needs of San Fernando residents.  The 
Project is based on input from community planning meetings involving youth, seniors, and family 
groups.  Additional design ideas came from residents and user group surveys.  The Las Palmas Park 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 121 of 290



 Las Palmas Park Design RFP 

Page 6 of 11 

grant Concept Level Site Plan (Exhibit 1) shows the recommended park improvements.  However, 
the proposed project design may recommend alternative locations for these major park amenities 
base on community feedback and to maximize land use.  The improvement projects include the 
following:  

• Renovation of the playground adding ADA accessibly and shading
• Renovation of the basketball court with lighting
• Construction of a new tennis/pickleball court with lighting
• Construction of a new splash pad
• Renovation of three baseball fields with lighting
• Renovation of the concession stand
• Renovation of the outside restrooms
• Construction of a new multi-purpose field with lighting
• Renovation of the outdoor exercise equipment
• Renovation of the picnic shelters and walking path lighting
• Construction of new landscaping throughout the park
• Renovation of the recreation center/learning center including 2 patio restrooms
• Design to incorporate projects that the California Conservation Corps will perform

The City a Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Grand funds recipient will 
mandate that the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code be followed for all contracted work 
related to the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project. 

The Project site, Las Palmas Park, is located at 505 North Huntington Street, San Fernando, CA 
91340.  Las Palmas Park is situated in an urban neighborhood surrounded by housing.  There is no 
land available to expand the park, so the revitalization project intends to maximize land use to 
provide additional recreational opportunities for the community.   

Upon execution of the agreement by all parties, City staff expects to schedule a meeting with the 
selected firm within 5 business days to discuss the project timeline, a conceptual design, engineering 
cost estimates, and the community engagement effort for the project.  A minimum 60-day 
community engagement effort is expected for the project with the set of biddable plans, 
specifications, and cost estimates within 120 days from the agreement executed to date.  The 
selected Firm and City shall work closely to develop and identify key milestones and project 
deliverable dates to ensure that the completion of the project is on or before June 30, 2025.    

REQUIRED SERVICES 

1. Community Engagement Plan
• The City values and focuses on enhancing the quality of life and community satisfaction.

Community engagement is a method to guide major City decisions to ensure residents voice
their needs.

• The Consultant shall develop a plan for engaging community feedback and incorporating their
input in the final design of the Las Palmas Revitalization Project.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 122 of 290



 Las Palmas Park Design RFP 

Page 7 of 11 

2. Obtain All Necessary Permits
• The consultant will support and provide all necessary services to obtain the required permits.

The City has already filed a Negative Declaration according to CEQA.

3. Plans, Specifications, and Engineering Estimates
• Prepare plans, which will include at a minimum Title Sheet, General Notes, and Right-of-Way,

Existing Conditions and Demolition Plans, Civil/Architectural Layout Plans, Grading, and
Utilities Plans, Landscaping, and Irrigation Plans, Electrical and Lighting Plan, and all
necessary details to construct the project.

• Prepare specifications and bid documents, which will include at a minimum, detailed projects 
description, working days for construction, bid schedule, bid item descriptions, payment
methods, special provisions, technical specifications, and any specification detail sheets or
standard plans, necessary to construct the project.

• Prepare engineering estimates consistent with the specifications and bid documents.
• The following plan check submittals shall be provided, at a minimum:

i. 1st Review – Conceptual Design presented to City staff for review, analysis, and
recommendations.

ii. 2nd Review - 65% design based on a set of consolidated comments received from
staff and presented at the City Council meeting for review and recommendations on
or before the third Monday in September 2022.

iii. 3rd Review – 95% Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate that will be presented at a
City Council meeting on or before the third Monday in November 2022.

4. Final Submittals
• Submit two full-size and two half-size (bond paper) final plan set master with the design

engineer’s seal and signature on each plan sheet and title sheet of specifications.
• Submit an electronic copy of all plans in AutoCAD and Adobe Acrobat format on a Flash Drive.
• Submit specification document in Microsoft Word format on a Flash Drive.
• Submit one set of quantity calculations and final engineering estimate in Microsoft Excel

format on a Flash Drive.
• Submit all electronic files, including correspondence, photolog, and analyses, used in the

project design on a Flash Drive.  Files that are not in electronic format shall be scanned into
a commonly used digital format and saved to the Flash Drive.

5. Project Coordination during Design Process
• Hold an appropriate number of meetings with City staff
• Provide monthly status reports.
• Provide design schedule with updates as required.
• Provide meeting minutes and action items.

6. Bidding Phase
• Attend the pre-bid meeting and respond to contractor requests for clarification during the

bid process.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 123 of 290



        Las Palmas Park Design RFP                                                                       

 
Page 8 of 11 

 

• Record and distribute among potential bidders answers and clarifications given to individual 
contractors, and prepare formal construction documentation addenda, if necessary 

• Prepare any required addenda pre-bid and pre-construction meeting agenda, if requested at 
no additional charge. 

• Attend pre-construction meeting. 
 

7. Design Support during Construction Process 
• If requested, the consultant will participate in the pre-construction kick-off meeting and 

clarify questions related to project specifications. 
• Upon requests, the consultant needs to be prepared to answer questions posed during 

construction by the contractor or by the City, not addressed during the pre-construction 
meeting. 

• Based on the consultant's experience with similar projects, estimate, and state in your 
proposal the time necessary for the consultant to spend on design support during 
construction (i.e. Project Management, monitoring, and reporting on project progress, 
compliance with provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code.)    
 

PROPOSED TERM OF CONTRACT 
 
The proposed term of the contract is 270 days from the execution of the contract.  

 
SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION  
 

RFP notice posted on City website  
(http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois)  June 8, 2022 
Walkthrough:       June 20, 2022 
Deadline for Submittal of Questions:    June 24, 2022 
Response to Questions:      June 27, 2020 
Deadline for Submittal of Proposal:     July 7, 2022 
Agreement Presented to Council for Review & Approval: August 15, 2022 

 
METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES 
 
A selection committee made up of staff from the Recreation and Community Services Department 
and Public Works Department will evaluate the information provided in the submitted proposals 
using the following criteria as a guideline: 

 
• Completeness and Comprehensiveness.    20% 
• Responsiveness to City’s issues.     20% 
• Experience of the firm providing similar    20% 

services to other municipalities. 
• Cost-effectiveness.       20% 
• Quality of proposed staff.      20% 

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 124 of 290

http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/rfps-rfqs-nibs-nois


        Las Palmas Park Design RFP                                                                       

 
Page 9 of 11 

 

INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED 
 

1. Prospective Firms must submit one digital copy of their proposal via email to 
jvenegas@sfcity.org 
 

2. Include a Proposal Summary Section 
 
This section shall discuss the highlights, key features, and distinguishing points of the Proposal. 
A separate sheet shall include all the contact people on the Proposal and how to contact with 
them.  
 

3. Include a Profile of the Proposing Firm(s) Section 
 
This section shall include a brief description of the Firm, including size, location of office(s), 
number of years providing service, the organizational structure of the responsible division, etc. 
 
Additionally, this section shall include a listing of any lawsuit and the result of that action 
resulting from (a) any public project undertaken by the Firm where litigation is still pending or 
has occurred within the last five years or (b) any type of project where claims or settlements 
were paid by the Firm or its insurers within the last five years. 
 

4. Include a Qualifications of the Firm Section 
 
This section shall include a brief description of the Firm’s qualifications and previous experience 
on similar or related projects.  Provide a description of pertinent project experience with other 
public municipalities (maximum of four) that includes a summary of the work performed, the 
total project cost, the period over which the work was completed, and the name, title, and 
phone number of clients to be contacted for references.  Give a brief statement of the Firm’s 
adherence to the schedule and budget for each project. 
 

5. Include a Work Plan Section   
 
This section presents a well-conceived service plan. This section of the proposal shall establish 
the Firm's understanding of the City’s objectives, work requirements, and the Firm’s ability to 
satisfy those objectives and requirements.  Describe the proposed approach for addressing the 
scope of service, outlining the approach that would be undertaken in providing the requested 
services.  Include a timetable for providing the service. Describe related service experience by 
the Firm in similar work.  Please describe the role, and extent of services (number of people 
used, engagement duration, and contract value).  
 

6. Include a Project Staffing Section 
 
In this section, discuss how the Firm would propose to staff this project. The firm’s key project 
team members shall be identified by name, specific responsibilities on the project, and their 
qualifications.  An organizational chart for the project team and resumes for key Firm personnel 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 125 of 290

mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


 Las Palmas Park Design RFP 

Page 10 of 11 

shall be included. Key Firm personnel will be an important factor considered by the Recreation 
and Community Services Director.  There can be no change of key personnel once the proposal 
is submitted, without prior approval of the City. 

7. Include a Proposal Costs Sheet and Rates Section

In this section, include the proposed costs to provide the services desired.  Include any other
cost and price information that would be contained in a potential agreement with the City.

In addition, include the costs for any other services that are considered optional additions.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 126 of 290



 Las Palmas Park Design RFP 

Page 11 of 11 

EXHIBIT “1” 

Page 127 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 128 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 129 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 130 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 

    
Date:  June 6, 2022 

 
Subject: A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle  

2021-2029 Housing Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council:  
 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing;  

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 8153 (Attachment “A”) approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 

Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration; and  
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to make iterative changes to the 2021-2029 Housing Element in 
response to comments from the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) to support state certification of the 2021-2029 Housing Element. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. Since 1969, the State has required all cities and counties in California to adopt a Housing 
Element to adequately plan for and accommodate each jurisdiction’s fair share of existing 
and projected housing needs for all economic segments of the community. The Housing 
Element is a chapter of the General Plan that serves as each jurisdiction’s blueprint for how 
it plans to grow and develop. Policies and ordinances enacted by local jurisdictions must be 
compatible with state housing goals and regional housing needs. 
  

2. The City of San Fernando is one of 197 local jurisdictions within the Southern California 
Association of Governments (SCAG), which is responsible for assigning the Regional Housing 
Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation in Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, 
Imperial, and Ventura counties.  State law requires updating the Housing Element every eight 
years to include policies and programs to meet existing and future housing needs for the City, 
as established by the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
and SCAG.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 131 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 2 of 14 
 

3. On August 22, 2019, HCD issued a RHNA of 1.34 million units (1,344,740 units) to the SCAG 
region. This number reflects the housing units that local jurisdictions in the region must plan 
for during the 8-year period from October 2021 to October 2029.   

 
4. On September 18, 2019, SCAG sent a letter to HCD objecting HCD’s RHNA of 1.34 million units 

for the SCAG region, and provided two alternatives, RHNA of 823,808 units and 920,772 units, 
which would be 39 percent and 32 percent less than HCD’s RHNA, respectively.    

 
5. On October 15, 2019, in response to SCAG’s objection to HCD’s RHNA, HCD issued a final 

determination of 1,341,827 housing units for SCAG’s region.  HCD did not alter its RHNA 
approach based on SCAG’s objection.   

 
6. On September 4, 2020, SCAG issued a draft of the 6th Cycle (2021 to 2029) RHNA allocation 

to all its member jurisdictions, which assigned 1,791 housing units to the City of San 
Fernando.   
 

7. On October 26, 2020, the City filed an appeal of the RHNA allocation to SCAG arguing that the 
allocation does not reflect local planning factors such as jobs-housing balance, sewer and 
water infrastructure constraints, and availability of land in the City, among other issues.  

 
8. On November 17, 2020, the City along with many other cities in the SCAG’s region, sent a 

letter to SCAG President Rex Richardson to convene a closed session meeting of the SCAG 
Regional Council to discuss why SCAG decided not to pursue litigation against HCD.  

 
9. On December 18, 2020, staff held a kick-off meeting with the City’s Housing Consultant, 

Houseal Lavigne, to commence work on the Housing Element Update. 
 

10. On January 11, 2021, the SCAG 6th Cycle RHNA Appeals Board considered and denied the 
appeal filed by the City, thus reaffirming the draft allocation of 1,791 housing units. Out of 52 
jurisdictions who filed the appeal, only two jurisdictions (City of Pico Rivera and County of 
Riverside) received a re-allocation that was granted due to a mathematical miscalculation on 
SCAG’s behalf. 

 
11. On March 4, 2021, SCAG finalized their 6th Cycle RHNA allocation plan that increased the total 

allocation to the City of San Fernando from 1,791 to 1,795 units. 
 

12. Virtual community meetings were held on March 25, 2021, May 12, 2021, and  
August 11, 2021, to share the process and receive feedback from the community.  

 
13. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meetings were held on April 13, 2021, May 18, 2021, 

and December 2, 2021, to review the proposed Housing Element update and receive 
feedback.  
 

14. On May 10, 2021 and October 12, 2021, discussions were held with the Planning and 
Preservation Commission regarding the RHNA allocation and Housing Element Update 
process.   

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 132 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 3 of 14 
 

15. On October 29, 2021, a Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element Update was posted on the City’s 
website for public review. Hard copies of the Draft Housing Element were made available at 
the San Fernando Library, Las Palmas Park, and Recreation Park.  

 
16. On November 8, 2021, the Draft Housing Element Update was presented to the Planning and 

Preservation Commission.   
 

17. On November 12, 2021, the Draft Housing Element Update was sent to the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for their initial 60-day review.  

 
18. On December 16, 2021, a Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) was released for a  

30-day public review period from December 16, 2021 to January 17, 2021.   A Notice of Intent 
to adopt the Draft MND was published in the San Fernando Sun and submitted to the State 
Clearinghouse. The notice was also sent to all interested residents, regional, state, and federal 
agencies.  A copy of the Draft MND is available at City Hall and on the City’s website.  

 
19. On December 22, 2021, a Draft Safety Element was posted on the City’s website for public 

review.  A copy the Draft Safety Element is available for public review at City Hall and on the 
City’s website.  The Safety Element was updated to satisfy Senate Bill (SB) 379 and SB 1035. 

 
20. On January 11, 2022, HCD issued a letter finding that the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element 

required revisions to comply with the State’s housing element law. 
 

21. The consultants have been working with staff to prepare revisions to the Housing Element 
and responding to HCD’s comments.  On April 14, 2022, staff and the consultants conferred 
with HCD to confirm specific changes needed to be eligible for certification.  

 
22. On May 12, 2022, the proposed Housing Element, Safety Element, and MND were posted on 

the City’s website (click here) for public review and a notice regarding the availability of these 
documents was published in the San Fernando Sun newspaper.  

 
23. On May 25, 2022, the Planning the Preservation Commission (“Commission”) held a special 

meeting to review the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element, Safety Element, and Mitigated 
Negative Declaration.  The Commission voted 2 ayes (Peña, Pacheco), 1 no (Bernal), and 1 
abstain (Fajardo) recommending that the City Council adopt the proposed 6th Cycle  
2021-2029 Housing Element, Safety Element, and Mitigated Negative Declaration with 
recommended changes to the proposed Housing Element and Safety Element.   

 

ANALYSIS: 

Housing Element Update 
State law requires every city and county in California to adopt and implement a General Plan, 
which establishes overall goals and polices for future growth of the jurisdiction.  A city’s General 
Plan must include a Housing Element as one of seven mandatory elements (land use, 
transportation, conservation, noise, open space, safety, and housing).   

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 133 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/#planning


A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 4 of 14 
 

The Housing Element must include policies and programs to meet existing and future housing 
needs for the City, as established by HCD and SCAG.   
 
State law further requires that housing elements identify housing sites that provide the 
development capacity to accommodate build out of the City’s RHNA allocation.  Housing 
elements are also required to consider ways to promote access (i.e. “affirmatively further fair 
housing”) to housing that is attainable for residents at all income levels, beyond focusing solely 
on opportunities for production of new units. 
 
The proposed update, the 2021-2029 Housing Element, identifies sites adequate to 
accommodate a variety of housing types for all income levels and needs of special population 
groups defined under State law (California Government Code Section 65583); analyzes 
governmental constraints to housing maintenance, improvement, and development; addresses 
conservation and improvement of the condition of existing affordable housing stock; and outlines 
policies that promote housing opportunities for all persons. The Housing Element update process 
serves as an opportunity to update housing and land-use strategies to reflect changing needs, 
resources, and conditions of the City during its applicable eight year planning period.  
 
Housing Opportunity Sites 
San Fernando has been allocated a minimum of 1,795 units by SCAG. Since RHNA uses June 30, 
2020 as a baseline for growth projections for the planning period (October 15, 2021 to October 
15, 2029) the City can count 52 units that received planning approval since June 30, 2020, and 39 
units of current applications under review toward this RHNA cycle.   
 
San Fernando is faced with limited opportunities to provide affordable housing due to historic 
land use patterns, its setting as an existing developed community, high land and housing costs, 
and scarcity of vacant land.  To accommodate the City’s RHNA need for all income levels, future 
housing development would occur through a variety of methods as detailed in the Housing Plan 
section of the proposed Housing Element. This includes development on vacant parcels, infill 
development in existing residential and commercial areas, development of accessory dwelling 
units (ADU), and development on City-owned parcels.  
 
Table 35 of the Draft Housing Element Summarizes San Fernando’s applicable RHNA credit and 
the remaining RHNA needed through October 15, 2029. With the anticipated ADU’s, entitled 
projects, and projects under review, the City has an unmet RHNA need of 1,224 units (134 
extremely low-income units, 177 very low-income units, 258 moderate-income, and 495 above 
moderate-income units, plus 15% no net loss).  After accounting for the development credits and 
the realistic capacity of vacant and non-vacant inventory sites, the City identified 45 housing 
opportunity sites to fulfil its RHNA obligation.  These sites are mostly within SP 5 area with a few 
sites outside of its boundary, as illustrated in Figure 1 below.  More details of these sites are 
provided as an appendix to the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element.   
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 134 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 5 of 14 
 

The process of selecting the Housing Opportunity Sites proposed in the 2021-2029 Housing 
Element involved the following steps:  

1. Identified potential housing sites through the community outreach process.  An online 
interactive map (Map.Social) was made available on the City’s website for the community 
to help identify potential housing sites.    

2. Reviewed all sites for compliance with HCD criteria through a weighted suitability model 
to evaluate multiple criteria influencing the likelihood of development on a parcel-by-
parcel basis. Each property was assigned a total weighted score, the higher the score, the 
greater the likelihood of development. 

3. Discussion with Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to Identify and eliminate remaining 
sites with development or environmental constraints.  

A series of TAC meetings were held to further discuss comments received from the community 
outreach process.  The TAC meetings included a more focused and in-depth conversation around 
the placement of housing opportunity sites, programs and policies that should be considered, 
and other insights and concerns regarding the availability of affordable housing. 
 
Residential Mixed-Use Overlay 
To accommodate housing on the opportunity housing sites, the proposed Housing Element 
includes a mixed-use overlay in existing commercial corridors along South Brand Boulevard and 
San Fernando Mission Boulevard. The proposed Housing Element also includes an amendment 
to Specific Plan 5 (SP 5) to expand the existing mixed-use/residential overlay to other commercial 
sites within SP 5.   
 
The proposed mixed-use overlay helps protect existing residential neighborhoods by not 
increasing density to accommodate additional housing units. The overlay approach helps 
preserve the character of existing residential neighborhoods while directing developments to 
commercial corridors that can accommodate the demand for additional density to meet the 
RHNA allocation.   
 
The proposed mixed-use overlay will not only help meet the RHNA allocation, but also bring 
several benefits to the City. The proposed mixed-use overlay will create flexibility for existing 
commercial properties to create a live-work environment that will:  

1. Help increase foot traffic to support local businesses. 

2. Reduce the need for vehicle travel by bringing residents and visitors to one location to 
live, work, eat, shop, and play.  

3. Bring shared community spaces to help foster interaction amount community members.   

Overall, the proposed mixed-use overlay will address the City’s housing needs, help promote 
sustainability, and encourage economic development.  
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 135 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 6 of 14 
 

Figure 1: Housing Opportunity Sites 

 
 
 
 
Planning and Preservation Commission Review 
At the Planning and Preservation Commission meeting of May 25, 2022, Commissioner Bernal 
suggested adding two sites (826 San Fernando Road and 211 S. Maclay).  These two sites were 
previously analyzed during the selection process but were not selected because they did not 
meet the criteria for potential redevelopment during this planning period.  However, they are 
included in our list of potential housing sites for further use.  
 
New or Enhanced Housing Programs 
Section VI of the proposed Housing Element contains the City’s Housing Plan which sets forth the 
goals, policies, and programs the City intends to implement in order to address identified housing 
needs and comply with State Housing laws.  In addition to five existing on-going housing 
programs being carried forward from the last Housing Element, 21 new or enhanced programs 
are proposed.  A brief summary of the new programs are included as Attachment “F”.  

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 136 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 7 of 14 
 

Planning and Preservation Commission Review 
The Planning and Preservation Commission recommended accelerating the date for releasing a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) for City Hall Redevelopment Study to be earlier than  
December 31, 2026.  The RFP is to conduct a Site Redevelopment Study and explore potential 
public-private partnership for a future mixed-use development on City Hall site that will capitalize 
on the light rail stop that is planned for San Fernando in 2028. The RFP will state that City Hall 
will not be relocated, but staff will be temporary relocated during construction only.  Staff 
recommends not accelerating the date for releasing the RFP because the proposed deadline of 
2026 provide time for the City to better understand the plan and design of the proposed light rail 
stop before drafting the RFP.  Also, the deadline does not prohibit releasing the RFP sooner than 
2026.  

Timeline of three programs that requires amendment to the Zoning Code has been changed to 
December 31, 2024 to be consistent with other programs requiring amendment to the Zoning 
Code.  A redline version showing the changes is included as Attachment “B.”    

Housing and Community Development (HCD) Review of Housing Element  
State law requires Housing Element updates within SCAG’s jurisdiction to be adopted by 
individual cities and certified by HCD within 120 days of the October 15, 2021 statutory deadline 
(i.e. February 12, 2022).   Any associated rezoning or ordinance amendments (i.e. proposed 
mixed-use overlay) required to implement an adopted Housing Element would be allowed a 
maximum three-year performance period to complete and adopt any identified amendments. If 
a jurisdiction did not meet the October 15th deadline, it would be subject to a 4-year cycle.  
However, recently adopted Assembly Bill 1398 (AB 1398) removed the 4-year cycle requirement 
for jurisdictions not meeting the deadline, but required completion of any rezoning and 
ordinance amendments by October 15, 2022 (i.e. only 4 ½ months) instead of the three-year 
performance period previously allowed.   
 
A Draft Housing Element was submitted to HCD in November 2021 and comments from HCD 
were received on January 11, 2022 noting several deficiencies.  Due to the receipt of HCD 
comments and insufficient time remaining (4 weeks) to prepare timely revisions and hold 
required public hearings before February 12, 2022, the statutory deadline could not be met.  The 
letter from HCD is included as Attachment “G”.  A brief summary of key issues from HCD are 
provided below.   

1. Further explanation on housing needs, resources, and constraints analysis relating to 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH).   

2. Improve housing programs with removal of constraints for development of affordable 
housing.  

3. Include quantified objectives to establish an estimate of housing units by income 
category.  

4. Further explanation of public participation of all economic segments of the community.   

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 137 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 8 of 14 
 

Staff and the consultants conferred with HCD on April 14, 2022 to confirm specific changes 
needed to be eligible for certification.  The proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element (Attachment 
“B”) has been revised to address comments from HCD.  A detailed summary of the comments 
received from HCD and how they are addressed in the proposed Housing Element is provided as 
Attachment “H.”  
 
Upon City Council adoption of the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element, staff intends to 
expedite its transmittal to HCD and develop a work plan for its implementation prior to the 
October 15, 2022 deadline. 
 
Changes in State Housing Law 
The proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element has been prepared to be consistent with recent 
changes in State law, all of which are detailed in the introduction of the proposed 2021-2029 
Housing Element and summarized in Attachment “E.”   The proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element 
incorporates and addresses all pertinent housing law changes through analysis and 
implementation of new policies or programs for the next eight years.  
 
Non-Compliance with State Housing Law 
Failure by the City to adopt a Housing Element could result in HCD revoking its finding of the 
City’s substantial compliance with the State’s housing law.   Non-compliance with the State’s 
housing law would leave the City exposed for future legal action from the State or other 
interested parties, which could include, but is not limited to: 
 

Litigation 
• Litigation by the State that may be brought against the City by the State Attorney General 

for violations of the State’s housing-element law, as well as other housing laws, or directly 
by HCD.  

• Litigation by outside entities (housing advocacy groups, developers) or individuals. 

Fines 
• Financial exposure of the City to court fines starting at $10,000 to $600,000 per month 

(may be multiplied by a factor of three to six, in extreme instances), plus attorneys’ fees.  
 

Sanctions 
• Mandatory Compliance and Loss of Local Land Use and Permitting Authority – Potential 

Consequences of Lawsuits 

1. Court-mandated approval of certain housing projects.  

2. Court-orders to strip the City Council of land use authority.  

3. Court-ordered mandatory rezoning of land within the City.  

4. In extreme cases, the court may appoint an agent with all powers necessary to bring 
the City’s Housing Element into compliance with state law and suspend the City’s 
authority to issue building permits for new construction.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 138 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 9 of 14 
 

• Ineligible for Funding.  The City will be ineligible for certain types of state and federal grant 
funding that require compliance with the housing-element law as an eligibility criterion 
and which funds may be used to fund transportation, infrastructure and housing 
programs and projects (e.g. Caltrans SB 1 Sustainable Communities Grant, Affordable 
Housing and Sustainable Communities Program, SB 2 Planning Grant, Prop 1 Housing 
Programs and Veterans Bond).   

HCD’s process for accountability is intended to be iterative and hinges on progressive sanctions.  
However, any of the potential consequences of non-compliance would be costly for the City and 
require the use of taxpayer funds and staff resources.   

Outreach Process & Comments Received on Housing Element 
Appendix A of the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element detail the City’s outreach efforts during 
the preparation and public review period of the Housing Element Update and include written 
comments resulting from: 
 

• Three advertised and noticed outreach meetings – Town Hall meetings 
• Four advertised and noticed public meetings – Three with Planning and Preservation 

Commission and one with City Council  
• Housing Element Update Website 
• A Housing Element Update Survey (with Spanish Translation) 
• Map.Social (web-based interactive mapping tool) 

 
Written Public Comments Summary 
Six comment letters were received and summarized below. All comment letters are included as 
Attachment “I”.  
 

• SCAG and CalTrans (Responsible Agencies under CEQA) acknowledging receipt of the 
project notices.  

• Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians acknowledging receipt of notices and noting no 
further comments. 

• Property owner/developer (Selective 901 Truman, LLC) asking for their properties to be 
included in the Housing Sites Inventory.    

o These sites were not included because of their proximity to the railroad tracks.  

• One comment letter from Californians for Homeownership threatening potential 
litigation against the City regarding compliance with State Housing law.  

• One comment from Aszkenazy Development to add two sites (603 San Fernando Road 
and 411 S Brand Blvd) to the Housing Opportunity Sites.   

o 603 San Fernando Road did not meet the criteria as a potential housing site.  

o 411 S. Brand Blvd is included as Housing Opportunity Site No. 8.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 139 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 10 of 14 
 

Housing Element Findings 
On May 25, 2022, the Commission recommended that the City Council adopt the proposed  
2021-2029 Housing Element with required findings contained in the Resolution, included as 
Attachment A.  The Resolution has been drafted for the City Council to adopt the 2021-2029 
Housing Element in its entirety to replace the existing Housing Element of the General Plan.   
 
Non-Policy Changes by the City Manager 
The Resolution also includes an action for the City Council to authorize the City Manager to make 
iterative changes to the 2021-2029 Housing Element in response to comments from HCD to 
support state certification of the 2021-2029 Housing Element.  
 
Safety Element Update 
As part of the Housing Element update, the Safety Element has been updated to address wildfire 
and climate adaptation as required by Senate Bill (SB) 379 and SB 1035.  The proposed Safety 
Element incorporates information on natural and human-caused hazards, along with new policies 
related to environmental justice, wildfire prevention, climate change, and pandemic 
preparedness and response, among others. The purpose of the Safety Element is to reduce the 
potential short- and long-term risk of death, injuries, property damage, and economic and social 
disruption resulting from fires, floods, droughts, earthquakes, landslides, climate change, and 
other hazards.  

Certain policies that cover broad areas of City activities are further broken down into subtopics. 
Each policy is supported by specific actions contained in the Action Plan that contains the specific, 
concrete steps the City will take to achieve the intent of each policy. The proposed Safety Element 
topics include:  

• Disaster Preparedness 
• Geologic and Seismic Hazards 
• High Winds 
• Wildland and Urban Fire 
• Dam Failure Inundation Hazards 

• Peak Load Water Demand 
• Hazardous Materials Hazards 
• Climate Change Hazards  
• Public Safety Services and Crime 

Prevention 
 
Planning and Preservation Commission Review 
The Commission recommended modifying Goal 12.0 to include “preparedness for crime 
prevention” and adding a program to implement the modified goal. Staff recommends the 
changes shown in red text below to reflect the recommendation of the Commission.  Pages of 
the Safety Element effected by the proposed changes are included as Attachment “C”. 
 

• Modify Goal 12.0:  San Fernando provides adequate emergency response and public 
safety services for the community’s needs with a focus on community-based crime 
prevention and emergency preparedness.  

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 140 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 11 of 14 
 

• Add Policy:  Staff Emergency Preparedness: Staff performing public safety services and 
emergency response duties will undergo regular trainings to fulfill their obligations. Staff 
will conduct emergency drills in partnership with the City of Los Angeles Fire Department 
and the community. 

 
• Add Two Programs to promote emergency preparedness:  

• Staff Training. Implement regular trainings for staff including: damage assessment 
protocols, Emergency Operations Center (EOC) operations, Standardized Emergency 
Management System, and Incident Command System protocols and operations. 

 
• Emergency Drills. Conduct emergency drills in partnership with schools, recreational 

providers, and others to improve emergency preparedness, particularly for the most 
vulnerable community members. 

 
Environmental Justice 
Senate Bill 1000 (SB 1000), “The Planning for Healthy Communities Act” of 2016 amended Section 
65302 of the Government Code Section 65040.12 to require all local jurisdictions to create an 
Environmental Justice Element or incorporate environmental justice policies when updating two 
or more elements of its General Plan.  Environmental Justice is defined as “the fair treatment and 
meaningful involvement of people of all races, cultures and incomes, and national origins, with 
respect to the development, adoption, implementation, and enforcement of environmental laws, 
regulations, and policies”.   
 
As part of the Housing Element and Safety Element Update process, the City commissioned the 
preparation of an Environmental Justice Technical Report which was completed in December 
2021.  The Environmental Justice Technical Report is included as an appendix to the proposed 
Safety Element.   
 
Goal 14.0 in the Safety Element establishes environmental justice policies and actions to reduce 
disproportionate environmental burden present in San Fernando. The negative impact of 
environmental hazards and pollution on the San Fernando community is described across the 
following key focus areas: 

• Pollution Exposure and Air Quality  
• Public Facilities  
• Safe and Sanitary Homes  

 

• Physical Activity, Food Access, and 
Public Health 

• Civic and Community Engagement 
 

Section M of the proposed Safety Element (Attachment “C”, Pages 39-46) details the associated 
implementation measure or program for each topic area’s related policies with priority, 
timeframe for implementation, and responsible entity/department. These environmental justice 
policies will serve as the basis for a separate Environmental Justice Element, which staff will 
explore creating as part of a comprehensive General Plan update in the near future.  
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 141 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 12 of 14 
 

Planning and Preservation Commission Review 
The Commission recommended adding “access to healthy food” as an objective for Goal 14.0 and 
to seek grant for healthy food options and explore public/private partnership opportunity to 
attract healthy food options to the City.  Staff recommends the changes shown in red text below 
to reflect the recommendation of the Commission. Pages of the Safety Element effected by the 
proposed changes are included as Attachment “C”.  
 

• Modify Objective for Goal 14.0 to promote access to healthy food options:   

 
• Add two Programs to promote access to healthy food options:   

• Healthy Foods. Apply for grant programs to support increasing access to healthy foods 
(for local retailers and community service providers). 

 
• Recruit Healthy Food Retailers. Explore public/private partnerships with grocers and 

retailers, and other innovative strategies to increase access to healthy foods in San 
Fernando. 

 
Written Comments Received on Safety Element 
The City has not received separate written correspondence on the Safety Element outside of 
CEQA notification and review process. 
 
Safety Element Finding  
On May 25, 2022, the Commission recommended that the City Council adopt the updated Safety 
Element in its entirety to replace the existing Safety Element of the General Plan with the 
recommended changes provided by the Commission.  
 
Environmental Review for Draft Housing and Safety Elements 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), an Initial Study/Draft Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (MND) has been prepared for the Housing Element and Safety Element 
update. The Draft MND analyzed potential environmental impacts and included mitigation 
measures to mitigate any potential impacts to less than a significant level.   The Draft MND was 
released for a 30-day public review period started on December 16, 2021 and concluded on 
January 17, 2022. The Draft MND is available on the City of San Fernando website and at the 
planning counter. 
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 142 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 13 of 14 
 

Written Comments on IS/MND 
Comment received and responses from the Environmental Consultant are included in Appendix 
D of the Draft IS/MND, which is included Attachment “D” to the staff report.  As noted earlier, 
the following comments were received from SCAG and CalTrans related to their role as 
Responsible Agencies and from the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians: 

1. Miya Edmonson, IGR/CEQA Branch Chief, California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans).  Letter received on December 27, 2021.  

2. Frank Wen, Manager, Planning Strategy Department, Southern California Association of 
Governments (SCAG). Letter received on January 13, 2022.  

3. Kelsie Shroll, Administration Assistant, Elders’ Council and Cultural Department, Santa 
Ynez Band of Chumash Indians. Letter received on December 21, 2021  

 
CEQA Findings 
The Resolution (Attachment “A”) includes adoption of the Initial Study-Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program with the required findings.  

Public Notification  

A public hearing notice was published on May 25, 2022 as a display advertisement in the San 
Fernando Sun newspaper to inform the community of the City Council’s consideration for 
adoption of the proposed Housing Element, Safety Element, and MND.  

 
A public hearing notice was also published on May 12, 2022 as a display advertisement in the San 
Fernando Sun newspaper to inform the community of the Commission’s review of the proposed 
Housing Element, Safety Element, and MND.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Housing Element Update is funded by a combination of state grant funds totaling $310,000 
from the Senate Bill 2 (SB 2) Planning Grant Program and the State’s Local Early Action Planning 
(LEAP) Grants Program.   
 
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 143 of 290



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing 
Element, Safety Element Update, and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
Page 14 of 14 
 

CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving the City’s 6th Cycle  
2021-2029 Housing Element, Updated Safety Element, and the Mitigation Negative Declaration, 
and authorize the City Manager to make iterative changes to the 2021-2029 Housing Element in 
response to comments from HCD to support state certification of the 2021-2029 Housing 
Element. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution No. 8153 
B. Revised Draft 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing Element Update (City website at 

sfcity.org/community-development) and Pages with Redline Changes 
C. Draft Safety Element Update (City website at sfcity.org/community-development) and Pages 

with Redline Changes 
D. Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration with Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

(City website at sfcity.org/community-development) 
E. Recent State Housing Laws  
F. New or Enhanced Housing Programs 
G. HCD Comment Letter 
H. Summary Matrix of HCD comments on Draft Housing Element with Proposed Revisions 
I. Correspondences Received 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 144 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 8153 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE 6TH CYCLE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT, 
SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE, AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
FOR THE UPDATED ELEMENTS, AND TO AMEND THE GENERAL PLAN TO 
REPLACE THE HOUSING ELEMENT AND SAFETY ELEMENTS IN THEIR 
ENTIRETY, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO MAKE ITERATIVE 
CHANGES TO THE 2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT IN RESPONSE TO 
COMMENTS FROM HCD TO SUPPORT STATE CERTIFICATION OF THE  
2021-2029 HOUSING ELEMENT. 

 
  

WHEREAS, the California Legislature has determined that the availability of housing is a 
matter of statewide importance and the cooperation between government and the private 
sector is critical to attainment of the State’s housing goals; and  

 
WHEREAS, the General Plan Housing Element serves as a policy and action guide to 

address the comprehensive housing needs of the City of San Fernando; and 
 
WHEREAS, all cities in the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) region 

are required by State law to prepare an update to their respective General Plan Housing Element 
for the 2021-2029 planning period and future housing needs; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 4, 2020, SCAG issued a draft of the 6th Cycle Regional Housing 

Needs Allocation (RHNA), which assigned 1,791 housing units to the City of San Fernando Element 
for the 2021-2029 planning period; and   

 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2021, SCAG finalized their 6th Cycle RHNA Allocation plan that 

increased the total allocation to the City of San Fernando from 1,791 to 1,795 units; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando prepared the 6th Cycle 2021-2029 Housing Element 
Update in accordance with California Housing Element Law (Government Code section 65580 et. 
seq.); and 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65583 requires that the Housing Element 

Update contain: (i) an assessment of the City’s housing needs and an analysis of the resources 
and constraints, both governmental and non-governmental, relevant to the meeting of these 
needs; (ii) an inventory of land suitable and available for residential development and an analysis 
of the development potential of such sites; (iii) a statement of the community’s goals, quantified 
objectives, and policies relative to the maintenance, preservation, improvement, and 
development of housing; and (iv) programs that set forth a schedule of actions the local 
government is undertaking or intends to undertake to implement the policies and achieve the 
goals and objectives of the Housing Element Update; and 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 145 of 290



RES. NO. 8153 

2 

WHEREAS, Housing Element Law requires the Housing Element to identify adequate sites 
to accommodate the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation (“RHNA”) and the City has 
identified an adequate list of housing sites to accommodate the amount, type, and income levels 
required by RHNA; and 

 
WHEREAS, State law requires that a City’s General Plan include a Safety Element to 

address protection of its people from unreasonable risks associated with disasters, including 
earthquakes, floods, fires, landslides, and other hazards identified by the local community and 
California Government Code Section 65302(g) (GC 65302) requires all local jurisdictions to update 
their Safety Element upon each revision of the Housing Element or Local Hazard Mitigation Plan; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the City’s Housing Element and Safety Element 

(“Elements”) of the General Plan are intended to ensure that the needs of all residents in the City 
are met; and 

 
WHEREAS, in conformance with Senate Bill 1000 (SB 1000), “The Planning for Healthy 

Communities Act” of 2016 which amended Section 65302 of the Government Code Section 
65040.12  and requires environmental justice considerations and integrated policies be included 
in a General Plan if two or more elements are amended; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando commissioned the preparation of an Environmental 

Justice Technical Report in December 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando held a series of public outreach meetings, from 

March 2021 to December 2021 during the preparation of the Housing Element and Safety 
Element Updates; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2021, the Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element amendment 
was transmitted to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
for review as required by state law; and 

 
WHEREAS, An Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) was prepared for 

the Housing and Safety Element updates in accordance with the California Environmental Quality 
Act (" CEQA") and the State CEQA Guidelines; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2021, a Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) was 

released for a 30-day public review period from December 16, 2021 to January 17, 2022.  A Notice 
of Intent to adopt the Draft MND was published in the San Fernando Sun newspaper and 
submitted to the State Clearinghouse. The notice was also sent to all interested residents, 
regional, state, and federal agencies. During said public review period of the Draft MND, the City 
received three written comment letters. The City prepared a Final Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(Final MND) that includes public comments along with response to comments and a Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program. On May 12, 2022, the draft Final MND was posted on the 
City’s website and was provided to everyone who provided comments on the draft MND; and 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 146 of 290



RES. NO. 8153 

3 

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2022, HCD issued a letter finding that the proposed 2021-2029 
Housing Element required revisions necessary to comply with the State’s housing-element law; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, on May 12, 2022, the City of San Fernando 
Community Development Department published a legal notice concerning the proposed  
2021-2029 Housing Element, Safety Element, and MND in the San Fernando Sun, a local 
newspaper of general circulation, regarding the City of San Fernando Planning and Preservation 
Commission Special meeting of May 25, 2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 25, 20222, the Planning and Preservation Commission conducted a 

duly noticed public hearing, at which public testimony was taken concerning the proposed  
2021-2029 Housing Element, updated Safety Element, and MND, and the Commission voted  
2-1-1 recommending City Council adopt the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element, Safety 
Element, and MND, and to authorize the City Manager to make iterative changes to the  
2021-2029 Housing Element in response to comments from HCD to support state certification of 
the 2021-2029 Housing Element; and  

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, on May 25, 2022, the City of San Fernando City 

Clerk Department published a legal notice concerning the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element, 
Safety Element, and MND in the San Fernando Sun, a local newspaper of general circulation, 
regarding the City of San Fernando City Council meeting of May 25, 2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, on June 6, 20222, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing, at 

which public testimony was taken concerning the proposed 2021-2029 Housing Element, 
updated Safety Element, and MND, and the City Council considered the proposed 2021-2029 
Housing Element, Safety Element, and MND in conformance with California Housing Element 
Law, Government Code Section 65580 et seq. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, DOES 

HEREBY FIND, DETERMINE, AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 SECTION 1: ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FINDINGS 
 
The City of San Fernando determined that the proposed project required the preparation of an 
Initial Study to identify potential impacts under CEQA. The Initial Study identified potential 
impacts that can be addressed through mitigation measures, resulting in the preparation of a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.  
 
As recommended by the Planning and Preservation Commission, the City Council, in light of the 
whole record before it, including, but not limited to, CEQA guidelines and threshold of 
significance, the Mitigated Negative Declaration incorporated herein by reference, Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and other documents 
incorporated therein by reference, any written comments received and responses provided, and 
other substantial evidence, within the meaning of Public Resources Code Sections Section 21000 
et. seq., within the record and/or provided at the public hearing, hereby find, determine, and 
certify the following: 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 147 of 290



RES. NO. 8153 

4 

1. Lead Agency: That the City of San Fernando is the lead agency for the project pursuant to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Cal. Pub. Res. Code §21000 et seq.), 
State CEQA Guidelines (the “Guidelines,” 14 Cal. Code Regs. §15000 et seq.) 

2. Determination of Impacts:  That the City’s qualified consultant prepared a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (“MND”) for the project, and the MND concluded that there was 
evidence that the proposed project may have a significant impact.  

3. Mitigation: That pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091(d), a Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program was prepared that would substantially lessen the potential effects 
identified in the MND. 

4. Review Period: That the MND has been provided for public review within the duration 
required under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15073. 

5. Compliance with Law: That the MND was prepared, processed, and noticed in accordance 
with CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.), the CEQA Guidelines (14 
California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et seq.), and the local CEQA guidelines and 
thresholds of significance adopted by the City of San Fernando. That the MND was 
presented to the Planning and Preservation Commission, and the Planning and 
Preservation Commission has reviewed and considered the information contained in the 
MND, and public testimony received thereon during the hearing, prior to any action on 
the project.  

6. Independent Judgment: That the MND reflects and represents the City of Fernando’s 
independent judgment and analysis and adequately addresses the impacts of, and 
proposes appropriate mitigation measures upon, the City’s actions in approving or taking 
action on the proposed Project. 

7. Mitigation Monitoring Program: That pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091(d), a 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) included in the Final MND are fully 
enforceable through permit conditions, agreements, or other measures as required by 
Public Resources Code Section 21081.6.  

8. Modifications: That the modifications to the Final MND which have been made since 
circulation of the Draft MND do not constitute the addition of new significant information 
to the MND within the meaning of CEQA Guidelines Section 15073.5. 

SECTION 2: HOUSING ELEMENT FINDINGS 

As recommended by the Planning and Preservation Commission, the City Council adopt the 
findings described below for adoption of the 2021-2029 Housing Element in its entirety, 
incorporated herein by reference, to replace the existing Housing Element of the General Plan.  

1. The State of California Government Code Section 65588 requires the review and adoption 
of a Housing Element that may be updated according to the Southern California 
Association of Governments Regional Housing Needs Assessment (“RHNA”) planning 
cycle. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 148 of 290



RES. NO. 8153 

5 

2. Revisions to the draft Housing Element were made based on comments received by HCD 
on January 11, 2022 and incorporated into the draft Housing Element. 
 

3. City of San Fernando finds that the 2021-2029 Housing Element is in substantial 
compliance with the California Housing Element Law (Government Code Section 65580 et 
seq). 
 

4. The City of San Fernando herby finds that the 2021-2029 Housing Element, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65860, would be externally consistent with the San Fernando 
Zoning Ordinance as the Housing Element programs commit the City of San Fernando to 
amend any zoning provisions in conflict of state law and to be consistent with the Housing 
Element. 
 

5. Based on age and condition of non-residential structures on non-vacant sites, and the 
likelihood of commercial uses on non-vacant sites converting to mixed-use residential 
developments due to the continued decline of retail-only uses specifically within the 
Corridor Specific Plan (SP-5) commercial areas, the existing uses on the sites identified in 
the site inventory to accommodate lower income RHNA are likely to be integrated with 
new residential uses, and therefore are not considered significant impediments to 
additional residential development during the period covered by the Housing Element.  
 
SECTION 3: SAFETY ELEMENT FINDINGS 

 
As recommended by the Planning and Preservation Commission, the City Council make the 
findings described below for adoption of the updated Safety Element in its entirety, incorporated 
herein by reference, to replace the existing Safety Element in the General Plan.  

 
1. That the Safety Element is consistent with City of San Fernando General Plan, its 

associated Sub-Elements, and policies. 
 

SECTION 4: NON-POLICY CHANGES TO THE HOUSING ELEMENT FOR CERTIFICATION 
 

As recommended by the Planning and Preservation Commission, the City Council authorize the 
City Manager to make iterative changes to the 2021-2029 Housing Element in response to 
comments from HCD to support state certification of the 2021-2029 Housing Element. 
 

SECTION 5: RECORD OF PROCEEDING 
 

The documents and other materials that constitute the record of the proceedings upon which 
the Planning and Preservation Commission’s decision is based, which include, but are not limited 
to, the environmental documents, staff reports, as well as all materials that support the staff 
reports for the proposed project and are located in the Community Development Department of 
the City of San Fernando at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340.  The custodian of these 
documents is the City Clerk of the City of San Fernando.  
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 149 of 290



RES. NO. 8153 

6 

SECTION 6: DETERMINATION  
 

Based upon the findings outlined above, the City Council of the City of San Fernando hereby takes 
the following actions:  

A. Adopt the Final MND, incorporated herein by reference, and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program for the 2021-2029 Housing Element and Safety Element, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

B. Adopt the 2021-2029 Housing Element in its entirety to replace the existing Housing 
Element of the General Plan; and  

C. Adopt the updated Safety Element in its entirety to replace the existing Safety Element of 
the General Plan; and  

D. Authorize the City Manager to make iterative changes to the 2021-2029 Housing Element 
in response to comments from HCD to support state certification of the 2021-2029 
Housing Element. 

SECTION 7: CERTIFICATION OF THE RESOLUTION 

The City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, shall certify to the adoption of this 
resolution. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of June 2022. 
 
  
                         

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 150 of 290



RES. NO. 8153 

7 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8153, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

    
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 151 of 290



ATTACHMENT B 

 

Draft 2021-2029 Housing Element 

 

Available on City Website  

sfcity.org/community-development/ 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 152 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/


ATTACHMENT B 

 

2021-2029 Housing Element 

(Pages with Redline Changes Only) 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 153 of 290



  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

SAN FERNANDO, CA 

HOUSING 
ELEMENT  
DRAFT – May 12, 2022 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Community Development Department  
117 Macneil Street,  
San Fernando, CA 91340  
(818) 898-1227  

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 154 of 290



171 City of San Fernando | 2021 9 Housing Element 

9. TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

The State requires that transitional and supportive housing be treated as residential uses. Additionally, AB 2162 
requires supportive housing projects of 50 units or fewer to be permitted by right in zones where multi-family 
and mixed-use developments are permitted, when the development meets certain conditions. The bill prohibits 
minimum parking requirements for supportive housing within a half mile of a public transit stop. 

2021-2029 Objectives: 

• Amend the Zoning Code to clarify where transitional and supportive housing developments are
permitted by right by October 15, 2024.

• Amend the Zoning Code to eliminate parking requirements for supportive housing within 0.5 miles of
a public transit stop by right by October 15, 2024.

Funding Source: General Fund 

Responsible Agency: Community Development Department 

Time Frame:  Revise the Zoning Code by December 31, 2023. 

10. LOW BARRIER NAVIGATION CENTERS

AB 101 requires cities to allow a Low Barrier Navigation Center as a use by right in areas zoned for mixed uses 
and nonresidential zones that permit multi-family uses if they meet specified requirements. Low Barrier 
Navigation Centers may include options such as allowing pets, permitting partners to share living space, and 
providing storage for residents’ possessions.  

AB 139 changes the way local governments can regulate parking requirements for emergency shelters. Local 
governments may include parking requirements for emergency shelters specifying that adequate parking must 
be provided for shelter staff, but overall parking requirements for shelters may not exceed the requirements 
for residential and nonresidential uses in the same zone. 

2021-2029 Objectives: 

• Amend the Zoning Code to allow Low Barrier Navigation Centers by right in areas zoned for mixed use 
and nonresidential zones permitting multi-family uses by October 15, 2024.

• Amend the Zoning Code to meet the parking requirements set out in AB 139 by October 15, 2024.

Funding Source: General Fund 

Responsible Agency: Community Development Department 

Time Frame: Revise the Zoning Code by December 31, 2024.  

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2024

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 155 of 290



172 City of San Fernando | 2021 9 Housing Element 

  

  

  

 

11. EMPLOYEE AND FARMWORKER HOUSING  

The Zoning Code currently does not address the requirements of the Employee Housing Act, specifically the 
following:  

• Employee housing for six or fewer employees is considered and permitted similarly as a single-family 
residential use. 

• Amend Zoning Code to remove agricultural uses from the M-1 and M-2 zones.  

2021-2029 Objectives: 

• Amend the Zoning Code to comply with the Employee Housing Act by October 15, 2024. 

Funding Source: General Fund 

Responsible Agency: Community Development Department 

Time Frame: Revise the Zoning Code by December 31, 2024.  

 

12. EFFICIENT PROJECT REVIEW UNDER SB35 

The City will develop an application form, checklist, and written policy or project review and approval guidelines 
to specify a SB 35 (2017) streamlining approval process and standards for projects as set forth under 
Government Code §65913.4 and consistent with HCD’s updated Streamlined Ministerial Approval Process 
Guidelines. 

2021-2029 Objectives: 

• Develop and make available on the City’s website a SB35 eligibility checklist and application form. 
• Develop Objective Development Standards 

Funding Source: General Fund 

Responsible Agency: Community Development Department 

Time Frame: Completed and posted by December 31, 2023. 

 

13. HOMELESS PLAN 

The City will create a Housing Division and hire a Housing Coordinator to focus on housing related matters, 
such as affordable housing, homelessness, and community outreach. The new division will explore funding 
opportunities to support affordable housing development and rehabilitation and provide outreach and 
education around the services the City, the County of Los Angeles, and other regional organizations provide. 

2021-2029 Objectives: 

• Create a Housing Division and hire a Housing Coordinator. 
• Develop a Homeless Plan 

Funding Source: General Fund 

Responsible Agency: Community Development Department 

December 31, 2024

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 156 of 290



ATTACHMENT C 

 

Updated Safety Element 

 

Available on City Website  

sfcity.org/community-development/ 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 157 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/


ATTACHMENT C 

 

Updated Safety Element 

(Pages with Redline Changes Only) 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 158 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 159 of 290



 

36 | P a g e  

Policy 11.2. Program Support: Support programs that reduce congestion and vehicle trips such as the 
promotion of “Spare the Air” days. 

Policy 11.3. Land Use Planning: Plan land uses to minimize exposure to toxic air pollutant emissions from 
industrial and other sources. 

Policy 11.4. Particulate Matter: Reduce particulate matter emissions by prioritizing city-wide vehicle mile 
reduction measures. 

Policy 11.5. Energy Emissions: Support efforts by the South Coast Air Quality Management District and 
public utility providers to reduce emissions from energy consumption. 

Policy 11.6. Increased Accessibility: Improve accessibility for the City’s residents to places of 
employment, commercial centers, and other establishments. 

Policy 11.7. Alternative Transportation Facilities: Ensure that new development incorporates facilities 
and features that support active and multi-modal transportation, including pedestrian, bicycle, transit, and 
alternative fuel vehicle facilities. 

Policy 11.8. Transit Oriented Development: Promote Transit Oriented Development (TOD) across the 
city by requiring trip reduction, alternative transit, and congestion management measures for discretionary 
projects. 

8. PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES AND CRIME PREVENTION 

GOAL 12.0 
San Fernando provides adequate emergency response and public safety services for the 
community’s needs with a focus on community-based crime prevention and emergency 
preparedness. 

Objective 

To maintain superior emergency services in the city in order to limit preventable safety concerns and reduce 
crime. 

POLICY 
Policy 12.1. Police Staffing: Regularly monitor and review the level of police staffing to maintain sufficient 
levels of City law enforcement services and facilities to serve community needs.  

Policy 12.2. Crime Tracking: Periodically track crime rates and prevalent incident types in the community 
to ensure resources are allocated appropriately to address the city-specific crime context. 

Policy 12.3. Response Times: Address traffic congestion in areas that have been identified as being 
detrimental to achieving targeted emergency response times.  

Policy 12.5. Staff Emergency Preparedness: Staff performing public safety services and emergency 
response duties will undergo regular trainings to fulfill their obligations. Staff will conduct emergency drills 
in partnership with the City of Los Angeles Fire Department and the community.[KK1] 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 160 of 290



 

37 | P a g e  

Policy 12.4. Community-Oriented: Continue to foster positive, peaceful, mutually supportive relationships 
between San Fernando residents and the police.  

Policy 12.5. Recreation and Youth: Encourage development and operation of community and recreational 
facilities as a pre-emptive strategy to reduce youth-related crime. Expand opportunities for positive law 
enforcement and youth interaction. 

Policy 12.6. Construction and Road Maintenance: Actively maintain the City’s transportation 
infrastructure to ensure safe conditions for pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles, and prioritize improvements 
that increase safety for all modes of travel. Coordinate transportation construction projects to limit 
congestion and avoid unsafe conditions and disseminate project information on a regular basis to affected 
community members. 

GOAL 13.0 
The San Fernando community prioritizes the safety of residents, visitors and businesses designing 
the built environment to reduce opportunities for criminal activity. 

Objective 

To maintain a well-designed community environment in a manner that fosters safety and community well-
being. 

POLICY 
Policy 13.1. Design Strategies: Encourage the use of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design 
(CPTED) principles in the design of projects and buildings. 

Policy 13.2. Retrofitting: Retrofit City-owned public spaces, including parks, parking lots, and public 
facilities with adequate lighting and natural surveillance landscaping to limit criminal activity holistically. 

Policy 13.3. Signage: Require residences and businesses to maintain visible and clearly legible signs 
and/or street numbers to shorten the response times of emergency personnel. 

9. ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE 

GOAL 14.0 
The San Fernando community are meaningfully engaged in public decision-making processes, have 
equitable access to public facilities, healthy foods, clean air and water, and safe homes, and experience 
positive health outcomes. 

Civic and Community Engagement 

Objective 
 Increase the number and diversity of community members engaged in local decision-making processes 

by instituting equitable engagement strategies. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 161 of 290



 

46 | P a g e  

Program 
Number Implementation Measure or Program Priority 

Time Frame 
(Short, 
Intermediate, 
Long) Responsibility 

Funding 
Needs 
(Low, 
Medium, 
High) 

Public Safety Services  
42 Police Department Staffing Ratio. Work with 

the police department to establish a concrete 
resource needs determination to sustain 
minimum staffing levels. 

High Short Term Police 
Department, 
City Manager’s 
Office 

Low 

43 Staff Training. Implement regular trainings for 
staff including: damage assessment protocols, 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 
operations, Standardized Emergency 
Management System, and Incident Command 
System protocols and operations. 

High Long Term Police 
Department, 
City Manager’s 
Office 

Medium 

44 Emergency Drills. Conduct emergency drills 
in partnership with schools, recreational 
providers, and others to improve emergency 
preparedness, particularly for the most 
vulnerable community members.  

High Long Term Police 
Department,  

Low 

453 Crime Prevention Design. Update zoning 
code to ensure that site design and planning 
techniques that reduce the potential for 
criminal activity (e.g., CPTED) are included. 

Medium Short Term Police 
Department, 
Building & 
Safety Division, 
Planning 
Division 

Medium 

464 Traffic Study. Conduct a traffic study and 
develop a traffic mitigation strategy in areas 
where response time targets are not achieved 
due to congestion. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Police 
Department 

Medium 

475 Community and Recreational Programs. 
Establish/expand community and after-school 
programming for at-risk youth. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Recreation and 
Community 
Services 

Medium 

Environmental Justice – Civic and Community Engagement  
486 Equitable Engagement Toolkit. Develop an 

equitable engagement toolkit for City staff that 
establishes strategic engagement practices 
tailored to the diversity needs of San 
Fernando. 

High Short Term City Manager’s 
Office 

Low 

497 Annual Training. Require all City staff to 
undergo annual diversity and equity training 
as part of an effort to improve community 
accessibility and empower historically 
disenfranchised groups. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

City Manager’s 
Office 

Medium 

5048 ESL Workshops. Host a series of City-
sponsored English as a Second language 
(ESL) workshops focused on writing, 
speaking, and vocabulary for the English 
language. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Recreation and 
Community 
Services 

Medium 

Environmental Justice – Access to Public Facilities and Healthy Foods  
49 Park Maintenance. Develop a park 

maintenance program that comprehensively 
assesses the quality of City parks and 
establishes plans for amenity improvement. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Recreation and 
Community 
Services 

Medium 

50 Sidewalk Inventory. Develop an ongoing 
inventory of current sidewalk conditions and 
the sidewalk network availability. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Public Works Low 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 162 of 290



 

47 | P a g e  

Program 
Number Implementation Measure or Program Priority 

Time Frame 
(Short, 
Intermediate, 
Long) Responsibility 

Funding 
Needs 
(Low, 
Medium, 
High) 

51 Sidewalk Conditions. Establish a priority-
based program for addressing identified 
deficiencies in the sidewalk network, as 
identified in the inventory of sidewalk 
conditions.  

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Public Works Low 

52 Implementation Plan. Address identified 
sidewalk deficiencies within the Safe and 
Active Streets Implementation Plan. 

Medium Intermediate 
Term 

Public Works High 

53 Healthy Foods. Apply for grant programs to 
support increasing access to healthy foods for 
existing local retailers and community service 
providers.  

Medium Long Term Planning 
Division, 
Recreation and 
Community 
Services 

Medium 

54 Recruit Grocer Retailers. Explore 
public/private partnerships with grocers and 
other innovative strategies to increase access 
to healthy foods in San Fernando. 

Medium Long Term Recreation and 
Community 
Services, City 
Manager’s 
Office 

Medium 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 163 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 164 of 290



Safety Element 14 Existing Conditions Report 

 

 

5. PEAK LOAD WATER 
DEMAND 

The existing water supplies available to the city include local groundwater extracted from the Sylmar 
Groundwater Basin. The City also has access to imported water from the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) 
as an emergency connection, and from the City of Los Angeles to be accessed only in extreme 
emergencies. The Sylmar Groundwater basin has been adjudicated, and the City of San Fernando has a 
current allotted draw from the basin of 3,570 acre-feet per year.6 Additionally, the City has the right to 
receive stored water credit in the Sylmar Basin. In addition to these sources, the City of San Fernando 2021 
Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) discusses alternate water sources such as recycled stormwater, 
greywater (water used from bathroom sinks, showers, tubs, and washing machines), and desalinated 
seawater, as well as plans for reactivating one of the City’s inactive ground wells to increase groundwater 
production capabilities.7 

The 2020 UWMP includes a Water Shortage Contingency Plan. The City is allotted 3,570-acre feet per 
year (AFY), which is below the natural safe yield of the Sylmar Basin estimated at approximately 7,140 
AFY54. By 2030, the city is expected to have 629 AFY of available imported water from Metropolitan Water 
District and 3,570 AFY available from the Sylmar Basin. The 2030 supply (4,199 AFY) is expected to exceed 
2030 demand (2,960 AFY) by 1,239 AFY. MWD’s 2020 UWMP finds that MWD can meet full service 
demands of its member agencies with existing supplies from 2025 through 2045 during normal years, single 
dry year, and multiple dry years. Prolonged dry periods may impact the City's imported water supply 
capacities significantly due to reductions in MWD's storage reservoirs resulting from increases in regional 
demand. 

The City of San Fernando Water Production Division is responsible for the operation and maintenance of 
the City’s four water wells, three booster pump stations, four reservoirs, and two pressure regulation 
stations. The current storage capacity for potable water across the City’s four reservoirs is approximately 
8.9 million gallons (MG). Peak day demand for the city as of 2008 was approximately 7.3 million gallons, or 
82 percent of total storage capacity8. The City of San Fernando did not purchase any water during the 
window of peak demand from May 1st through September 30th during 2017, 2018, or 2019,9 indicating that 
the City was able to supply enough water to meet peak demand during those years. The City of San 
Fernando is a member agency of the MWD but does not rely on imported water on a regular basis. The 
City purchased water from MWD in 2015. ; however, the last year the City purchased imported water from 
MWD was 2014 in the amount of 110 AF, and the City purchased no water at all from MWD during the 
period of 2015-2020. In 2022, San Fernando shut down one of the City’s wells due to changes in nitrate 
levels and imported water from MWD as a temporary measure until a nitrate removal treatment system is 
installed10.   

                                                                                 
6 City of San Fernando Urban Water Management Plan. 2020. https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/San-
Fernando_2020-UWMP_Public-Draft_2021-06-02.pdf Accessed 10/5/21 
7 Greywater Action. 2021. https://greywateraction.org/greywater-
reuse/#:~:text=Greywater%20is%20gently%20used%20water,and%20certain%20household%20cleaning%20products. Accessed 
10/8/2021 
8 City of San Fernando 2013-2021 Housing Element. 2014. https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Adopted-
2013-2021-Housing-Element-1.21.20141.pdf Accessed 9/30/21 
9 Metropolitan Water District Urban Water Management Plan. 2020. https://www.mwdh2o.com/media/21641/2020-urban-water-
management-plan-june-2021.pdf Accessed 9/30/21 
10 City of San Fernando.  2022.  City Council and Successor Agency to the San Fernando Redevelopment Agency. Regular Meeting 
Agenda Summary. Monday, April 18, 202 – 6:00 PM.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 165 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 166 of 290



Environmental Justice Technical Report 8 Background Setting 

 

 

Water pollution is also a present source of pollution within the census tracts in San Fernando. For two of 
the four census tracts within the city, the drinking water pollution exposure indicator was measured to be 
higher than 75 percent of all census tracts in California. The drinking water exposure indicator is an index 
score combining information about 13 water contaminants and two types of water quality violations that are 
sometimes found when taking drinking water samples. 

San Fernando contains hazardous material sites such as LUST sites, contaminated groundwater sites 
under the jurisdiction of the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Site Cleanup Program, and 
hazardous sites under the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Site Cleanup 
Program. There are 19 open or active cleanup sites in the city that have not been remediated or closed and 
15 closed sites. A map of the hazardous material sites is provided in the Safety Element Update, Existing 
Conditions Report as Figure 7.  

B. Public Facilities 
3.B.1 Parks and Open Space 
Adequate access to public facilities is a factor that may impact the general wellbeing and health of a 
community. Parks and open spaces are critical public facilities that enable communities to participate in 
physical exercise and social engagement. According to the California Department of Parks and Recreation, 
in San Fernando approximately 98 percent of the population live within walking distance (half-mile) of a 
park. The City’s adopted Parks and Recreation Master Plan mapped a 0.5-mile service area radius around 
each park and recreation facility to identify areas of the city that may be underserviced (Figure 5). The 
spatial distribution of parks and recreation in the city is even across the community, with the exception of 
residential areas located in the northwestern and southeastern corners. The City’s Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan also calculated that the city’s current ratio of parkland per 1,000 residents is 0.75 acres. This 
is significantly lower than the typical park and recreation ratio of 9.5 acres/1,000 residents found nationally, 
according to agencies surveyed by the National Recreation and Park Association Agency. The measures 
outlined above indicate that the spatial distribution of parks within the city is adequate for community 
accessibility, however local parks may be overburdened as the number of parks relative to the population 
size is below the nationwide average.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 167 of 290



Environmental Justice Technical Report 10 Background Setting 

 

 

3.B.2 Roads, Bicycle, Transit, and Pedestrian Facilities 
Safe roads, bicycle, transit, and pedestrian facilities are also critical in promoting the health of a community 
and serve to prevent injury or fatalities associated with collisions. The design and maintenance of streets, 
sidewalks, and intersections can help to reduce the severity of collisions that could occur. According to the 
Healthy Places Index Tool, in San Fernando, one out of four census tracts has a higher average rate of 
severe and fatal injuries than 74 percent of other California census tracts. The San Fernando Safe and 
Active Streets Plan (2017) evaluates the conditions and locations of various collisions throughout the city. 
According to most recent data available at the time the plan was prepared, 41 pedestrian-vehicle collisions 
and 29 bicycle-vehicle collisions occurred from 2009 to 2013. According to the SafeTREC Transportation 
Injury Mapping System (TIMS), 8.25 percent of crashes in the City of San Fernando involved a collision 
with a pedestrian.  Table 1 below displays the crash type data for the year 2018 in San Fernando.  

Table 1 SafeTREC Crash Type Statistics for San Fernando (2018) 
Type of Crash Count Percent (%) 
Not Stated 1 1.03 
Head-On 9 9.28 
Sideswipe 8 8.25 
Rear End 13 13.40 
Broadside 50 51.55 
Hit Object 4 4.12 
Overturned 2 2.06 
Vehicle/Pedestrian 8 8.25 
Other 2 2.06 

The City developed the Safe and Active Streets Plan in 2017. The plan aims to bolster active transportation 
throughout the community by improving pedestrian and bicycle safety for the future of San Fernando 
streets. 

3.B.3 Tree Canopy 
Tree canopy is a natural public amenity that can serve to promote walkability, improve heat protection, and 
mitigate pollution within an area. The San Fernando City Council recently adopted a ‘Strategic Goal’ to plant 
2,000 trees between 2022 and 2027. This goal is supported through multiple efforts, including the Calles 
Verdes tree planting program in partnership with TreePeople and the California State Coastal Conservancy. 
Currently, San Fernando neighborhoods have less than 17 percent tree cover, which is less than half the 
average of higher-income communities in the Los Angeles region. The Calles Verdes initiative aims to grow 
the city tree inventory by more than 10 percent. Improving the tree canopy within the city would allow for 
increased physical activity better overall health, and less type 2 diabetes, high blood pressure, asthma1 
and reduced pollution burden across the city. The City also prioritizes increased tree canopy through the 
Urban Forest Management Plan. The plan aims to improve air quality and expand native habitat in the 
community through greening efforts. Expanding San Fernando’s tree canopy would improve climate 
resiliency and would allow for increased physical activity and improve the overall health of the community. 

3.B.4 Broadband Internet 
Broadband internet is a public facility that improves economic outcomes for both individuals and 
communities by allowing for expanded information and educational access. Individuals without access to 
the internet may be limited by the inability to access critical information that is published in online platforms. 
According to the U.S. Census, 2015-2019 American Community Survey, approximately 21 percent of 
households in San Fernando do not have access to a broadband internet superscription. This is slightly 
higher percentage of households than in the City of Los Angeles which had approximately 17 percent of 
                                                                                 
1 https://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/pubs/journals/pnw_2016_ulmer001.pdf 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 168 of 290



Environmental Justice Technical Report 11 Background Setting 

 

 

households without broadband internet superscription. Approximately 13 percent of San Fernando 
households lack a computer in the home, while 8 percent of Los Angeles households lacked a computer. 
In response to gaps in broadband internet access, the California Broadband Council has developed a 
“Broadband for All” plan in 2020 which focuses on achieving high-performance broadband at home, 
schools, libraries, and businesses in order to provide access to all Californians.  

Public Wi-Fi hotspots are internet access points which allow public users to connect to broadband internet 
using a digital device outside of the home. According to the County of Los Angeles, there are six Wi-Fi 
hotspot access points within San Fernando. These access points include public facilities that offer internet 
accessibility and commercial facilities that offer public hotspots. Sufficient availability of Wi-Fi hotspots 
within a community enables residents without personal home broadband to access the internet at key 
locations outside of the home. Improving internet accessibility for residents of San Fernando may contribute 
to increased educational attainment and improved economic outcomes. 

C. Safe and Sanitary Homes 
Access to safe and sanitary homes is critical to the general health of a community. Poor quality housing, 
resulting from structural aging, overcrowding, or landlord neglect, may expose community members to 
contaminants and health hazards that can impact life expectancy. Communities with a high housing burden 
are more likely to be impacted by the effects of unsafe homes. This is a result of multiple factors associated 
with financial burden, including inability to afford necessary upgrades, increased likelihood of overcrowding, 
and lack of tenant agency associated with income. The housing burden in San Fernando is relatively high, 
with over 60 percent of renters spending more than 30 percent of their income on housing. Additionally, 
San Fernando has a higher rate of overcrowding and severe overcrowding than the general Southern 
California Association Governments region, with 24 percent of rental units occupied by more than one 
person per room and 11 percent of rental units occupied by more than 1.5 persons per room. The extent of 
the overcrowding and housing burden within San Fernando may indicate an issue regarding the safety and 
sanitation of homes within the city. Promoting safe and sanitary home environments within San Fernando 
can significantly improve the wellbeing and health outcomes of community members.  

The City is establishing a Housing Division within the Community Development Department to implement 
new local housing programs, including a Rehabilitation Loan Program. The goal of the division is to improve 
housing conditions and quality of life for low-income households within San Fernando. 

D. Physical Activity, Food Access, 
and Public Health 

Communities with higher pollution exposure and a lack of access to resources (public facilities, safe and 
sanitary homes, tree canopy) may have poorer health outcomes as a result of these issues. Improving the 
environmental context of these communities can serve to bolster health outcomes and longevity. Asthma 
and low birth weight are both negative health outcomes associated with pollution and access. Asthma is 
also associated with lack of neighborhood tree cover. Within San Fernando, the asthma rate across all 
census tracts is within the 80th to 90th percentile. This means that the San Fernando community has a higher 
rate of asthma than over 80 percent of all census tracts in California. In addition, low birth weight is also 
significantly high across most of the census tracts in the city, with three out of four census tracts ranking in 
the 77 percentile or higher for low birthweight. Addressing pollution concerns in San Fernando can improve 
the measured disparity in health outcomes in the city relative to state levels. 

Having access to a nearby supermarket can encourage a healthier diet and eating behaviors, lower the 
costs of obtaining food, reduce chronic diseases, and lower the risk of food insecurity. Hundreds of studies 
have documented that people who live close to a supermarket have healthier diets and better health 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 169 of 290



ATTACHMENT D 

 

Mitigated Negative Declaration & 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

 

Available on City Website  

sfcity.org/community-development/ 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 170 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/


ATTACHMENT “E” 

Summary of Changes in State Housing Laws 

1. Affordable Housing Streamlined Approval Process - SB 35 (2017), AB 168, and AB 831.  These
bills support a streamlined, ministerial review process for qualifying multifamily, urban infill
projects in jurisdictions that have failed to approve housing projects sufficient to meet their
state‐mandated RHNA.

2. Additional Housing Element Sites Analysis Requirements - AB 879 (2017) and AB 1397 (2017).
These bills require additional analysis and justification of the sites included in the sites
inventory of the City’s Housing Element.

3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing - AB 686 (2017).  AB 686 requires the City to administer
its housing programs and activities in a manner to affirmatively further fair housing and not
take any action that is inconsistent with this obligation.

4. No-Net-Loss Zoning - SB 166 (2017).  SB 166 amended the No‐Net‐Loss rule to require that
the land inventory and site identification programs in the Housing Element include sufficient
sites to accommodate any unmet RHNA, should it exist. The San Fernando sites inventory far
exceeds the City’s RHNA, allowing for additional sites to be used for additional housing units
as needed.

5. Safety Element to Address Adaptation and Resilience - SB 1035 (2018).  SB 1035 requires the
General Plan Safety Element to be reviewed and revised to include any new information on
fire hazards, flood hazards, and climate adaptation and resiliency strategies with each
revision of the Housing Element.

6. By Right Transitional and Permanent Supportive Housing - AB 2162 (2018) and AB 101 (2019).
AB 2162 requires the City to change its Zoning Code to provide a “by right” process and
expedited review for supportive housing. Additionally, AB 101 requires that a Low Barrier
Navigation Center development be an allowed use by right in mixed-use zones and
nonresidential zones permitting multi-family uses if it meets specified requirements.

7. Accessory Dwelling Units - AB 2299 (2016), SB 1069 (2016), AB 494 (2017), SB 229 (2017), AB
68 (2019), AB 881 (2019), AB 587 (2019), SB 13 (2019), AB 670 (2019), AB 671 (2019), and AB
3182 (2020).  The 2016 and 2017 updates to State law included changes pertaining to the
allowed size of accessory dwelling units (ADU’s), permitting ADUs by right in at least some
areas of a jurisdiction, and limits on parking requirements related to ADUs. More recent bills
reduce the time to review and approve ADU applications to 60 days, remove lot size and
replacement parking space requirements, and require local jurisdictions to permit junior
ADUs.

8. Density Bonus - AB 1763 (2019) and AB 2345 (2020).  AB 1763 amended California’s density
bonus law to authorize significant development incentives to encourage 100 percent
affordable housing projects, allowing developments with 100 percent affordable housing
units to receive an 80 percent density bonus from the otherwise maximum allowable density

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 171 of 290



on the site. AB 2345 created additional density bonus incentives for affordable housing units 
provided in a housing development project. It also requires that the annual housing report 
include information regarding density bonuses that were granted. 

9. Housing Crisis Act of 2019 - SB 330.  SB 330 enacts changes to local development policies,
permitting, and processes that will be in effect through January 1, 2025. Recent updates to
this act include the proposed SB 8 (2019), which would extend the operation of SB 330 until
January 1, 2030.

10. Surplus Land Act Amendments - AB 1486 and AB 1255 (2019).  AB 1486 refines the Surplus
Land Act to provide clarity and further enforcement to increase the supply of affordable
housing. AB 1255 requires the City to create a central inventory of surplus and excess public
land each year. The City is required to transmit the inventory to the California Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) and to provide the list to the public upon
request.

11. Housing Impact Fee Data - AB 1483 (2019).  AB 1483 requires the City to publicly share
information about zoning ordinances, development standards, fees, exactions, and
affordability requirements.

12. Emergency and Transitional Housing Act of 2019 - AB 139 (2019).  AB 139 established new
criteria for evaluating the needs of the homeless population. 

13. Standardization of Sites Inventory Analysis and Reporting - SB 6 (2019).  SB 6 requires the City
to electronically submit the sites inventory to HCD starting in 2021. 

14. Evacuation Routes - SB 99 and AB 747 (2019).  AB 747 and SB 99, require the General Plan
Safety Element to be updated to identify evacuation routes and their capacity, safety, and
viability under a range of emergency scenarios and to include information identifying
residential developments in hazard areas that do not have at least two emergency evacuation
routes.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 172 of 290



Proposed New/Enhanced Programs for 2021-2029 Housing Element 

1. FACILITATE AFFORDABLE AND SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING DEVELOPMENT.  Enhance existing
program to encourage and facilitate affordable and special needs housing through removal
of regulatory constraints and by further supporting and guiding applicants through the
administrative process. This is an ongoing program throughout the housing cycle.

2. CONSERVATION OF EXISTING AND FUTURE AFFORDABLE UNITS.  Monitor the status of the
existing and future affordable rental housing stock in San Fernando. This is an ongoing
program throughout the housing cycle.

3. REMOVAL OF GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRAINTS. Continue to monitor Federal and State
legislation and minimize governmental constraints to the development, improvement, and
maintenance of housing.  This program must be completed by December 2024.

4. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT EXPANSION. Establish a Housing Division in the
Community Development Department for planning, developing, coordinating, and
implementing the City's housing and homeless related services and program, assisting the
public in affordable housing development, financing, landlord/tenant services, and other
related programs and services.  This is an ongoing program throughout the housing cycle.

5. SECTION 8 RENTAL SUBSIDIES PROGRAM.  Expand the program contracted through a
cooperative agreement with the County of Los Angeles Community Development
Commission.  The program must be implemented by December 31, 2023 and ongoing
throughout the housing cycle.

6. AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING.  Expand the range of housing opportunities
provided in San Fernando, including housing for seniors on fixed incomes, lower and
moderate-income residents (including extremely low-income households), the disabled,
large families, female-headed households with children, and the homeless.  This is an
ongoing program throughout the housing cycle.

7. ADEQUATE HOUSING OPPORTUNITY SITES FOR RHNA. To implement the Housing Element,
the City is required to approve amendments to the Zoning Code and adjust the zoning
designation of select parcels.  This program must be completed by October 15, 2022.

8. BY-RIGHT APPROVAL OF PROJECTS WITH 20 PERCENT AFFORDABLE UNITS PER AB 1397.
Amend Zoning Code to allow by-right approval of housing development that includes 20
percent affordable units to lower income households.  This program must be implemented
by December 31, 2023.

9. MONITOR RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY PER SB 166.  Monitor the consumption of residential
acreage to ensure an adequate inventory is available to meet the City’s RHNA obligations.

ATTACHMENT "F"

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 173 of 290



This program must be implemented by December 31, 2023 and monitor throughout the 
housing cycle. 

 
10. NO NET LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY TO ACCOMMODATE RHNA PER SB 166. Develop a 

process to track the number of housing units within the city.  This program must be 
implemented by December 31, 2023 and monitor throughout the housing cycle.  

 
11. REPLACEMENT UNIT PROGRAM PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65915, SUBDIVISION 

(C)(3).  Adopt a policy requiring replacement housing units on sites identified in the site 
inventory when a new development (residential, mixed-use, or non-residential) occurs.    This 
program must be implemented by December 31, 2024 and monitor throughout the housing 
cycle.  

 
12. LOT CONSOLIDATION. Promote lot consolidation provisions and incentives to facilitate 

development of small lots and adjust incentives or utilize other strategies as appropriate. This 
program must be implemented by December 31, 2024 and monitor throughout the housing 
cycle.   

 
13. DENSITY BONUS UPDATE. Update the City Density Bonus Ordinance to align with State 

Density Bonus law and to include objective design standards and incentives for community-
focused designs to facilitate development of deed-restricted affordable housing units.  This 
program must be completed by December 31, 2024.   

 
14. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS (ADU) ORDINANCE UPDATE AND PROGRAM. Amend City ADU 

regulations to align with current State mandates and continue to distribute informational 
handouts and brochures to the public at City Hall and on the City’s website.  This program 
must be completed by October 15, 2023.  

 
15. TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING.  Amend the Zoning Code to align with State law 

by identifying where transitional and supportive housing are permitted by right and to 
eliminate parking requirements for supportive housing within 0.5 miles of a public transit 
stop. This program must be completed by October 15, 2024.   

 
16. LOW BARRIER NAVIGATION CENTERS. Amend the Zoning Code to allow Low Barrier 

Navigation Centers to be developed by right in areas zoned for mixed-use and nonresidential 
zones where multi-family uses are allowed and appropriate parking.  This program must be 
completed by October 15, 2024.  

 
17. EMPLOYEE AND FARMWORKER HOUSING.  Amend the Zoning Code to permit employee 

housing for six or fewer employees as a single-family residential use and to remove 
agricultural uses from the M-1 and M-2 zones.  This program must be completed by October 
15, 2024.  

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 174 of 290



18. SB 35 PROJECT REVIEW.   Develop an application form, checklist, written policy of project 
review, and approval guidelines to streamline approval process and standards for projects as 
set forth under Government Code §65913.4 and consistent with HCD’s updated Streamlined 
Ministerial Approval Process Guidelines.  This program must be completed by December 21, 
2023.   

 
19. HOMELESS PLAN.  Create a new Housing Division and hire a Housing Coordinator to focus on 

housing related matters, such as affordable housing, homelessness, community outreach and 
education, and funding opportunities to support affordable housing development and 
rehabilitation.  This program must be completed by December 31, 2024.  

 
20. CITY HALL REDEVELOPMENT STUDY.  Release a Request For Proposals (RFP) for a Site 

Redevelopment Study and potential public-private partnership for a future mixed-use 
development that will capitalize on the light rail stop that is planned for San Fernando in 2028. 
The RFP will state that City Hall will not be relocated, but staff will be temporary relocated 
during construction only.  RFP must be released by December 31, 2026.  

 
21. REMOVE SINGLE-FAMILY FROM MULTI-FAMILY ZONES.  Amend the Zoning Code to prohibit 

development of new single-family homes in the Multi-Family zoning districts. Existing single-
family homes will be permitted to remain.  This program must be completed by December 
31, 2024.   

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 175 of 290



STATE OF CALIFORNIA - BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
(916) 263-2911 / FAX (916) 263-7453
www.hcd.ca.gov

January 11, 2022 

Kanika Kith, Director 
Community Development Department 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Dear Kanika Kith: 

RE: City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle (2021-2029) Draft Housing Element 

Thank you for submitting the City of San Fernando’s (City) draft housing element 
received for review on November12, 2021. Pursuant to Government Code section 
65585, subdivision (b), the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) is reporting the results of its review.  

The draft element addresses many statutory requirements; however, revisions will be 
necessary to comply with State Housing Element Law (Article 10.6 of the Gov. Code). 
The enclosed Appendix describes the revisions needed to comply with State Housing 
Element Law.  

As a reminder, the City’s 6th cycle housing element was due October 15, 2021. As of 
today, the City has not completed the housing element process for the 6th cycle. The 
City’s 5th cycle housing element no longer satisfies statutory requirements. HCD 
encourages the City to revise the element as described above, adopt, and submit to 
HCD to regain housing element compliance. 

For your information, pursuant to Assembly Bill 1398 (Chapter 358, Statutes of 2021), if 
a local government fails to adopt a compliant housing element within 120 days of the 
statutory deadline (October 15, 2021), then any rezoning to accommodate the regional 
housing needs allocation (RHNA), including for lower-income households, shall be 
completed no later than one year from the statutory deadline. Otherwise, the local 
government’s housing element will no longer comply with State Housing Element Law, 
and HCD may revoke its finding of substantial compliance pursuant to Government 
Code section 65585, subdivision (i).  

Several federal, state, and regional funding programs consider housing element 
compliance as an eligibility or ranking criteria. For example, the CalTrans Senate Bill 

ATTACHMENT "G"
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 176 of 290

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/


Kanika Kith, Community Development Director 
Page 2 
 
 

 
(SB) 1 Sustainable Communities grant; the Strategic Growth Council and HCD’s 
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities programs; and HCD’s Permanent 
Local Housing Allocation consider housing element compliance and/or annual reporting 
requirements pursuant to Government Code section 65400. With a compliant housing 
element, the City will meet housing element requirements for these and other funding 
sources.  
 
For your information, some general plan element updates are triggered by housing 
element adoption. HCD reminds the City to consider timing provisions and welcomes 
the opportunity to provide assistance. For information, please see the Technical 
Advisories issued by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research at: 
http://opr.ca.gov/docs/OPR_Appendix_C_final.pdf and 
http://opr.ca.gov/docs/Final_6.26.15.pdf.  
 
HCD appreciates the City’s dedication and cooperation in the housing element update. 
We are committed to assisting the City in addressing all statutory requirements of State 
Housing Element Law. If you have any questions, please contact Gerlinde Bernd, of our 
staff, at Gerlinde.Bernd@hcd.ca.gov.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Paul McDougall 
Senior Program Manager 
 
 
Enclosure

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 177 of 290

http://opr.ca.gov/docs/OPR_Appendix_C_final.pdf
http://opr.ca.gov/docs/Final_6.26.15.pdf
mailto:Gerlinde.Bernd@hcd.ca.gov


 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 1 
January 11, 2022 

APPENDIX 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

 
The following changes are necessary to bring the City’s housing element into compliance with 
Article 10.6 of the Government Code. Accompanying each recommended change, we cite the 
supporting section of the Government Code.  
 
Housing element technical assistance information is available on HCD’s website at 
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/housing-element-
memos.shtml. Among other resources, the housing element section contains HCD’s latest 
technical assistance tool, Building Blocks for Effective Housing Elements (Building Blocks), 
available at http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/index.shtml and 
includes the Government Code addressing State Housing Element Law and other resources. 

 
 

A. Housing Needs, Resources, and Constraints 
 
1. Affirmatively further[ing] fair housing (AFFH) in accordance with Chapter 15 

(commencing with Section 8899.50) of Division 1 of Title 2…shall include an 
assessment of fair housing in the jurisdiction. (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (c)(10)(A).) 
 
Public Outreach: The element provides a brief discussion of community outreach 
conducted in Chapter V.B.1. but it generally does not address affirmatively furthering 
fair housing (AFFH) requirements. While AFFH outreach can be conducted with the 
other portions of the housing element, it must also be specific to AFFH. For example, 
the outreach could specifically target fair housing organizations or neighborhoods with 
relatively concentrated poverty for input related to housing and community development 
needs and access to opportunities such as education and transportation. 
 
Assessment of Fair Housing: The element reports and maps data on some components 
of the assessment of fair housing (e.g., segregation and integration, disparities in 
access to opportunity) but it must also analyze the information, such as evaluating 
patterns, trends, conditions and circumstances, coincidence with other components of 
the assessment of fair housing and the effectiveness of past and current strategies to 
promote inclusive and equitable communities. This analysis should be complemented 
by local data and knowledge, including input from commenters, and other relevant 
factors as described below. 
 
Enforcement: The element mentions local capacity for fair housing education and 
outreach, but is should also address any trends and characteristics of fair housing 
complaints and enforcement. In addition, the element should address compliance with 
existing fair housing laws as well as any past or current fair housing lawsuits, findings, 
settlements, judgements, or complaints. Based on the outcomes of this evaluation, the 
element should summarize issues, identify contributing factors, and formulate meaningful 
goals and actions as described below.  
 
Sites Inventory and AFFH: The element includes some general discussion about the 
identification of adequate sites and affirmatively further fair housing but generally does 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 178 of 290

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/housing-element-memos.shtml
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/housing-element-memos.shtml
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/index.shtml


 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 2 
January 11, 2022 

not address this requirement. The analysis must examine sites by location, number of 
units by income group, impact of identified sites on existing patterns of socio-economic 
concentrations and any isolation of the RHNA by income group to determine whether 
sites improve or exacerbate conditions. The analysis should address all components of 
the assessment of fair housing (e.g., segregation and integration, disparities in access 
to opportunity and disproportionate housing needs including displacement). If sites 
exacerbate conditions, the element should identify further program actions that will be 
taken to promote inclusive communities and equitable quality of life throughout the 
community (e.g., new housing choices and affordability, anti-displacement, and place-
based community revitalization strategies). 
 
Local Data and Knowledge: The element should incorporate local data and knowledge 
of the jurisdiction into the AFFH section. To assist in meeting this requirement, the 
element should provide local data not captured in regional, state, or federal data 
analysis. For example, the element notes differences in the age of the housing stock, 
but it should incorporate information from the housing condition survey (p. 25) to better 
evaluate difference in housing conditions to formulate appropriate policies and 
programs. Also, the element points out differences in neighborhoods by income group 
but should supplement that data with local knowledge such as housing conditions or 
other factors that indicate differences in quality of life.    
 
Other Relevant Factors: The element must include other relevant factors that contribute 
to fair housing issues in the jurisdiction. The element should analyze historical land use, 
zoning, governmental and nongovernmental spending, including transportation 
investments, demographic trends, historical patterns of segregation, or other information 
that may have impeded housing choices and mobility.  
 
Contributing Factors: The element should re-assess and, particularly, prioritize 
contributing factors upon completion of the analysis and make revisions as appropriate.  
 
Goals, Actions, Metrics, and Milestones: Goals and actions must create meaningful 
impact to overcome contributing factors to fair housing issues. Currently, programs are 
not sufficient to facilitate meaningful change and address AFFH requirements. Based on 
the outcomes of a complete analysis, the element must be revised to add or modify 
goals and actions accordingly. Goals and actions must specifically respond to the 
analysis and to the identified and prioritized contributing factors to fair housing issues 
and must be significant and meaningful enough to overcome identified patterns and 
trends. Actions must have metrics and milestones as appropriate and must address 
housing mobility enhancement, new housing choices and affordability in high 
opportunity areas, place-based strategies for community preservation and revitalization 
and displacement protection. For further guidance, please visit HCD’s Affirmatively 
Furthering Fair Housing in California webpage at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-
development/affh/index.shtml.  
 

2. Include an analysis and documentation of household characteristics, including level of 
payment compared to ability to pay, housing characteristics, including overcrowding, 
and housing stock condition. (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (a)(2).)  
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 179 of 290

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/affh/index.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/affh/index.shtml


 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 3 
January 11, 2022 

Extremely Low-Income Households (ELI): While the element includes some basic 
information regarding ELI households such as the number of households, it must also 
include an analysis of their housing needs to better formulate policies and programs. 
For example, the element should analyze tenure, cost burden, and other household 
characteristics then examine the availability of resources to determine gaps in housing 
needs. For additional information, see the Building Blocks at 
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/housing-
needs/extremely-low-income-housing-needs.shtml. 
 

3. An inventory of land suitable and available for residential development, including vacant 
sites and sites having realistic and demonstrated potential for redevelopment during the 
planning period to meet the locality’s housing need for a designated income level, and 
an analysis of the relationship of zoning and public facilities and services to these sites. 
(Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (a)(3).)  
 
Parcel Listing: The element lists parcels by various factors such as size, zoning, general plan 
designation and existing use. However, the description of existing use is generic and should 
include sufficient detail to facilitate an analysis of the potential for addition development on 
nonvacant sites. For example, many sites describe existing uses as commercial by year built. 
Instead, the inventory could also describe condition, improvement to land value, vacancies, 
expiring leases, lack of improvements or other indicators of use turnover, expressed interest in 
residential development and an existing floor area 0.1 versus allowable floor area (e.g., 
“underutilization index”).  
 
Nonvacant Sites: While the element identifies nonvacant sites to accommodate the 
regional housing need for lower-income households, it must include a methodology that 
demonstrates the potential for additional development in the planning period. The 
methodology must consider factors including the extent to which existing uses may 
constitute an impediment to additional residential development, past experience with 
converting existing uses to higher density residential development, the current market 
demand for the existing use, an analysis of any existing leases or other contracts that 
would perpetuate the existing use or prevent redevelopment of the site for additional 
residential development, development trends, market conditions, and regulatory or other 
incentives or standards to encourage additional residential development on these sites. 
(Gov. Code, § 65583.2, subd. (g).) For example, the element describes factors utilized 
in identifying nonvacant sites, but it should also examine development trends and past 
experience to support these factors and relate those circumstances to identified sites. 
Additionally, the element should include some discussion on whether existing uses 
preclude redevelopment and how planned regulatory and other incentives, such as the 
mixed-use overlay, can encourage redevelopment.   
 
In addition, if the housing element relies upon nonvacant sites to accommodate more 
than 50 percent of the regional housing needs allocation (RHNA) for lower-income 
households, it must demonstrate existing uses are not an impediment to additional 
residential development and will likely discontinue in the planning period. (Gov. Code, § 
65583.2, subd. (g)(2).) Absent findings (e.g., adoption resolution) based on substantial 
evidence, the existing uses will be presumed to impede additional residential 
development and will not be utilized toward demonstrating adequate sites to 
accommodate the RHNA. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 180 of 290

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/housing-needs/extremely-low-income-housing-needs.shtml
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/housing-needs/extremely-low-income-housing-needs.shtml


 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 4 
January 11, 2022 

 
Realistic Capacity: The element (p. 67) mentions an assumption of 75 percent of 
maximum allowable densities to calculate residential capacity on identified sites. 
However, the element should include supporting information on typical densities of 
existing or approved residential developments at a similar affordability level. For 
example, the element mentions the calculation is based on recent projects, but it could 
list these projects by zone, acreage, built density, allowable density, level of affordability 
and presence of exceptions, such as a density bonus.   
 
In addition, the element appears to assume residential development on sites with zoning that 
allows 100 percent nonresidential uses. While the element mentions the mixed-use overlay, it 
must still account for the likelihood of nonresidential uses given base zoning. For example, the 
element could analyze all development activity in these nonresidential zones, how often 
residential development occurs and adjust residential capacity calculation, policies, and 
programs accordingly. The element should include analysis based on factors such as 
development trends, performance standards or other relevant factors.  
 
City-Owned Sites: The element should include a discussion of City-Owned sites (e.g., City 
Hall) identified to accommodate the RHNA. Specifically, the analysis should address 
whether existing uses impede additional development, any known conditions that preclude 
development in the planning period, the potential schedule for development and necessary 
actions to facilitate development (e.g., consolidation) as intended in the sites inventory. In 
addition, the housing element must include a description of whether there are any plans to 
dispose of the properties during the planning period and how the jurisdiction will comply 
with the Surplus Land Act (commencing with Government Code section 54220) and add or 
modify programs as appropriate.  
 
Environmental Constraints: While the element generally describes a few environmental 
conditions, it must relate those conditions to identified sites and describe any other known 
environmental or other constraints (e.g., easements, conditions and restrictions, site shape 
and known contamination) that could impact housing development on identified sites in the 
planning period.  
 
Infrastructure: The element describes infrastructure limitations (p. 60) in the City. However, 
it must also demonstrate sufficient total water and sewer capacity (existing and planned) to 
accommodate the RHNA and include programs if necessary.  
 
For your information, water and sewer service providers must establish specific procedures to 
grant priority water and sewer service to developments with units affordable to lower-income 
households. (Gov. Code, § 65589.7.) Local governments are required to immediately deliver 
the housing element to water and sewer service providers. While the element discusses the 
City will deliver the adopted housing element and coordinate with providers, it also appears to 
indicate the City is a water provider. As a result, the element should discuss whether the City 
has procedures to grant priority and include programs if necessary. For additional information 
and sample cover memo, see the Building Blocks at http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-
development/building-blocks/other-requirements/priority-for-water-sewer.shtml. 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 181 of 290

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/other-requirements/priority-for-water-sewer.shtml
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/other-requirements/priority-for-water-sewer.shtml


 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 5 
January 11, 2022 

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU): ADUs may be counted toward the RHNA based on 
past permitted units and other factors. In the element, the City projects 100 ADUs per 
year based on 80 ADUs permitted over the last three years. These past trends do not 
support an assumption of 100 ADUs per year. The element states the increase is based 
on a consistent trend; however, the trend appears consistent around 80 ADUs a year. 
As a result, the element should either adjust assumptions or include analysis based on 
additional trends, other relevant factors and policies and programs.  
 
Sites Identified in Prior Planning Periods: Sites identified in prior planning periods shall 
not be deemed adequate to accommodate the housing needs for lower-income 
households unless a program rezones sites to permit housing development by right 
pursuant to statutory requirements. While the element has a program, it should also 
denote which sites were previously identified in prior planning periods and include 
programs as appropriate.  
 
Electronic Sites Inventory Form: Pursuant to Government Code section 65583.3, 
subdivision (b), the City must utilize standards, forms, and definitions adopted by HCD 
when preparing the sites inventory. Please see HCD’s housing element webpage at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/index.shtml for a 
copy of the form and instructions. The City can reach out to HCD at 
sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov for technical assistance. Please note, upon adoption of the 
housing element, the City must submit an electronic version of the sites inventory with 
its adopted housing element to sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov.  
 

4. An analysis of potential and actual governmental constraints upon the maintenance, 
improvement, or development of housing for all income levels, including the types of 
housing identified in paragraph (1) of subdivision (c), and for persons with disabilities as 
identified in the analysis pursuant to paragraph (7), including land use controls, building 
codes and their enforcement, site improvements, fees and other exactions required of 
developers, and local processing and permit procedures... (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. 
(a)(5).) 
 
Land Use Controls: The element must identify and analyze all relevant land-use controls 
impacts as potential constraints on a variety of housing types. The analysis should 
analyze land-use controls independently and cumulatively with other land-use controls. 
The analysis should specifically address requirements related to multifamily lot 
coverages. The analysis should address any impacts on cost, supply, housing choice, 
affordability, timing, approval certainty and ability to achieve maximum densities and 
include programs to address identified constraints. 
 
Processing and Permit Procedures: The element discusses a typical review process for 
a single-family residence but should also evaluate the typical process for a multifamily 
development, particularly as anticipated in the element. The analysis should address 
the approval body, typical number of hearings if any, approval findings and typical 
timeframes. The analysis should evaluate impacts on cost, supply (whether project 
densities are reduced in the approval process), timing and approval certainty and add or 
modify programs as appropriate.   
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 182 of 290

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/index.shtml
mailto:sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov


 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 6 
January 11, 2022 

Housing for Persons with Disabilities: The element notes the City adopted a reasonable 
accommodation procedure; however, it should describe and analyze that procedure, 
including approval findings, for any constraints on housing for persons with disabilities. 
In addition, the element indicates group homes for seven or more persons are subject to 
a conditional use permit (CUP). The element must analyze the CUP procedure as 
constraints on housing for persons with disabilities and add or modify programs to 
promote objectivity and approval certainty for these housing types. 
 
SB 35 Streamlined Ministerial Approval Process: The element must clarify whether 
there are written procedures for SB 35 (Chapter 366, Statutes of 2017) Streamlined 
Ministerial Approval Process and add a program to address these requirements. 
 
Building Codes and their Enforcement: The element provides an overview of the 
building code implementation in the City, but it should also identify any local 
amendments to the building code and analyze impacts on the cost and supply of 
housing. 
 
 

B. Housing Programs 
 

1. Identify actions that will be taken to make sites available during the planning period with 
appropriate zoning and development standards and with services and facilities to 
accommodate that portion of the city’s or county’s share of the regional housing need 
for each income level that could not be accommodated on sites identified in the 
inventory... Sites shall be identified as needed to facilitate and encourage the 
development of a variety of types of housing for all income levels... (Gov. Code, § 
65583, subd. (c)(1).) 
 
As noted in Finding A3, the element does not include a complete site analysis. Based 
on the results of a complete sites inventory and analysis, the City may need to add or 
revise programs to address a shortfall of sites or zoning available to encourage a variety 
of housing types. In addition, the element should be revised as follows: 
 

• Program 11 (Adequate Housing Opportunity Sites for RHNA): The Program 
should be revised to meet all requirements pursuant to Government Code 
section 65583.2, subdivision (h) and (i), specifically permit at least 16 units per 
site. In addition, the Program should commit to a minimum acreage to be 
rezoned.  

• Program 16 (Lot Consolidation): The Program should commit to proactively 
coordinate with property owners (beyond posting on the City’s website) on a 
specific timeframe (e.g., annually) and include a discrete timeline for adjusting 
incentives or utilizing other strategies (e.g., within six months of monitoring 
effectiveness).   

• Program 14 (No Net Loss of Residential Capacity to Accommodate RHNA): The 
Program should commit to when the City will establish a process.   

• City-Owned Sites: The Program should be revised with actions based on a 
complete analysis of City-owned properties, including a schedule of actions to 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 183 of 290



 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 7 
January 11, 2022 

facilitate development such as requests for proposals, coordination with property 
owners, incentives, and permit streamlining.   

 
2. The housing element shall contain programs which assist in the development of 

adequate housing to meet the needs of extremely low-, very low-, low- and moderate-
income households. (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (c)(2).) 
 
Program 4 (Facilitate Affordable and Special Needs Housing Development): The 
Program includes commitment to annually apply for funding, but is should also commit 
to similar timing for the other listed actions in the Program (e.g., contact, coordination, 
and support to developers).   
 

3. Address and, where appropriate and legally possible, remove governmental and 
nongovernmental constraints to the maintenance, improvement, and development of 
housing, including housing for all income levels and housing for persons with 
disabilities. The program shall remove constraints to, and provide reasonable 
accommodations for housing designed for, intended for occupancy by, or with 
supportive services for, persons with disabilities. (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (c)(3).) 

 
As noted in Findings A4, the element requires a complete analysis of potential 
governmental constraints. Depending upon the results of that analysis, the City may 
need to revise or add programs and address and remove or mitigate any identified 
constraints. 

 
4. Promote and affirmatively further fair housing opportunities and promote housing 

throughout the community or communities for all persons regardless of race, religion, 
sex, marital status, ancestry, national origin, color, familial status, or disability, and other 
characteristics... (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (c)(5).) 
 
As noted in Finding A1, the element must include a complete assessment of fair 
housing. Based on the outcomes of that analysis, the element must add or modify 
programs.  
 

5. Develop a plan that incentivizes and promotes the creation of accessory dwelling units 
that can be offered at affordable rent, as defined in Section 50053 of the Health and 
Safety Code, for very low, low-, or moderate-income households. For purposes of this 
paragraph, “accessory dwelling units” has the same meaning as “accessory dwelling 
unit” as defined in paragraph (4) of subdivision (i) of Section 65852.2. (Gov. Code,  
§ 65583, subd. (c)(7).) 
 
Program 18 (Accessory Dwelling Units): The Program should go beyond exploring the 
possibility of waiving fees and make a specific commitment to establish incentives in the 
planning period. Also, in addition to monitoring program effectiveness, the Program 
should commit to alternative actions (e.g., incentives, rezoning) within a specified 
timeframe (e.g., six months) if ADUs are not produced or affordable as assumed in the 
element.   

 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 184 of 290



 

HCD Review of the City of San Fernando’s 6th Cycle Draft Housing Element Page 8 
January 11, 2022 

C. Quantified Objectives 
 
Establish the number of housing units, by income level, that can be constructed, rehabilitated, 
and conserved over a five-year time frame. (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd. (b)(1 & 2).) 
 
The element must include quantified objectives to establish an estimate of housing units by 
income category that can be constructed, rehabilitated, and conserved over the planning 
period. For more information, please see the Building Blocks at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/program-
requirements/program-overview.shtml. 
 
 

D. Public Participation 
 
Local governments shall make a diligent effort to achieve public participation of all 
economic segments of the community in the development of the housing element, and the 
element shall describe this effort. (Gov. Code, § 65583, subd.(c)(8).) 
 
While the element includes a general summary of the public participation process (pp. 7-8), 
it should also demonstrate diligent efforts were made to involve all economic segments of 
the community in the development of the housing element. The element could describe the 
efforts to circulate the housing element among low- and moderate-income households and 
organizations that represent them and to involve such groups and persons in the element 
throughout the process.  
 
In addition, the element (Appendix A) should summarize the public comments and describe 
how they were considered and incorporated into the element.  
 
In addition, the City should confirm if the element was available to the public concurrent 
with its submittal to HCD. Providing an opportunity for the public to review and comment on 
a draft of the element in advance of submission is a statutory mandate ensuring the City 
makes a diligent effort to encourage the public’s participation in the development of the 
element. Not providing the opportunity for the public reduces HCD’s ability to consider 
public comments in its review. The availability of the document to the public and opportunity 
for public comment prior to submittal to HCD is essential to the public process and HCD’s 
review. The City must proactively make future revisions available to the public, including 
any commenters, prior to submitting any revisions to HCD and diligently consider and 
address comments, including revising the document where appropriate. HCD’s future 
review will consider the extent to which the revised element documents how the City 
solicited, considered, and addressed public comments in the element. The City’s 
consideration of public comments must not be limited by HCD’s findings in this review 
letter. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 185 of 290

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/program-requirements/program-overview.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/building-blocks/program-requirements/program-overview.shtml


A. Housing Needs, Resources, and Constraints
1

Addressed in Section Page(s)

I. Introduction Section E. Public 
Participation

pg. 8

V. AFFH Section B. Key Data and 
Background

pg. 88

V. AFFH Section C. Assessment of 
Fair Housing

pg. 90

V. AFFH Section C. Assessment of 
Fair Housing

pg. 88‐143

V. AFFH Section D. Summary of 
Fair Housing

pg.147

V. AFFH Section E. Contribiting 
Factors

pg. 153

Enforcement: The element mentions local capacity for fair housing education and 
outreach, but is should also address any trends and characteristics of fair housing 
complaints and enforcement. In addition, the element should address compliance with 
existing fair housing laws as well as any past or current fair housing lawsuits, findings, 
settlements, judgements, or complaints. Based on the outcomes of this evaluation, the 
element should summarize issues, identify contributing factors, and formulate meaningful 
goals and actions as described below.

V. AFFH Section C. Assessment of 
Fair Housing

pg. 88

Sites Inventory and AFFH: The element includes some general discussion about the 
identification of adequate sites and affirmatively further fair housing but generally does
not address this requirement. The analysis must examine sites by location, number of 
units by income group, impact of identified sites on existing patterns of socio‐economic 
concentrations and any isolation of the RHNA by income group to determine whether 
sites improve or exacerbate conditions. The analysis should address all components of the 
assessment of fair housing (e.g., segregation and integration, disparities in access to 
opportunity and disproportionate housing needs including displacement). If sites 
exacerbate conditions, the element should identify further program actions that will be 
taken to promote inclusive communities and equitable quality of life throughout the 
community (e.g., new housing choices and affordability, anti‐displacement, and place‐ 
based community revitalization strategies).

V. AFFH Section C. Assessment of 
Fair Housing

pg. 90 ‐ 146

Assessment of Fair Housing: The element reports and maps data on some components of 
the assessment of fair housing (e.g., segregation and integration, disparities in access to 
opportunity) but it must also analyze the information, such as evaluating patterns, trends, 
conditions and circumstances, coincidence with other components of the assessment of 
fair housing and the effectiveness of past and current strategies to promote inclusive and 
equitable communities. This analysis should be complemented by local data and 
knowledge, including input from commenters, and other relevant factors as described 
below.

AB4:E19ffirmatively further[ing] fair housing (AFFH) in accordance with Chapter 15 (commencing with Section 

HCD Review Comments (received 1/11/22)

Public Outreach: The element provides a brief discussion of community outreach 
conducted in Chapter V.B.1. but it generally does not address affirmatively furthering fair 
housing (AFFH) requirements. While AFFH outreach can be conducted with the other 
portions of the housing element, it must also be specific to AFFH. For example, the 
outreach could specifically target fair housing organizations or neighborhoods with 
relatively concentrated poverty for input related to housing and community development 
needs and access to opportunities such as education and transportation.

ATTACHMENT "H"June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 186 of 290



Local Data and Knowledge: The element should incorporate local data and knowledge of 
the jurisdiction into the AFFH section. To assist in meeting this requirement, the element 
should provide local data not captured in regional, state, or federal data analysis. For 
example, the element notes differences in the age of the housing stock, but it should 
incorporate information from the housing condition survey (p. 25) to better evaluate 
difference in housing conditions to formulate appropriate policies and programs. Also, the 
element points out differences in neighborhoods by income group but should supplement 
that data with local knowledge such as housing conditions or other factors that indicate 
differences in quality of life.

V. AFFH Section B. Key Data and 
Background

pg. 87 ‐ 90

Other Relevant Factors: The element must include other relevant factors that contribute 
to fair housing issues in the jurisdiction. The element should analyze historical land use, 
zoning, governmental and nongovernmental spending, including transportation 
investments, demographic trends, historical patterns of segregation, or other information 
that may have impeded housing choices and mobility.

V. AFFH Section E. Identification 
and Prioritization of Contributing 
Factors

pg.152 ‐ 155

Contributing Factors: The element should re‐assess and, particularly, prioritize 
contributing factors upon completion of the analysis and make revisions as appropriate.

V. AFFH Section E. Identification 
and Prioritization of Contributing 
Factors

pg.152 ‐ 153

Goals, Actions, Metrics, and Milestones: Goals and actions must create meaningful 
impact to overcome contributing factors to fair housing issues. Currently, programs are 
not sufficient to facilitate meaningful change and address AFFH requirements. Based on 
the outcomes of a complete analysis, the element must be revised to add or modify goals 
and actions accordingly. Goals and actions must specifically respond to the analysis and to 
the identified and prioritized contributing factors to fair housing issues and must be 
significant and meaningful enough to overcome identified patterns and trends. Actions 
must have metrics and milestones as appropriate and must address housing mobility 
enhancement, new housing choices and affordability in high opportunity areas, place‐
based strategies for community preservation and revitalization and displacement 
protection. For further guidance, please visit HCD’s Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
in California webpage at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community‐ 
development/affh/index.shtml.

V. AFFH Section F. Implentation 
Actions

pg.154 ‐ 155

2

Addressed in Section Page(s)

Extremely Low‐Income Households (ELI): While the element includes some basic 
information regarding ELI households such as the number of households, it must also 
include an analysis of their housing needs to better formulate policies and programs. For 
example, the element should analyze tenure, cost burden, and other household 
characteristics then examine the availability of resources to determine gaps in housing 
needs. For additional information, see the Building Blocks at 
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community‐development/building‐blocks/housing‐ 
needs/extremely‐low‐income‐housing‐needs.shtml.

 

 Include an analysis and documentation of household characteristics, including level of payment compared to ability 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 187 of 290



3

Addressed in Section Page(s)

Parcel Listing: The element lists parcels by various factors such as size, zoning, general 
plan designation and existing use. However, the description of existing use is generic and 
should include sufficient detail to facilitate an analysis of the potential for addition 
development on nonvacant sites. For example, many sites describe existing uses as 
commercial by year built. Instead, the inventory could also describe condition, 
improvement to land value, vacancies, expiring leases, lack of improvements or other 
indicators of use turnover, expressed interest in residential development and an existing 
floor area 0.1 versus allowable floor area (e.g., “underutilization index”).

Appendix C: Opportunity Sites 
Inventory

pg. 191 ‐ 195

Nonvacant Sites: While the element identifies nonvacant sites to accommodate the 
regional housing need for lower‐income households, it must include a methodology that 
demonstrates the potential for additional development in the planning period. The 
methodology must consider factors including the extent to which existing uses may 
constitute an impediment to additional residential development, past experience with 
converting existing uses to higher density residential development, the current market 
demand for the existing use, an analysis of any existing leases or other contracts that 
would perpetuate the existing use or prevent redevelopment of the site for additional 
residential development, development trends, market conditions, and regulatory or other 
incentives or standards to encourage additional residential development on these sites. 
(Gov. Code, § 65583.2, subd. (g).) For example, the element describes factors utilized in 
identifying nonvacant sites, but it should also examine development trends and past 
experience to support these factors and relate those circumstances to identified sites.   
Additionally, the element should include some discussion on whether existing uses 
preclude redevelopment and how planned regulatory and other incentives, such as the 
mixed‐use overlay, can encourage redevelopment. In addition, if the housing element 
relies upon nonvacant sites to accommodate more than 50 percent of the regional 
housing needs allocation (RHNA) for lower‐income households, it must demonstrate 
existing uses are not an impediment to additional residential development and will likely 
discontinue in the planning period. (Gov. Code, § 65583.2, subd. (g)(2).) Absent findings 
(e.g., adoption resolution) based on substantial evidence, the existing uses will be 
presumed to impede additional residential development and will not be utilized toward 
demonstrating adequate sites to accommodate the RHNA.

II. Housing Needs Assessment B. 
Household Income

pg. 17 ‐ 18

Realistic Capacity: The element (p. 67) mentions an assumption of 75 percent of 
maximum allowable densities to calculate residential capacity on identified sites. 
However, the element should include supporting information on typical densities of 
existing or approved residential developments at a similar affordability level. For example, 
the element mentions the calculation is based on recent projects, but it could list these 
projects by zone, acreage, built density, allowable density, level of affordability and 
presence of exceptions, such as a density bonus.  In addition, the element appears to 
assume residential development on sites with zoning that allows 100 percent 
nonresidential uses. While the element mentions the mixed‐use overlay, it must still 
account for the likelihood of nonresidential uses given base zoning. For example, the 
element could analyze all development activity in these nonresidential zones, how often 
residential development occurs and adjust residential capacity calculation, policies, and 
programs accordingly. The element should include analysis based on factors such as 
development trends, performance standards or other relevant factors.

IV. Housing Opportunities B. 
Housing Opportunity Sites 
Inventory

pg.73 ‐ 74

 

 

An inventory of land suitable and available for residential development, including vacant sites and sites having 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 188 of 290



IV. Housing Opportunities B. 
Housing Opportunity Sites 
Inventory

pg.75

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 14. 
City Hall redevelopment Study

pg. 173

Environmental Constraints: While the element generally describes a few environmental 
conditions, it must relate those conditions to identified sites and describe any other 
known environmental or other constraints (e.g., easements, conditions and restrictions, 
site shape and known contamination) that could impact housing development on 
identified sites in the planning period.

III. Housing Constraints C. 
Environmental and Infrastructure 
Constraints

pg. 65 ‐ 67

Infrastructure: The element describes infrastructure limitations (p. 60) in the City. 
However, it must also demonstrate sufficient total water and sewer capacity (existing and 
planned) to accommodate the RHNA and include programs if necessary. For your 
information, water and sewer service providers must establish specific procedures to 
grant priority water and sewer service to developments with units affordable to lower‐
income households. (Gov. Code, § 65589.7.) Local governments are required to 
immediately deliver the housing element to water and sewer service providers. While the 
element discusses the City will deliver the adopted housing element and coordinate with 
providers, it also appears to indicate the City is a water provider. As a result, the element 
should discuss whether the City has procedures to grant priority and include programs if 
necessary. For additional information and sample cover memo, see the Building Blocks at 
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/community‐ development/building‐blocks/other‐
requirements/priority‐for‐water‐sewer.shtml.

III. Housing Constraints C. 
Environmental and Infrastructure 
Constraints

pg. 65 ‐ 68

III. Housing Constraints 
Governement Contraints ‐ ADU 
Definition

pg. 48

IV. Housing Opportunities A. Land 
Resources

pg.69 ‐70

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 8. 
Accessory Dwelling Units

pg. 170

Sites Identified in Prior Planning Periods: Sites identified in prior planning periods shall 
not be deemed adequate to accommodate the housing needs for lower‐income 
households unless a program rezones sites to permit housing development by right 
pursuant to statutory requirements. While the element has a program, it should also 
denote which sites were previously identified in prior planning periods and include 
programs as appropriate.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 1. 
Adequate Housing opportunity 
Sites for RHNA

pg. 165 ‐ 166

Electronic Sites Inventory Form: Pursuant to Government Code section 65583.3, 
subdivision (b), the City must utilize standards, forms, and definitions adopted by HCD 
when preparing the sites inventory. Please see HCD’s housing element webpage at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community‐development/housing‐element/index.shtml for a 
copy of the form and instructions. The City can reach out to HCD at 
sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov for technical assistance. Please note, upon adoption of the 
housing element, the City must submit an electronic version of the sites inventory with its 
adopted housing element to sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov.

See: Electronic Sites Inventory for 
HCD.xlsx

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU): ADUs may be counted toward the RHNA based on past 
permitted units and other factors. In the element, the City projects 100 ADUs per year 
based on 80 ADUs permitted over the last three years. These past trends do not support 
an assumption of 100 ADUs per year. The element states the increase is based on a 
consistent trend; however, the trend appears consistent around 80 ADUs a year. As a 
result, the element should either adjust assumptions or include analysis based on 
additional trends, other relevant factors and policies and programs.

City‐Owned Sites: The element should include a discussion of City‐Owned sites (e.g., City 
Hall) identified to accommodate the RHNA. Specifically, the analysis should address 
whether existing uses impede additional development, any known conditions that 
preclude development in the planning period, the potential schedule for development and 
necessary actions to facilitate development (e.g., consolidation) as intended in the sites 
inventory. In addition, the housing element must include a description of whether there 
are any plans to dispose of the properties during the planning period and how the 
jurisdiction will comply with the Surplus Land Act (commencing with Government Code 
section 54220) and add or modify programs as appropriate.

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 189 of 290



4

Addressed in Section Page(s)

Land Use Controls: The element must identify and analyze all relevant land‐use controls 
impacts as potential constraints on a variety of housing types. The analysis should analyze 
land‐use controls independently and cumulatively with other land‐use controls. The 
analysis should specifically address requirements related to multifamily lot coverages. The 
analysis should address any impacts on cost, supply, housing choice, affordability, timing, 
approval certainty and ability to achieve maximum densities and include programs to 
address identified constraints.

III. Housing Constraints A. 
Governemental Constraints 

pg. 39‐44

Processing and Permit Procedures: The element discusses a typical review process for a 
single‐family residence but should also evaluate the typical process for a multifamily 
development, particularly as anticipated in the element. The analysis should address the 
approval body, typical number of hearings if any, approval findings and typical 
timeframes. The analysis should evaluate impacts on cost, supply (whether project 
densities are reduced in the approval process), timing and approval certainty and add or 
modify programs as appropriate.

III. Housing Constraints A. 
Governemental Constraints 

pg. 57 ‐ 62

Housing for Persons with Disabilities: The element notes the City adopted a reasonable 
accommodation procedure; however, it should describe and analyze that procedure, 
including approval findings, for any constraints on housing for persons with disabilities. In 
addition, the element indicates group homes for seven or more persons are subject to a 
conditional use permit (CUP). The element must analyze the CUP procedure as constraints 
on housing for persons with disabilities and add or modify programs to promote 
objectivity and approval certainty for these housing types.

II. Housing Needs Assessment 
A.Governemental constraints

pg. 50 ‐ 53

SB 35 Streamlined Ministerial Approval Process: The element must clarify whether there 
are written procedures for SB 35 (Chapter 366, Statutes of 2017) Streamlined Ministerial 
Approval Process and add a program to address these requirements.

III. Housing Constraints A. 
Governemental Constraints 

pg. 60

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 12. 
Efficient Project Review Under 
SB35

pg. 172

Building Codes and their Enforcement: The element provides an overview of the building 
code implementation in the City, but it should also identify any local amendments to the 
building code and analyze impacts on the cost and supply of housing.

III. Housing Constraints A. 
Governemental Constraints 

pg. 61 ‐ 62

 

An analysis of potential and actual governmental constraints upon the maintenance, improvement, or development 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 190 of 290



B. Housing Programs
1
 

Addressed in Section Page(s)

Program 11 (Adequate Housing Opportunity Sites for RHNA): The Program should be 
revised to meet all requirements pursuant to Government Code section 65583.2, 
subdivision (h) and (i), specifically permit at least 16 units per site. In addition, the 
Program should commit to a minimum acreage to be rezoned.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 1. 
Adequate Housing Sites for RHNA

pg. 165 ‐ 166

Program 16 (Lot Consolidation): The Program should commit to proactively coordinate 
with property owners (beyond posting on the City’s website) on a specific timeframe (e.g., 
annually) and include a discrete timeline for adjusting incentives or utilizing other 
strategies (e.g., within six months of monitoring effectiveness).

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 6. Lot 
Consolidation

pg. 168 ‐ 169

Program 14 (No Net Loss of Residential Capacity to Accommodate RHNA): The Program 
should commit to when the City will establish a process.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 4. No 
Net Loss of Residential Capacity

pg. 167 ‐ 168

City‐Owned Sites: The Program should be revised with actions based on a complete 
analysis of City‐owned properties, including a schedule of actions to facilitate 
development such as requests for proposals, coordination with property owners, 
incentives, and permit streamlining.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 14. 
City Hall Redevelopment Study

pg. 173

2
Program 4 (Facilitate Affordable and Special Needs Housing Development):  The Program 
includes commitment to annually apply for funding, but is should also commit to similar 
timing for the other listed actions in the Program (e.g., contact, coordination, and support 
to developers).

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 2.0 Program 1. 
Facilitate Affordable and Special 
Needs Housing Developments

pg. 159 ‐ 160

3
As noted in Findings A4, the element requires a complete analysis of potential 
governmental constraints. Depending upon the results of that analysis, the City may need 
to revise or add programs and address and remove or mitigate any identified constraints.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 2.0 Program 3. 
Removal of Governmental 
Constraints

pg. 160 ‐ 161

4
As noted in Finding A1, the element must include a complete assessment of fair housing. 
Based on the outcomes of that analysis, the element must add or modify programs.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 3.0 Program 4. 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair 
Housing

pg. 163

5
Program 18 (Accessory Dwelling Units): The Program should go beyond exploring the 
possibility of waiving fees and make a specific commitment to establish incentives in the 
planning period. Also, in addition to monitoring program effectiveness, the Program 
should commit to alternative actions (e.g., incentives, rezoning) within a specified 
timeframe (e.g., six months) if ADUs are not produced or affordable as assumed in the 
element.

VI. Housing Plan A. Goal Policies 
Programs Goal 5.0 Program 8. 
Accessory Dwelling Units

pg. 170

Identify actions that will be taken to make sites available during the planning period with appropriate zoning and 

 

As noted in Finding A3, the element does not include a complete site analysis. Based on the results of a complete 

 Promote and affirmatively further fair housing opportunities and promote housing throughout the community or 

Develop a plan that incentivizes and promotes the creation of accessory dwelling units that can be offered at 

 

 

 

 

The housing element shall contain programs which assist in the development of adequate housing to meet the 

Address and, where appropriate and legally possible, remove governmental and nongovernmental constraints to 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 191 of 290



C. Quantified Objectives
1

Addressed in Section Page(s)

The element must include quantified objectives to establish an estimate of housing units 
by income category that can be constructed, rehabilitated, and conserved over the 
planning period. For more information, please see the Building Blocks at 
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community‐development/building‐blocks/program‐ 
requirements/program‐overview.shtml.

VI. Housing Plan B. Quantified 
Objectives

pg. 174

D.    Public Participation
1

Addressed in Section Page(s)

While the element includes a general summary of the public participation process (pp. 7‐
8), it should also demonstrate diligent efforts were made to involve all economic 
segments of the community in the development of the housing element. The element 
could describe the efforts to circulate the housing element among low‐ and moderate‐
income households and organizations that represent them and to involve such groups and 
persons in the element throughout the process.

I. Introduction E. Public 
Participation

pg. 7 ‐9

In addition, the element (Appendix A) should summarize the public comments and 
describe how they were considered and incorporated into the element.

Appendix A. Public Participation pg. 175 ‐ 184

In addition, the City should confirm if the element was available to the public concurrent 
with its submittal to HCD. Providing an opportunity for the public to review and comment 
on a draft of the element in advance of submission is a statutory mandate ensuring the 
City makes a diligent effort to encourage the public’s participation in the development of 
the element. Not providing the opportunity for the public reduces HCD’s ability to 
consider public comments in its review. The availability of the document to the public and 
opportunity for public comment prior to submittal to HCD is essential to the public 
process and HCD’s review. The City must proactively make future revisions available to the 
public, including any commenters, prior to submitting any revisions to HCD and diligently 
consider and address comments, including revising the document where appropriate. 
HCD’s future review will consider the extent to which the revised element documents how 
the City solicited, considered, and addressed public comments in the element. The City’s 
consideration of public comments must not be limited by HCD’s findings in this review 
letter.

I. Introduction E. Public 
Participation

pg. 7 ‐9

 

 

Establish the number of housing units, by income level, that can be constructed, rehabilitated, and conserved over a 

 

 

Local governments shall make a diligent effort to achieve public participation of all economic segments of the 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 192 of 290



January 13, 2022 

Mr. Gerardo Marquez, Interim Senior Planner 
City of San Fernando 
117 North MacNeil Street 
San Fernando, California 91340 
Phone: (818) 837-1540 
E-mail: gmarquez@sfcity.org

RE: SCAG Comments on the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the San 
Fernando Housing Element Update [SCAG NO. IGR10542] 

Dear Mr. Marquez, 

Thank you for submitting the Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND) for the San Fernando Housing Element Update (“proposed project”) to the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) for review and comment.  The proposed project 
includes updates to the General Plan Housing and Safety Elements as well as incorporation of 
new General Plan Environmental Justice policies. 

Based on SCAG staff’s review, the proposed project supports overall the goals of the 2020 
Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS or Connect SoCal).  
SCAG staff comments are detailed in the attachment to this letter. 

When available, please send project related documents and notices to IGR@scag.ca.gov. If you 
have any questions regarding the attached comments, please contact the Intergovernmental 
Review (IGR) Program, attn.: Anita Au, Senior Regional Planner, at (213) 236-1874 or 
IGR@scag.ca.gov.  Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Frank Wen, Ph.D. 
Manager, Planning Strategy Department 

ATTACHMENT "I"June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 193 of 290

mailto:gmarquez@sfcity.org
mailto:IGR@scag.ca.gov
mailto:IGR@scag.ca.gov


January 13, 2022  SCAG No. IGR10542 
Mr. Marquez  Page 2 

 

COMMENTS ON THE NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR 

SAN FERNANDO HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE [SCAG NO. IGR10542] 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 375, SCAG is the designated Regional Transportation Planning Agency under state law 
and is responsible for preparation of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) including the Sustainable Communities 
Strategy (SCS).  SCAG’s feedback is intended to assist local jurisdictions and project proponents to implement 
projects that have the potential to contribute to attainment of Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable 
Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS) goals and align with RTP/SCS policies. 
 
Based on SCAG staff review, the proposed project generally supports the applicable goals of the 2020 Connect SoCal, 
however the references to population growth in the IS/MND are not based on the growth forecasts adopted as part 
of the 2020 Connect SoCal. 
 
 
CONNECT SOCAL GOALS 
 
The SCAG Regional Council fully adopted Connect SoCal in September 2020.  Connect SoCal, also known as the 2020 – 
2045 RTP/SCS, builds upon and expands land use and transportation strategies established over several planning cycles 
to increase mobility options and achieve a more sustainable growth pattern. The long-range visioning plan balances 
future mobility and housing needs with goals for the environment, the regional economy, social equity and 
environmental justice, and public health.  The goals included in Connect SoCal may be pertinent to the proposed project.  
These goals are meant to provide guidance for considering the proposed project.  Among the relevant goals of Connect 
SoCal are the following: 
 

SCAG CONNECT SOCAL GOALS 

Goal #1: Encourage regional economic prosperity and global competitiveness 

Goal #2: Improve mobility, accessibility, reliability and travel safety for people and goods 

Goal #3: Enhance the preservation, security, and resilience of the regional transportation system 

Goal #4: Increase person and goods movement and travel choices within the transportation system 

Goal #5: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve air quality 

Goal #6: Support healthy and equitable communities 

Goal #7: Adapt to a changing climate and support an integrated regional development pattern and transportation 

network 

Goal #8: Leverage new transportation technologies and data-driven solutions that result in more efficient travel 

Goal #9: Encourage development of diverse housing types in areas that are supported by multiple transportation 

options 

Goal #10: Promote conservation of natural and agricultural lands and restoration of habitats 

 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 194 of 290

https://scag.ca.gov/read-plan-adopted-final-plan


January 13, 2022  SCAG No. IGR10542 
Mr. Marquez  Page 3 

 

 
Connect SoCal Strategies 
 
To achieve the goals of Connect SoCal, a wide range of land use and transportation strategies are included in the 
accompanying twenty (20) technical reports.  To view Connect SoCal and the accompanying technical reports, please 
visit the Connect SoCal webpage.  Connect SoCal builds upon the progress from previous RTP/SCS cycles and 
continues to focus on integrated, coordinated, and balanced planning for land use and transportation that helps the 
SCAG region strive towards a more sustainable region, while meeting statutory requirements pertinent to RTP/SCSs.  
These strategies within the regional context are provided as guidance for lead agencies such as local jurisdictions 
when the proposed project is under consideration.  
 
SCAG Staff Comments  
 
SCAG staff recommends that you review 2020 Connect SoCal and consider its adopted goals and policies when 
finalizing the proposed project. 
 
 
DEMOGRAPHICS AND GROWTH FORECASTS 
 

A key, formative step in projecting future population, households, and employment through 2045 for Connect SoCal 
was the generation of a forecast of regional and county level growth in collaboration with expert demographers and 
economists on Southern California. From there, jurisdictional level forecasts were ground-truthed by subregions and 
local agencies, which helped SCAG identify opportunities and barriers to future development. This forecast helps the 
region understand, in a very general sense, where we are expected to grow, and allows SCAG to focus attention on 
areas that are experiencing change and may have increased transportation needs. After a year-long engagement 
effort with all 197 jurisdictions one-on-one, 82 percent of SCAG’s 197 jurisdictions provided feedback on the forecast 
of future growth for Connect SoCal. SCAG also sought feedback on potential sustainable growth strategies from a 
broad range of stakeholder groups – including local jurisdictions, county transportation commissions, other partner 
agencies, industry groups, community-based organizations, and the general public. Connect SoCal utilizes a bottom-
up approach in that total projected growth for each jurisdiction reflects feedback received from jurisdiction staff, 
including city managers, community development/planning directors, and local staff. Growth at the neighborhood 
level (i.e., transportation analysis zone (TAZ) reflects entitled projects and adheres to current general and specific 
plan maximum densities as conveyed by jurisdictions (except in cases where entitled projects and development 
agreements exceed these capacities as calculated by SCAG). Neighborhood level growth projections also feature 
strategies that help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) from automobiles and light trucks to achieve 
Southern California’s GHG reduction target, approved by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) in accordance 
with state planning law. Connect SoCal’s Forecasted Development Pattern is utilized for long range modeling 
purposes and does not supersede actions taken by elected bodies on future development, including entitlements 
and development agreements.  SCAG does not have the authority to implement the plan -- neither through decisions 
about what type of development is built where, nor what transportation projects are ultimately built, as Connect 
SoCal is adopted at the jurisdictional level. Achieving a sustained regional outcome depends upon informed and 
intentional local action. To access jurisdictional level growth estimates and forecasts for years 2016 and 2045, please 
refer to the Connect SoCal Demographics and Growth Forecast Technical Report. The growth forecasts for the region 
and applicable jurisdictions are below. 
 

 Adopted SCAG Region Wide Forecasts Adopted City of San Fernando Forecasts 

 Year 2020 Year 2030 Year 2035 Year 2045 Year 2020 Year 2030 Year 2035 Year 2045 

Population 19,517,731 20,821,171 21,443,006 22,503,899 24,707 25,717 26,209 27,119 
Households 6,333,458 6,902,821 7,170,110 7,633,451 6,197 6,638 6,823 7,146 
Employment 8,695,427 9,303,627 9,566,384 10,048,822 11,644 11,923 12,063 12,504 

 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 195 of 290

https://scag.ca.gov/read-plan-adopted-final-plan
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/0903fconnectsocal_demographics-and-growth-forecast.pdf?1606001579


January 13, 2022  SCAG No. IGR10542 
Mr. Marquez  Page 4 

 

SCAG Staff Comments 
 
The discussion in Section 14 Population and Housing starting on page 103 of the IS/MND indicates that population 
forecasts were not based on the most recently adopted SCAG 2020 Connect SoCal Regional Growth Forecasts. SCAG 
staff recommends updating the discussion to reflect the latest regional growth forecasts, as provided in the table 
above.  
 
 
MITIGATION 
 
SCAG Staff Comments 
 
SCAG staff recommends that you review the Final Program Environmental Impact Report (Final PEIR) for Connect 
SoCal for guidance, as appropriate.  SCAG’s Regional Council certified the PEIR and adopted the associated Findings 
of Fact and a Statement of Overriding Considerations (FOF/SOC) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(MMRP) on May 7, 2020 and also adopted a PEIR Addendum and amended the MMRP on September 3, 2020 (please 
see the PEIR webpage and scroll to the bottom of the page for the PEIR Addendum).  The PEIR includes a list of project-
level performance standards-based mitigation measures that may be considered for adoption and implementation 
by lead, responsible, or trustee agencies in the region, as applicable and feasible. Project-level mitigation measures 
are within responsibility, authority, and/or jurisdiction of project-implementing agency or other public agency serving 
as lead agency under CEQA in subsequent project- and site- specific design, CEQA review, and decision-making 
processes, to meet the performance standards for each of the CEQA resource categories.    
 
 
REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION 
  
On March 4, 2021 SCAG’s Regional Council adopted the 6th cycle Final Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) 
Allocation Plan which covers the planning period October 2021 through October 2029. The 6th cycle Final RHNA 
allocation for the applicable jurisdiction is below. 
 

SCAG 6th Cycle Final RHNA Allocation for City of San Fernando 

Income Category RHNA Allocation (Units) 
Very low income 461 
Low income 273 
Moderate income 284 
Above moderate income 777 
Total RHNA Allocation 1,795 

 
Sixth cycle housing elements were due to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) 
by October 15, 2021. SCAG encourages jurisdictions to adopt a housing element in compliance with State housing 
law as determined by review from HCD. Jurisdictions that do not have an adopted compliant housing element may 
be ineligible for certain State funding and grant opportunities and may be at risk for legal action from stakeholders 
or HCD. 
 
SCAG staff would like to call your attention to SCAG’s HELPR 2.0, a web-mapping tool developed by SCAG to help 
local jurisdictions and stakeholders understand local land use, site opportunities, and environmental sensitivities for 
aligning housing planning with the state Department of Housing and Community Development’s (HCD) 6th cycle 
housing element requirements.   
 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 196 of 290

https://scag.ca.gov/program-environmental-impact-report
https://scag.ca.gov/program-environmental-impact-report
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/6th-cycle-rhna-final-allocation-plan.pdf?1616462966
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/6th-cycle-rhna-final-allocation-plan.pdf?1616462966
https://maps.scag.ca.gov/helpr/
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/docs/sites_inventory_memo_final06102020.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/community-development/housing-element/docs/sites_inventory_memo_final06102020.pdf


January 13, 2022  SCAG No. IGR10542 
Mr. Marquez  Page 5 

 

SCAG Staff Comments 
 
Table 1. San Fernando RHNA Allocation for 2021-2029 by Income Category on page 9 of the IS/ND includes the correct 
Final RHNA Allocation numbers.  
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE 
 
Per Senate Bill 1000 (SB 1000), local jurisdictions in California with disadvantaged communities are required to 
develop an Environmental Justice (EJ) Element or consider EJ goals, policies, and objectives in their General Plans 
when updating two or more General Plan Elements. SCAG staff recommends that you review the Environmental 
Justice Technical Report and the updated Environmental Justice Toolbox, which is a resource document to assist 
local jurisdictions in developing EJ-related goals and policies regarding solutions for EJ-related community issues.  
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 197 of 290

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1000
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/0903fconnectsocal_environmental-justice.pdf?1606001617
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/0903fconnectsocal_environmental-justice.pdf?1606001617
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/toolbox_environmentaljustice_final.pdf?1621573326


 
 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment” 

 

  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA------- CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
DISTRICT 7 
100 S. MAIN STREET, MS 16 
LOS ANGELES, CA  90012 
PHONE  (213) 269-1124 
FAX  (213) 897-1337 
TTY  711 
www.dot.ca.gov 

  Making Conservation  
a California Way of Life 

 

December 27, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Gerardo Marquez 
Community Development Department 
City of San Fernando 
117 North MacNeil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
 
       

RE: San Fernando Housing Element Update 
             SCH # 2021120390 
             Vic. LA-05, LA-210, SR-118 Citywide 
             GTS # LA-2021-03799-MND 
 
 
Dear Mr. Marquez:  
 
Thank you for including the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) in the 
environmental review process for the above referenced environmental document.  The 
proposed plan involves updates to the General Plan Housing and Safety Element as well 
as incorporation of new General Plan Environmental Justice policies.  The 2021-2029 
Housing Element is being driven by the following regulatory requirements: (1) The 
Housing Element Update would update the City’s Housing Element as part of the 6th 
Cycle Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) and per compliance with California 
Government Code Sections 65580 to 65589.11.  (2) The Safety Element Update would 
update the City’s Safety Element to integrate climate adaptation and resiliency strategies 
into the General Plan per Senate Bill (SB) 379, which amended California Government 
Code Section 65302.  (3) Update of the Housing and Safety elements would include the 
addition of Environmental Justice-related goals, policies, and objectives per SB 1000, 
which amended Government Code Section 65302. 
 
The mission of Caltrans is to provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves 
all people and respects the environment.  Senate Bill 743 (2013) has codified into CEQA 
law and mandated that CEQA review of transportation impacts of proposed development 
be modified by using Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) as the primary metric in identifying 
transportation impacts for all future development projects.  You may reference the 
Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) for more information: 
 
http://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/updates/guidelines/ 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 198 of 290

http://opr.ca.gov/ceqa/updates/guidelines/


Mr. Gerardo Marquez 
December 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment” 

 
 

 
 
As a reminder, VMT is the standard transportation analysis metric in CEQA for land use 
projects after July 1, 2020, which is the statewide implementation date.   
 
Caltrans is aware of challenges that the region faces in identifying viable solutions to 
alleviating congestion on State and Local facilities.  With limited room to expand vehicular 
capacity, all future developments should incorporate multi-modal and complete streets 
transportation elements that will actively promote alternatives to car use and better 
manage existing parking assets.  Prioritizing and allocating space to efficient modes of 
travel such as bicycling and public transit can allow streets to transport more people in a 
fixed amount of right-of-way. 
 
Caltrans supports the implementation of complete streets and pedestrian safety 
measures such as road diets and other traffic calming measures.  Please note the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) recognizes the road diet treatment as a proven safety 
countermeasure, and the cost of a road diet can be significantly reduced if implemented 
in tandem with routine street resurfacing.  Overall, the environmental report should ensure 
all modes are served well by planning and development activities.  This includes reducing 
single occupancy vehicle trips, ensuring safety, reducing vehicle miles traveled, 
supporting accessibility, and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
For future specific projects, we encourage the Lead Agency to evaluate the potential of 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies and Intelligent Transportation 
System (ITS) applications in order to better manage the transportation network, as well 
as transit service and bicycle or pedestrian connectivity improvements.  For additional 
TDM options, please refer to the Federal Highway Administration’s Integrating Demand 
Management into the Transportation Planning Process: A Desk Reference (Chapter 8).  
This reference is available online at: 
 
http://www.ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop12035/fhwahop12035.pdf 
 
You can also refer to the 2010 Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures report 
by the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA), which is available 
online at:  
 
http://www.capcoa.org/wp-content/uploads/2010/11/CAPCOA-Quantification-Report-9-
14-Final.pdf 
 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 199 of 290

http://www.ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop12035/fhwahop12035.pdf
http://www.capcoa.org/wp-content/uploads/2010/11/CAPCOA-Quantification-Report-9-14-Final.pdf
http://www.capcoa.org/wp-content/uploads/2010/11/CAPCOA-Quantification-Report-9-14-Final.pdf


Mr. Gerardo Marquez 
December 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment” 

 
 

 
Also, Caltrans has published the VMT-focused Transportation Impact Study Guide 
(TISG), dated May 20, 2020 and the Caltrans Interim Land Development and 
Intergovernmental Review (LD-IGR) Safety Review Practitioners Guidance, prepared in 
On December 18, 2020.  You can review these resources at the following links:   
 
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportation-planning/documents/sb-
743/2020-05-20-approved-vmt-focused-tisg-a11y.pdf 
 
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportation-planning/documents/sb-
743/2020-12-22-updated-interim-ldigr-safety-review-guidance-a11y.pdf 
 
Caltrans encourages lead agencies to prepare traffic safety impact analysis for all 
developments in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review process so that, 
through partnerships and collaboration, California can reach zero fatalities and serious 
injuries by 2050.  
 
We concur that “implementation of the 2021-2029 Housing Element would result in 
housing development within urban infill areas of San Fernando, particularly along transit 
corridors and near existing commercial development.  Infill development typically 
decreases VMT because it places residential uses closer to services that support 
residents (e.g., grocery stores, restaurants, and other services) and encourages 
alternative modes of travel, such as walking and cycling.  Furthermore, the Housing 
Opportunity Sites are, in many cases, situated near or adjacent to transportation corridors 
and transit areas, facilitating fewer and shorter trip lengths.  SCAG’s Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program has programs to increase alternative transportation 
that would likewise be supported by infill development on the housing sites throughout 
San Fernando, as described in the 2021-2029 Housing Element.” 
 
We also concur that “the 2021-2029 Housing Element, in and of itself, does not propose 
specific projects but puts forth goals and policies that regulate various aspects of new 
housing development in San Fernando.  Because it is a policy document, the 2021-2029 
Housing Element will not, in and of itself, result in impacts to transportation or affect 
existing plans that address transportation and mobility.  Furthermore, future development 
accommodated under the 2021-2029 Housing Element would be subject to development 
plan review to determine potential concerns related to transportation and VMT based on 
site-specific locations and development design.  Development proposals for individual 
projects would be subject to adopted development guidelines, including standards that 
govern VMT, transportation, GHG, and associated issues. Any impacts identified for an 
individual 2021-2029 Housing Element project would be addressed through the project 
approval process, including design review specific to any potential impacts of that 
project.”   Therefore, the traffic impacts would be less than significant. 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 200 of 290

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportation-planning/documents/sb-743/2020-05-20-approved-vmt-focused-tisg-a11y.pdf
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportation-planning/documents/sb-743/2020-05-20-approved-vmt-focused-tisg-a11y.pdf
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportation-planning/documents/sb-743/2020-12-22-updated-interim-ldigr-safety-review-guidance-a11y.pdf
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportation-planning/documents/sb-743/2020-12-22-updated-interim-ldigr-safety-review-guidance-a11y.pdf


Mr. Gerardo Marquez 
December 27, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment” 

 
 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Mr. Alan Lin the project coordinator 
at (213) 269-1124 and refer to GTS # LA-2021-03799-MND. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
MIYA EDMONSON 
IGR/CEQA Branch Chief  
 
 
email: State Clearinghouse 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 201 of 290



 

 
December 21, 2021 
 
City of San Fernando 
Community Development Department  
117 North MacNeil Street  
San Fernando, CA 91340 
 
Att.: Gerardo Marquez, Interim Senior Planner 
 
Re: San Fernando Housing Element Update Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration  
 
Dear Mr. Marquez: 
 
Thank you for contacting the Tribal Elders’ Council for the Santa Ynez Band of 
Chumash Indians.  
 
At this time, the Elders’ Council requests no further consultation on this project; 
however, we understand that as part of NHPA Section 106, we must be notified of the 
project. 
 
Thank you for remembering that at one time our ancestors walked this sacred land. 

 
Sincerely Yours,  

 
Kelsie Shroll 
Administrative Assistant | Elders’ Council and Culture Department 
Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians | Tribal Hall  
(805) 688-7997 ext. 7516 
kshroll@santaynezchumash.org 

Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians 
Tribal Elders’ Council 
P.O. Box 517◆  Santa Ynez ◆ CA ◆ 93460 

Phone:  (805)688-7997 ◆  Fax:  (805)688-9578 ◆  Email: elders@santaynezchuhmash.org 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 202 of 290



https://selectivere.sharepoint.com/sites/Z2-Owned/Shared Documents/Ret_223_901 Truman/Asset 
Management_ID223/Title_Survey_Zoning_ID223/Zoning/LTR#1_City of San Fernando_Need for Additional Housing_ID223_011422.docx 

Selective 901 Truman, LLC 
a California limited liability company 

16830 Ventura Blvd., Suite 320 
Encino, CA 91436 
818-995-4900  Fax 818-995-4911 

  www.SelectiveRE.com
 

 
January 14, 2022 

 
Mr. Gerardo Marquez 
Associate Planner 
117 Macneil St, San Fernando, CA 91340 
email: GMarquez@sfcity.org 

 
RE:  City of San Fernando 
 SAN FERNANDO HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE 
 Rinon Consulting – DRAFT Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration 

APNs: 2522-001-003 & -004   |   901 – 1041 Truman Street, San Fernando, CA 91340  
 
Dear Mr. Marquez: 
 
Per our several conversations during the last month, I am writing the below summary of 
thoughts related to possible locations for housing within the City of San Ferando to meet State 
of California housing planning requirements.  The updated plan as currently proposed is flawed 
as, while it does make some effort, it does not incorporate sites that clearly should be identified 
for high density housing.  The Rincon study is encumbered by the city’s previously adopted 
ordinance SP-5 limiting housing. 

 
Given the shortage of housing in the state and LA County in particular, local communities 
throughout the state are updating their plans to allow and seek for housing to be close to mass 
transit, including rail.   In almost all cases on record in nearly all communities throughout our 
state, communities are aggressively seeking additional housing near mass transit locations.   
Unfortunately, the City of San Fernando, largely based on the push of certain local developers 
to try to benefit their properties, previously implemented San Fernando Corridors Specific Plan 
(SP-5) which does not permit housing to be developed within 200 feet of railroad rights of way.   
This ordinance, SP-5, puts San Fernando at a disadvantage to growing its community in a 
manner to enable more housing while reducing the need for personal cars.   Ordinance SP-5 
basically says that the State of California and nearly all other communities in California are in 
error and that housing should not be near mass transit as rail.    
 
I strongly suggest the City of San Fernando engage a true “neutral” housing consulting 
group familiar with the ordinances being adopted throughout the State of California to 
confirm what may be the best practices for the City of San Fernando to both grow its 
economy, provide affordable housing, and benefit its residents and businesses.   
 
I have reviewed the proposed update to the General Plan and would like you to consider adding 
for future housing consideration the city block we own along Truman to the Housing 
Element.   The location for discussion is 901-1041 Truman Street (photograph attached).  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 203 of 290



The 901-1041 Truman location comprises a city block from Maclay to Brand along Truman 
Street and currently has a Denny’s restaurant at Maclay and continues with retail shops to a 
liquor store adjacent to Brand Blvd.  The assessor APNs are: 2522-001-003 and -004. 
 
Based on rail being so integral to this City and bisecting it, the City of San Fernando has an 
excellent opportunity to provide housing along the railway.  Given the 901-1041 Truman Street 
size of 84,000 square feet of land, a sizeable housing or mixed use project could be provided in 
close location to City Hall in San Fernando, food and other amenities, bus stops, and the main 
rail station.   Overall, housing close the city center would make a lot of sense.      
  
We own several properties in the City of San Fernando as listed below.    
 

Ownership APNs Common Address Lot Size (sq. ft.) 
Selective 1111 Harris 2520-009-002, 003 & 005 

& 007; 2520-018-006 
1416 – 1700 1st Street  122,356 

Selective 1407 Truman 2521 001 006  
 

1407 Truman Street 35,935 

Selective Ashlan 2522 002 006 

 
1013-1015 San 
Fernando Road 

4,500 

Selective 901 Truman  2522-001-003 & -004 
 

901-1041 Truman St. 84,682 

 
This letter is NOT to advocate for our projects alone.  We are only advocating for housing 
for the location at 901-1041 Truman Street which, after review by any expert familiar 
with housing community planning and development, would recommend this site be slated 
for dense housing or mixed use with housing above commercial.  Any expert would suggest 
that City of San Fernando Ordinance SP-5 be eliminated in areas where housing and/or 
density makes sense for an overall benefit to the community.  
 
Any future housing should be developed to both meet the needs of the State of California.   
Many examples of throughout Los Angeles and its surrounding counties are actively seeking 
housing adjacent to the expanding Metro, Expo and other rail lines.  Housing is being 
encouraged near freeway or other mass transit sites.  Projects are being designed with insulated 
windows and with no sound barriers to projects.   There are so many examples of successful 
housing projects next to transit that there are just too many to identify.   From the Bay Area, 
and its surrounding communities, to Los Angles and Long Beach, to downtown San Diego, the 
lists of newly planned or developed housing projects as close to mass transit as possible are in 
the hundreds.  A common example which has been a success is the housing project at Howard 
Hughes center at LAX which is adjacent to the 405 with no sound walls and all attenuation done 
in the residences.  

 
I appreciate this letter being put in the public record and would welcome the opportunity to help 
the City of San Fernando grow its economic base and transition towards the future. 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 204 of 290



Included is an image of 901-1041 Truman Street and its relationship to the core of the City of 
San Fernando.   This site should be housing and/or mixed-use commercial with housing.  
Ordinance SP-5 should be modified to provide a benefit as additional housing is needed. 
 

 
 

I can be reached at the above phone should you wish to discuss further.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Selective 901 Truman, LLC  
a California Limited Liability Company 

 
By: Selective Retail 215, LLC,  
       A California Limited Liability Company, its Manager 

 
 By:  Brian A. Fagan, President  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 205 of 290



MATTHEW GELFAND, COUNSEL
MATT@CAFORHOMES.ORG

TEL: (213) 739-8206

March 30, 2022

Kanika Kith
City of San Fernando
Email: KKanika@sfcity.org; CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org

RE: San Fernando’s failure to timely adopt a Sixth Cycle Housing Element.

Dear Kanika Kith:

Californians for Homeownership is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization that uses impact
litigation to address California’s housing crisis. We are monitoring local compliance with the law
governing housing elements. Our understanding is that the City has not adopted a sixth cycle
housing element, which it was required to do by October 15, 2021.1 It also missed the second
compliance deadline of February 12, 2022, subjecting it to additional penalties.2 We are currently
preparing for litigation against cities that have not timely adopted housing elements, like yours.

In light of the City’s failure to timely adopt its housing element, our organization could
immediately sue the City under Code of Civil Procedure Section 1085 to compel it to adopt a
compliant housing element.3 As a result of this litigation, in addition to being ordered to adopt a
housing element on a short timeline,4 the City could also face a number of serious penalties. For
example, the court could suspend all non-residential permitting,5 or could judicially approve
housing development projects within the City.6 And the court could impose these penalties while
the litigation is pending, even before reaching a final decision.7 Housing element litigation is given
priority in the court system,8 and a successful plaintiff can obtain attorneys’ fees under Code of
Civil Procedure Section 1021.5. Indeed, in a recent case involving the City of Huntington Beach’s
housing element, a court awarded another non-profit organization over $3.5 million in fees.9

The purpose of this letter is to offer the City a pathway to avoid immediate litigation by
our organization. Enclosed is an Acknowledgment that sets forth some of the penalties to which
the City is currently subject in light of the City’s failure to adopt a housing element. If the City
signs and returns the Acknowledgment, we will not initiate litigation against the City at this time.

1 Gov. Code § 65588(e)(3).
2 Gov. Code §§ 65583(c)(1)(A), 65583.2(c), and 65588(e)(4)(C).
3 Gov. Code §§ 65587, 65751.
4 Gov. Code § 65754.
5 Gov. Code § 65755(a)(1).
6 Gov. Code § 65755(a)(4).
7 Gov. Code § 65757.
8 Gov. Code § 65752.
9 https://www.communitylegalsocal.org/kennedy-commission-awarded-3-5-million-in-attorneys-fees-for-advocacy-
in-huntington-beach-low-income-housing-case/

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 206 of 290



March 30, 2022
Page 2

We ask that you return the Acknowledgement by April 6, 2022. If you decline to do so,
understand that we may initiate litigation against the City, using the City’s refusal to acknowledge
these basic requirements of state housing law to demonstrate the existence of a dispute
necessitating judicial intervention. As part of the litigation, we would likely seek a judicial
declaration that the City is subject to the same penalties described in the Acknowledgment, among
other remedies. We have dedicated in-house resources sufficient to maintain at least 10
simultaneous housing element lawsuits as part of our commitment to enforcing this important
aspect of state housing law.

Finally, while we acknowledge that it takes a significant dedication of resources to comply
with the requirements of state housing element law, it is worth noting that many cities throughout
the Southern California (SCAG) region, both big and small, have already adopted their sixth cycle
housing elements after fully complying with state law mandates governing consultation with the
public and the state Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). We believe
that, with appropriate planning, all of the SCAG cities could have adopted their housing elements
by the October 15, 2021 deadline. For this reason, it would not be productive to respond to this
letter by listing the steps the City has taken towards adoption, or the obstacles it has faced. Instead,
we simply ask that the City sign the Acknowledgment. There are no statutory exceptions to the
penalties identified in the Acknowledgment, and HCD does not have the authority to excuse the
City from them.

We look forward to receiving the signed Acknowledgment. If you would like to discuss
any of this with me, please do not hesitate to give me a call at (213) 739-8206.

Sincerely,

Matthew Gelfand

cc: Richard Padilla, Esq., Assistant City Attorney (by email to rpadilla@omlolaw.com)

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 207 of 290



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The City of San Fernando hereby acknowledges that it has not timely adopted a sixth cycle
revised housing element of its general plan within the deadline set forth in Government Code
Section 65588, and that its housing element is therefore not in substantial compliance with Article
10.6 of the Government Code. As a result, the City is subject to the following:

1. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 65583(c)(1)(A), 65583.2(c), and
65588(e)(4)(C), the City will be required to complete any rezoning required under
housing element law in connection with the City’s sixth cycle housing element by
October 15, 2022.

2. The City is currently prohibited from rejecting housing development projects
based on subdivisions (d)(1) and (d)(5) of the Housing Accountability Act (HAA),
Government Code Section 65589.5. The City acknowledges that this means that,
unless another exception within subdivision (d) applies, the City is prohibited from
using its general plan and zoning standards to reject a proposal that meets the
affordability requirements described in subdivision (h)(3) of the HAA.

The public, including without limitation any applicant to develop any project involving
residential units, may rely on this Acknowledgment as the City’s binding commitment to comply
with the provisions of state law described above.

DATED: ________________, 2022 CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

By: _____________________________
[Signature]

_____________________________
[Name]

Its: _____________________________
[Title]

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 208 of 290



1

Kanika Kith

From: Aaron Aszkenazy <aaron@aszkenazy.com>
Sent: Monday, May 2, 2022 3:11 PM
To: Kanika Kith
Subject: Housing Sites

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

Kanika, 
 
I am emailing you with two sites we would be interested in developing housing in the future and request to be included in 
the housing plan as opportunity sites.   
 
See below.  
 

 603 San Fernando Road, San Fernando, CA 91340 
 411 S Brand Blvd, San Fernando, CA 91304 

 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 

 

Aaron Aszkenazy  
Development/Finance  
200 San Fernando Mission Blvd. Ste #200 
San Fernando, CA 91340  
t. (818) 270-9090 | m. (323) 868-1242 
w. www.aszkenazy.com 

 

Please consider the environment before printing this e‐mail 
 
This information is intended only for the use of the intended addressee(s). If you have received this communication in error, please notify me immediately via e-mail at 
aaron@aszkenazy.com. Please delete this email and any attachments received in error. 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 209 of 290



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 210 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 211 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 212 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☐ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
   
Date:  June 6, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Requiring the Adoption of Mandatory Water 

Conservation Measures in the City of San Fernando 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8151 (Attachment “A”) requiring the adoption of mandatory water 

conservation measures in the City of San Fernando; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to implement education and enforcement programs to support 
mandatory water conservation efforts to reduce water usage by 20 percent from 2020 water 
usage levels.  

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 
1. The hydrological conditions in the Colorado River system and in California are at historically 

low levels.  Fifty percent of the Southern California region’s water supply comes from the 
state water reserves (State Water Project) located in Northern California. 

 
2. On June 21, 2021, the City Council adopted the City’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan, 

which included a new chapter on the City’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan required by the 
California Department of Water Resources. 

 
3. On July 8, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a drought emergency for most counties 

in the State of California, requesting a voluntary 15% reduction for counties from their 2020 
levels.  This declaration excluded Los Angeles County. 

 
4. On October 19, 2021, Governor Newsom issued a proclamation that extended his previous 

drought declaration to the entire state and included Los Angeles County. 
 

5. On November 15, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8105 declaring a multi-year 
drought emergency and implementing voluntary conservation measures of 10 percent. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 213 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Requiring the Adoption of Mandatory Water Conservation 
Measures in the City of San Fernando   
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
6. On April 13, 2022, the City had to shut down its highest producing groundwater well, Well 

No. 2A, as a result of elevated nitrate levels in the drinking water.  
 

7. Since April 13, 2022, the City has been importing water from the Metropolitan Water District 
(MWD) to meet its water demand. 

 
8. On May 16, 2022, staff provided an informational report to City Council on a 3-year cash flow 

analysis of the City’s water system and water conservation. Staff was directed to return to 
City Council with a resolution to consider more stringent water conservation measures. 

 
9. On May 25, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted emergency regulations 

that require all urban water suppliers to implement conservation actions under Level 2 of 
their adopted Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP). 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The state and Southern California region has been experiencing a historical drought period for 
multiple consecutive years. This has resulted in a significantly reduced water supply for the 
region. In response to this, San Fernando has made great strides in water conservation, as water 
demand in the City has decreased by 27% since 2008 – from 138 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) 
in 2008 to 101 gpcd in 2020.  This compares with an average of 121 gpcd statewide and 107 gpcd 
for the South Coast region, which includes the County of Los Angeles. While the City has 
outperformed regional and state averages, this unprecedented drought period requires 
continued water conservation action. The need for action is accentuated by the fact that the City 
is currently importing water from MWD for the first time since 2015 and, for a temporary period, 
is no longer self-sufficient on City-owned groundwater wells. 
 
On May 25, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted new regulations that require 
all urban water suppliers to consult their Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Attachment “B”) and 
implement Level 2 mandatory water conservation measures. In order to meet this State 
mandate, the City’s adopted WSCP highlights Level 2 measures that require a mandatory 20 
percent reduction in water consumption.  The required prohibitions outlined in the WSCP include 
the following:  
 

a) Gutter flooding – No person shall cause or permit any water furnished to any property to 
run or escape into any gutter if such running can be reasonably prevented. 
 

b) Washing hard-surfaced areas – No person shall use any water furnished to any property 
within the city to wash sidewalks, driveways, etc. by hosing. 
  

c) Irrigation – No person shall water any type of vegetation or landscaping during the hours 
of 10:00 am and 5:00 pm.  
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 214 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Requiring the Adoption of Mandatory Water Conservation 
Measures in the City of San Fernando   
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

d) Ornamental facilities – No person shall refill any fountain, pool or other facility containing 
water solely for ornamental purposes.  

 
e) Leaks – No person shall permit leaks of water, which he/she has the authority to 

eliminate. 
 

f) Restaurants – Restaurants shall only serve water to customers upon request.  
 

g) Washing vehicles – Washing of vehicles, trailers, boats, etc. shall be done only with a 
handheld buckets or hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle for quick rinses, except that 
washing may be done with reclaimed water or a commercial car wash using recycled 
water. 

 
h) Watering lawns and landscape – All lawns and landscape shall be watered not more than 

every other day, on the assigned day (either an odd-numbered or even-numbered day). 
 

i) Wasting generally – No person shall cause or permit water under his or her control to be 
wasted.  

 
Watering Restrictions. 
With respect to the restriction of watering lawns and landscape, MWD’s board of directors 
adopted emergency measures on April 26, 2022, that restrict the irrigation of landscapes to one 
day a week. All cities and water suppliers that receive State Project water from Northern 
California through MWD are required to follow the same emergency restrictions. The City is 
currently receiving Colorado River water from MWD. Staff has been told that in the next few 
months, the same restrictions may apply to the Colorado River source, as well.  
 
As a result, staff is recommending that the City implement a more stringent measure than is 
highlighted in the WSCP in order to be compliant-ready with the MWD measures that will soon 
apply to the Colorado River water supply.  This requirement would match what was put into 
effect by MWD, which will restrict watering of lawns and landscapes to just one day a week.  The 
exception to this restriction is for the use of a drip system that is used for growing food, plants, 
or trees. As up to 50 percent of water consumption can come from irrigation, restricting the 
watering of lawns and landscapes to just one day a week can have a significant impact on the 
success of the City’s ability to reach its mandatory requirement of an overall 20 percent reduction 
in water consumption. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
With the current need to import water from MWD, the City is absorbing these costs within the 
Water Fund. Any success in reducing the amount of water that is imported from MWD through 
conservation measures will have a positive impact in reducing overall expenditures within the 
Water Fund in FY 2022-2023. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 215 of 290



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Requiring the Adoption of Mandatory Water Conservation 
Measures in the City of San Fernando   
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8151, which will require a 
mandatory 20 percent reduction in water consumption. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8151 
B. Water Shortage Contingency Plan (adopted June 21, 2021) 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 216 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 8151 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING AND IMPLEMENTING PHASE II 
OF THE CITY’S WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN AND RELATED 
MANDATORY WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES PURSUANT TO 
CHAPTER 94, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 4 OF THE SAN FERNANDO 
MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando (“The City”) owns and operates its own water system 
and is the only disadvantaged community that is entirely represented as a member agency of the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“MWD”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando’s two main sources of water, 1) local groundwater, 
and 2) imported water through MWD, face continuing drought conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, hydrological conditions in the Colorado River system and in California are at 
historically low levels, triggering the first ever shortage declared by the United States Department 
of the Interior; and 
 

WHEREAS, extreme heat and exceptionally dry soils have depleted run-off and natural 
replenishment of groundwater in the Sylmar Basin, along the Colorado River, and in the Northern 
Sierra; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando relies primarily on groundwater from the Sylmar 
Basin to supply water to residents and businesses; and   
 

WHEREAS, statewide storage reserves in Lake Powell, Lake Mead and Lake Oroville, which 
accounts for fifty-percent (50%) of Southern California’s supply, are in record low conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 21, 2021, the City Council adopted and Urban Water Management 

Plan, which includes a Water Shortage Contingency Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 8, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom requested voluntary conservation 

measures in most counties in California to reduce demands to fifteen percent below 2020 levels 
under Executive Order N-10-21 and issued a proclamation on October 19, 2021, to extend the 
voluntary measures statewide; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 15, 2021, the City Council declared a multi-year drought 

emergency and requested ten percent (10%) voluntary conservation measures citywide; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2022, MWD’s Board of Directors adopted emergency measures to 
restrict watering of lawns and landscape to one day a week; and 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 217 of 290



RES. NO. 8151 

2 

WHEREAS, on May 25, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted 
regulations that requires all urban water suppliers to implement Level 2 provisions of their Water 
Shortage Contingency Plans, which requires a mandatory twenty-percent (20%) reduction of 
water consumption; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando’s residents have maintained water supply demands 
at least fifteen percent (15%) below 2013 levels when the last drought began and have reduced 
per capita usage by twenty-seven percent (27%) since 2008 (Water Demand: in 2008 - 138 gpcd; 
in 2013 - 126 gpcd; and in 2020 - 101 gpcd); and 
 

WHEREAS, the State goal for per capita water usage by 2030 is 50 gallons per capita per 
day (gpcd); and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 94-286 (Phase II water shortage (mandatory conservation) of the 

Division 4 of Article III of Chapter 94 of the San Fernando Municipal Code provides as follows: 
 

(a) A phase II shortage shall be declared when the city determines that a shortage of up 
to 20 percent will occur in water supplies. 

All elements of section 94-288 (Prohibitions) shall apply in phase II on a mandatory basis. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The City Council finds that all of the recitals, above, are true and correct.  

The City Council declares that the region continues to be in a state of an imminent multi-year 
drought emergency and that a shortage of up to 20 percent will occur in water supplies.  
Accordingly, the City Council hereby declares a Phase II water shortage as authorized under 
Section 94-286 of the San Fernando Municipal Code 
 

SECTION 2. The City Council calls for additional, more restrictive conservation 
measures and preparations to avert the impacts of the looming extreme weather and shortage 
conditions. These measures, outlined in the City’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, include the 
following: 

 
• Gutter flooding – No person shall cause or permit any water furnished to any property to 

run or escape into any gutter if such running can be reasonably prevented. 
• Washing hard-surfaced areas – No person shall use any water furnished to any property 

within the city to wash sidewalks, driveways, etc. by hosing.  
• Irrigation – No person shall water any type of vegetation or landscaping during the hours 

of 10:00 am and 5:00 pm.  
• Ornamental facilities – No person shall refill any fountain, pool or other facility containing 

water solely for ornamental purposes.  
• Leaks – No person shall permit leaks of water, which he/she has the authority to 

eliminate. 
• Restaurants – Restaurants shall only serve water to customers upon request.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 218 of 290



RES. NO. 8151 

3 

• Washing vehicles – Washing of vehicles, trailers, boats, etc. shall be done only with a 
handheld buckets or hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle for quick rinses, except that 
washing may be done with reclaimed water or a commercial car wash using recycled 
water. 

• Watering lawns and landscape – All lawns and landscape shall be watered not more than 
one day per week, on an assigned day. The exception to this is for the use of drip-style 
irrigation that is used to grow food or water plants or trees. 

• Wasting generally – No person shall cause or permit water under his or her control to be 
wasted. 

 
SECTION 3. In addition to the mandatory measures referenced above, the City Council 

also strongly encourages its businesses, residents and agency partners to implement all efficiency 
measures through personal choices of responsible water use, use of existing conservation 
rebates, and planting of California native and drought tolerant vegetation, landscaping and trees. 
 

SECTION 4. The City Council directs City Staff to work with regional partners to 
customize communication materials, outreach efforts and education programs with residents, 
businesses, educational institutions, faith-based organizations, and other institutions operating 
in the City about the developing water crisis and the measures to combat its impacts. 
 

SECTION 5. The City Council requests mandatory conservation measures from 
businesses and residents to reduce water demands twenty percent below 2020 levels. 

 
SECTION 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption by the City 

Council and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution and enter 
it into the book of original Resolutions.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th day of June, 2022. 

 
 
        

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 219 of 290



RES. NO. 8151 

4 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8151 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 220 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 1

WATER SHORTAGE 
CONTINGENCY PLAN 

8.1 INTRODUCTION 

Water supplies may be interrupted or reduced significantly in a number of ways including 
droughts, earthquakes, and power outages, which can hinder a water agency’s ability to effectively 
delivery water. Drought impacts increase with the length of a drought as carry-over supplies in 
reservoirs are depleted and water levels in groundwater basins decline. The ability to manage water 
supplies in times of drought or other emergencies is an important part of water resources 
management for a community. Although the majority of the City’s water supply is produced 
locally, response to an emergency will be a coordinated effort between its own staff and other local 
and regional water agencies. 

Recent water supply challenges throughout the American Southwest and the State of California 
have resulted in the development of a number of policy actions that water agencies would 
implement in the event of a water shortage. In Southern California, the development of such 
policies has occurred at both the wholesale and retail level. This section addresses elements related 
to the urban water supplier’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) describing new and 
existing policies that MWD and the City have in place to respond to water supply shortages, 
including a catastrophic interruption and a greater than 50 percent mandatory reduction in total 
potable water supply. The City will also coordinate with MWD to implement water shortage plans 
on a regional level. 

8.2 WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ANALYSIS 

8.2.1 Water Service Reliability Assessment 

Southern California is expected to experience an increase in regional demands in the years 2025 
through 2045 as a result of population growth. Although increases in demand are expected, future 
demands are effectively limited due to the requirements of SBx7-7. It can be reasonably expected 
that the majority of agencies have met or were near their compliance targets for 2020 and will 
continue to meet, or will soon meet, their per-capita usage limit in the future.

The data in the MWD 2020 UWMP shows supply reliability projections for average and single 
dry years and is important to effectively project and analyze supply and demand over the next 25 
years for many regional agencies. Projected supplies during single and multiple dry year scenarios 
indicate MWD’s projected supply will exceed its projected single dry year demands in all years. 
Likewise, for average years, MWD supply exceeds projected demands for all years. 

SECTION 8

ATTACHMENT "B"June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 221 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  2 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

Due to the semi-arid nature of the City's climate and as a result of past drought conditions, the City 
is vulnerable to water shortages due to its climatic environment and seasonally hot summer 
months. Section 6 describes the water availability during single and multiple dry year scenarios. 
Tables 8.1, 8.2, and 8.3 summarize the supply and demand comparisons during normal, single-
dry year, and multiple dry year, respectively. 

Table 8.1: Normal Year Supply & Demand Comparison (AF) (DWR Table 7-2 R) 

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Supply totals 4,199 4,199 4,199 4,199 4,199 

Demand totals 2,910 2,960 3,011 3,062 3,114 

Difference 1,289 1,239 1,188 1,137 1,085 

Table 8.2: Single Dry Year Supply & Demand Comparison (AF) (DWR Table 7-3 R) 

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Supply totals 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Demand totals 3,273 3,329 3,386 3,444 3,503 

Difference 297 241 184 126 67 

Table 8.3: Multiple Dry Year Supply & Demand Comparison (AF) (DWR Table 7-4 R) 

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

First year 

Supply totals 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Demand totals 3,238 3,293 3,349 3,406 3,465 

Difference 332 277 221 164 105 

Second year 

Supply totals 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Demand totals 3,443 3,502 3,562 3,623 3,684 

Difference 127 68 8 (53) (114) 

Third year 

Supply totals 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Demand totals 3,535 3,595 3,656 3,719 3,782 

Difference 35 (25) (86) (149) (212) 

Fourth year 

Supply totals 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Demand totals 3,358 3,416 3,474 3,533 3,594 

Difference 212 154 96 37 (24) 

Fifth year 

Supply totals 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Demand totals 2,892 2,942 2,992 3,043 3,095 

Difference 678 628 578 527 475 

SANfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 222 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 3 

As shown in Tables 8.1 to 8.3, the City can meet the majority of future demands through 2045; 
however, the City service area indicates supply deficits in the analysis. Because the City has access 
to MWD water, a shortfall of groundwater supplies may be supplemented by imported water 
supply from MWD. Furthermore, these projections do not include groundwater right agreements 
with outside agencies. The City may consider groundwater lease agreements with the City of Los 
Angeles to pump additional groundwater if they anticipate to exceed their adjudicated groundwater 
rights within the Sylmar Groundwater Basin. 

8.2.2 Five-Year Drought Risk Assessment 

Due to the surface and subsurface inflows from the Santa Susana and San Gabriel Mountains and 
natural percolation, the Sylmar Basin has moderate dry season groundwater supply protection. 
Additionally, due to the stipulations of the Sylmar Judgment, the City may extract up to 10 percent 
in excess of its adjudicated right of 3,570 AFY. If the City leases additional groundwater from the 
City of Los Angeles, this will result in even greater supply reliability benefits during dry seasons 
that may occur during the course of the City's lease. Furthermore, since the City will continue to 
have access to imported water, the City may import water to meet demand, if necessary.  

Imported water supplies, like groundwater, are subject to demand increases and reduced supplies 
during dry years; however, MWD modeling in its 2020 UWMP, as referenced in Tables 6.2 to 6.3 
in Section 6, results in 100 percent reliability for full-service demands through the year 2045 for 
all climatic conditions. Based on the conditions described above, the City anticipates the ability to 
meet water demand for all climatic conditions for the near future 

New to the 2020 UWMP is the Drought Risk Assessment (DRA) over a 5-year period examining 
the reliability of the City’s water supplies. Table 8.4 shows the results of the analysis. The analysis 
was done utilizing DWR’s DRA Planning Tool to determine supply and demand projections, and 
to analyze the City’s vulnerability to droughts. The tool also allows water purveyors to utilize 
potential water usage saving or supply augmentation methods to mitigate supply shortfalls. These 
water usages saving methods (restrictions) and supply augmentations are further discussed in the 
WSCP. As shown, the City is capable to meet the projected demands based on the estimated water 
supplies during drought conditions without the need for WSCP stage implementation. 

Table 8.4: Five-Year Drought Risk Assessment (AF) (DWR Table 7-5) 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 

Total Water Use 2,871 2,881 2,891 2,900 2,910 

Total Supplies 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 
Surplus/Shortfall w/o WSCP 
Action 699 689 679 670 660 

Planned WSCP Actions (Use Reduction and Supply Augmentation) 

Supply Augmentation Benefit 
from WSCP Response 0 0 0 0 0 
Use Reduction Savings Benefit 
from WSCP Response 0 0 0 0 0 

Revised Surplus/Shortfall 699 689 679 670 660 
Resulting % Use Reduction from 
WSCP Action 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SANfERNANID 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 223 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  4 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

Response to a future drought would follow the water use efficiency mandates of the City's phased 
water conservation program along with implementation of the appropriate stage of regional plans, 
such as MWD's Water Surplus Drought Management (WSDM) Plan as described later in this 
section. 

8.3 ANNUAL WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND ASSESSMENT PROCEDURES 

Under CWC Section 10632(a)(2), beginning by July 1, 2022, each urban water supplier is required 
to prepare their annual water supply and demand assessment (Annual Assessment) and submit an 
Annual Water Shortage Assessment Report to DWR. The Annual Water Shortage Assessment 
Report will be due by July 1 of every year, as required by CWC Section 10632.1. 

This section outlines the City’s procedures used in conducting an Annual Assessment, including 
the following: 1) written decision-making process for determining water supply reliability; and 2) 
key data inputs and assessment methodology for evaluating the water supply reliability for the 
current year and one dry year. 

8.3.1 Decision-Making Process 

The City’s Annual Assessment will be mostly based on daily recorded water production and supply 
figures. Water consumption is monitored regularly through the metering of all City service 
connections in its distribution system. To determine its water supply reliability and actual 
reductions in water use during declared water shortages or emergencies, the City can rely on its 
daily records as well as the weekly, monthly, and annual reports prepared. These periodical 

Figure 8.1: Severe Droughts Highlight the Importance of Conservation Ordinances (Lake Oroville in 2014) 

SANfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 224 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 5 

analyses are used by the City to manage resources to meet projected demands and adjust to 
changing conditions (i.e., precipitation) throughout the year. 

Starting in 2022, City staff will submit and present a finalized Annual Water Shortage Assessment 
Report to the City Council for approval by June each year. City staff will also present 
determination of recommended water shortage response actions deemed appropriate as a result of 
the Annual Assessment. Following approval, City staff will submit the approved Annual Water 
Shortage Assessment Report to DWR by July 1 of every year. The functional procedures for the 
decision-making process are depicted in the following timeline shown in Figure 8.2. 

8.3.2  Key Data Inputs and Assessment Methodology 

This section defines the key data inputs and assessment methodology used to evaluate the water 
supply reliability for the anticipated conditions for the current year and for one dry year that 
follows. The Annual Assessment determination will focus on the current year unconstrained 
demand, infrastructure constraints, and total water supply availability. Moreover, the Annual 
Assessment will consider the current year’s weather, population growth, policies in place that will 
impact demands, and other influencing factors. The current year available supply will incorporate 
the hydrological regulatory conditions for the current year and following dry year. 

Locally Applicable Evaluation Criteria 

The locally applicable evaluation criteria that will be consistently relied on for each Annual 
Assessment include the following: 

1) Assumed unconstrained demand (i.e., demand without any conservation measures) for
current year and one dry year

2) Assumed total water supply availability for current year and one dry year

Figure 8.2: Sample Annual Assessment Decision-Making Process Timeline 

SANfERNANID 

Preliminary Procedures 
Announce WSCP Team for 
current year 
Determine water supply 
available 
Determine water demands 
Determine infrastructure 
constraints 

Shortage Response Actions 
Approve/activate shortage 
response actions 

Annual Assessment 
Determination 

Finalize Annual Assessment 
Present final decision making 
approval document to City 
Council 

July 1 Deadline 
Finalize and submit Annual 
Water Shortage Assessment 
Report to DWR 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 225 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  6 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

3) Existing infrastructure capabilities and plausible constraints
• Any known issues with the water facilities (including water quality conditions limiting

local sources)
• Planned power outages for operation and maintenance
• New construction and repairs
• Environmental mitigation measures
• Other constraints that may affect near-term water supply reliability

Water Supply Sources Description and Quantification 

As part of the Annual Assessment, the total available water supply evaluation criteria will comprise 
of the City’s water supply sources as shown and quantified in Tables 8.5 and 8.6. 

Table 8.5: 2020 Water Supply (AF) (DWR Table 6-8 Retail) 

Water Supply Additional Detail on 
Water Supply 

2020 

Actual 
Volume 

Water 
Quality 

Total Right or 
Safe Yield 

Purchased or Imported Water MWD 0 Drinking 
Water  629 

Groundwater (not 
desalinated) 

Sylmar Groundwater 
Basin 2,862 Drinking 

Water  3,570 

Total 2,862 4,199 

Table 8.6: Projected Water Supply Availability (AF) (DWR Table 6-9 Retail) 

Water Supply Additional Detail on 
Water Supply 

Projected Water Supplies 

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

Purchased or 
Imported Water MWD 629 629 629 629 629 

Groundwater (not 
desalinated) 

Sylmar Groundwater 
Basin 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 3,570 

Total 4,199 4,199 4,199 4,199 4,199 

Imported Water Purchases 

The City receives its imported water supply from MWD. Supply from MWD originates from the 
Colorado River and the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta in Northern California. From 2015 
to 2020, imported water has accounted for 0 percent of the City's potable water supply total. This 
independence from imported water is the result of the City's groundwater pumping ability. The 
City is projected to be able to have access to its full Tier 1 limit supply with MWD of 629 AFY as 
shown in Table 8.6. 

SANfERNANID 

11111111111111111111 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 226 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 7 

Groundwater Supply 

The City uses its groundwater wells to extract groundwater from the Sylmar Groundwater Basin 
and has an adjudicated right of about 3,570 AFY. The City currently maintains three active wells 
(Well Nos. 2A, 4A, and 7A) and one standby well (Well No. 3) for groundwater extraction. 

8.4 SHORTAGE STAGES AND SHORTAGE RESPONSE ACTIONS 

8.4.1 MWD Stages of Action 

Water Surplus & Drought Management Plan (WSDM) 

In addition to the provisions of the City's Conservation Ordinance, the City will also work in 
conjunction with MWD to implement conservation measures within the framework of MWD's 
WSDM Plan. The WSDM Plan was developed in 1999 by MWD with assistance and input with 
its member agencies. The plan addresses both surplus and shortage contingencies. 

The WSDM Plan guiding principle is to minimize adverse 
impacts of water shortage and ensure regional reliability. The 
plan guides the operations of water resources (local resources, 
Colorado River, SWP, and regional storage) to ensure regional 
reliability. It identifies the expected sequence of resource 
management actions MWD will take during surpluses and 
shortages of water to minimize the probability of severe 
shortages that require curtailment of full-service demands. 
Mandatory allocations are avoided to the extent practicable; 
however, in the event of an extreme shortage, an allocation plan 
will be implemented. 

In addition to its WSDM Plan, MWD developed a Water Supply Allocation Plan (WSAP), which 
provides a standardized methodology for allocation of supplies during times of extreme shortage 
(Stage 7 in MWD’s WSDM Plan). During a shortage, the City’s imported water supplies will be 
allocated based on the methodology documented in MWD’s allocation plan. 

The following description of shortage stages is from MWD’s 2020 UWMP, page 2-29: 

“Shortage: Metropolitan can meet full-service demands and partially meet or fully meet 
interruptible demands, using stored water or water transfers as necessary. 

Severe Shortage: Metropolitan can meet full-service demands only by using stored water, 
transfers, and possibly calling for extraordinary conservation. 

Extreme Shortage: Metropolitan allocates available supply to full-service customers. 

MWD's WSDM and WSAP 
Plans help guide drought 
management for many 
agencies throughout the 
region. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 227 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  8 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

The WSDM Plan also defines six shortage management stages to guide resource 
management activities. These stages are not defined merely by shortfalls in imported 
water supply, but also by the water balances in Metropolitan’s storage programs. Thus, a 
10 percent shortfall in imported supplies could be a stage one shortage if storage levels 
are high.  If storage levels are already depleted, the same shortfall in imported supplies 
could potentially be defined as a more severe shortage. 

When Metropolitan must make net withdrawals from storage to meet demands, it is 
considered to be in a shortage condition. Under most of these stages, Metropolitan is still 
able to meet all end-use demands for water. For shortage stages 1 through 3, 
Metropolitan will meet demands by withdrawing water from storage. At shortage stages 
4 and 5, Metropolitan may undertake additional shortage management steps, including 
issuing public calls for extraordinary conservation and exercising water transfer options, 
or purchasing water on the open market.” 

MWD Water Supply Allocation Plan (for WSDM Shortage Stage 7) 

In February 2008, MWD’s Board of Directors adopted a WSAP, which includes a methodology 
for calculating supply allocations in the event that MWD enters a Shortage Stage 7 and is unable 
to meet the demands of its member agencies. MWD revised its WSAP in 2014 to include the 
following updates: new FY 12-13 to FY 13-14 baseline, implement a Conservation Demand 

Figure 8.3: Lake Mead “Bathtub Ring” (December 20, 2020) 

SANfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 228 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 9 

Hardening Adjustment, create a separate Groundwater Replenishment Allocation for applicable 
agencies, and replace WSAP Penalty Rates with Allocation Surcharges based on the marginal costs 
of turf removal. It should be noted that the WSAP is not a rationing plan. Rather, it is a pricing 
plan where water is allocated at regular prices and agencies that choose to take more than the 
allocated water pay surcharges. The surcharge pricing mechanism acts to discourage the use of 
water above the allocation. The WSAP uses a combination of estimated total retail demands and 
historical local supply production within the member agency service area to estimate the demands 
on MWD from each member agency in a given year. Based on a number of factors, including 
storage and supply conditions, MWD then determines whether it has the ability to meet these 
demands or will need to allocate its limited supplies among its member agencies. Thus, implicit in 
MWD’s decision not to implement an allocation of its supplies is that, at a minimum, MWD will 
be able to meet the demands identified for each of the member agencies. 

According to MWD’s 2015 IRP, the approach seeks to balance 
the impacts of a shortage at the retail level while maintaining 
equity on the wholesale level and takes into account growth, 
local investments, changes in supply conditions and the demand 
hardening aspects of non-potable recycled water use and the 
implementation of conservation savings programs. The 
methodology attempts to allocate supplies based on an estimate 
of an agency’s relative need for imported water using the 
following process: 

1. Establish a baseline for total retail demands (and
adjust for growth) to determine the allocation year
total retail demands. (“What are your total water
demands?”)

Figure 8.4: MWD WSDM Surplus & Drought Stages 

When a WSDM Shortage 

Stage 7 is triggered, 

MWD's WSAP helps to 

assess resources in the 

most equitable way 

possible. 

SANfERNANID 

Surplus Stages 
Actions Shortage Stages 

4 3 2 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 

~ 
Put to SWP & CRA Groundwater Storage 

Put to SWP & CRA Surface Storage 
Put to Conjunctive Use Groundwater r---

Put to DWR Flexible Storage --

Put to Metropolitan Surface Storage -
Public Outreach 

1- - Take from Metropolitan Surface Storage - -- -

Take from SWP Groundwater Storage 
Take from Conjunctive Use Storage 

Take from SWP & CRA Surface Storage 

Take from DWR Flexible Storage -Extraordinary Conservation 
Reduce IAWP Deliveries 

L Call Options Contracts 

Buy SpotTransfers 

Implement Water Supply Allocation Plan 

• Potential Simultaneous Actions 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 229 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  10 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

2. Estimate the amount of local supplies to be utilized in the allocation year and subtract
from total retail demands. This is the allocation year baseline demand on MWD. (“How
much imported water do you need from MWD?”)

3. Apply the minimum allocation percentage (per the regional shortage level) to the
allocation year baseline demand and provide minor adjustments based on various
criteria. (“Restrict normal supply deliveries and provide allocation.”)

Base Period Calculations (Used to Determine WSAP Reductions) 

The Base Period is calculated using data from FY 2012-13 and FY 2013-14. Base Period wholesale 
demands are based on the two-year average of demands on MWD during the Base Period, 
including full-service, seawater barrier, seasonal shift, and surface storage operating agreement 
demands. 

Local supplies for the base period are calculated using a two-year average of groundwater 
production, groundwater recovery, Los Angeles Aqueduct supply, surface water production, and 
other imported supplies. Non-potable recycling production is not included in this calculation, 
which, according to MWD, is intended to address the impact of demand hardening due to recycled 
water use. 

Figure 8.5: MWD’s Diamond Valley Lake (Potential Reserves for WSAP Allocations) 

SANfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 230 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 11 

Total potable retail demands for the Base Period are then calculated by adding the Base Period 
wholesale demands on MWD and the Base Period local supplies. 

WSAP Allocation Year Calculations 

The next step is to estimate water needs in an allocation year by (1) adjusting the Base Period total 
retail demands for population or economic growth, and (2) accounting for changes in local 
supplies. 

The Base Period retail demands are adjusted for growth using the average annual rate of population 
growth occurring since the two-year base period based on county-level data generated by the 
California Department of Finance. 

Next, these growth-adjusted demands are adjusted again to account for (1) gains and losses of local 
supply, and (2) extraordinary increases in production over the base year. According to MWD, these 
adjustments are made to give a more accurate estimate of actual supplies in the allocation year, 
and, in turn, more accurately reflect an agency’s demand for MWD supplies. 

The adjustment for gains in local supplies is intended to account for planned or scheduled gains in local 
supply production above the Base Period, which are not due to extraordinary actions to increase water 
supply in the allocation year. These previously scheduled increases in supply programs (i.e., San Diego 
County Water Authority/Imperial Irrigation District) or local production are added to the base period 
local supplies. Again, new supplies from non-potable recycling projects are not counted as local 
supplies. 

While the local agency does become more reliable with the addition of the new supplies, assuming 
that the new supplies are available during an allocation, the benefits of these programs are partially 
offset because the impact of adding the new supplies to the Base Period local supplies is to reduce 
an agency’s dependence on MWD and thus their allocation under the WSAP. 

Alternatively, only a portion of the additional supplies from what are termed “extraordinary 
increases in production” are added back to Allocation Year local supplies depending on the retail 
shortage level. Extraordinary increases in production include such efforts as purchasing transfers 
or mining of groundwater basins. By adding only a percentage of the yield from these supplies to 
Allocation Year local supplies, it has the effect of “setting aside” the majority of yield for the 
agency who procured the supply. 

Table 8.7 reflects the set of percentages used in the WSAP to establish water allocations for each 
agency. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 231 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  12 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

Table 8.7: Water Allocation Percentages 

Regional 
Shortage 

Level 

Regional 
Shortage 

Percentage 

Wholesale Minimum 
Percentage 

Maximum Retail Impact 
Adjustment Maximum 

1 5% 92.5% 2.5% 
2 10% 85.0% 5.0% 
3 15% 77.5% 7.5% 
4 20% 70.0% 10.0% 
5 25% 62.5% 12.5% 
6 30% 55.0% 15.0% 
7 35% 47.5% 17.5% 
8 40% 40.0% 20.0% 
9 45% 32.5% 22.5% 

10 50% 25.0% 25.0% 

8.4.2 City of San Fernando Response Plan 

The City has implemented a water conservation program to reduce water demands since the 
drought period of the early 1990s. On October 20, 2014, the City Council adopted a revised version 
Water Conservation Ordinance (Ordinance No. 1638, see Appendix G), which establishes three 
phases of water shortage severity based on predicted or actual water supply reductions. The City 
implements certain initiatives to optimize water supply during water shortages or drought 
conditions. In the event of a water shortage, the director of utilities will declare the appropriate 
water conservation stage by resolution. 

The objectives of the response plan are to: 

1. Prioritize essential uses of available water
2. Avoid irretrievable loss of natural resources
3. Manage current water supplies to meet ongoing and future needs
4. Maximize local municipal water supplies
5. Eliminate water waste city-wide
6. Create equitable demand reduction targets
7. Minimize adverse financial effects

The following priorities for uses of available water are listed in order from highest to lowest 
priority: 

1. Health and Safety including: consumption and sanitation for all water users; fire
suppression; hospitals, emergency care, nursing/convalescent homes and other similar
health care facilities; shelters and water treatment

SANfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 232 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 13 

2. Institutions, including government facilities and schools such as public safety facilities,
essential government operations, public pools and recreation areas

3. All non-essential commercial and residential water uses
4. Landscaped areas of significance, including parks, cemeteries, open spaces, government-

facility landscaped areas and green belt areas
5. New water demand

City of San Fernando Stages of Action 

During water shortages, the City has the ability to meet its demands by applying a Phased Water 
Conservation Plan. This plan imposes phases of mandatory water reduction of water use up to and 
greater than 50 percent and consists of three phases that help reduce water use within the City’s 
system in order to meet a water supply reduction target based on the severity of the drought 
conditions or supply shortage. The City's two potable water sources are local groundwater and 
imported deliveries through MWD. Rationing stages may be triggered by a shortage in one source 
or a combination of sources, and shortages may trigger a stage at any time. Table 8.8 shows the 
stages of action of the ordinance. 

Per CWC Section 10632(a)(3)(B), a supplier may continue using their own water shortage levels 
that were previously used. In accordance with this allowance, the City has chosen to continue to 
use its current water shortage levels in its new WSCP and has included a graphic (Table 8.8) to 
correlate its water shortage levels to the six standard water shortage levels mandated by CWC 
Section 10632(a)(3)(A). 

Table 8.8: Water Supply Shortage Stages and Conditions – Rationing Stages 

City Shortage Levels 
Mandated Standard 

Shortage Levels 

Stage Phase Restriction Type % Shortage 
Shortage 

Level 

% Shortage 

I Voluntary Up to 10% 1 Up to 10% 
II Mandatory Up to 20% 2 Up to 20% 

III Mandatory 
Up to 50% 
or greater 

3 Up to 30% 
4 Up to 40% 
5 Up to 50% 
6 >50%

As reflected in Table 8.8, the mandatory prohibitions applied by Phase 3 will curtail water use 
more than 50 percent below the projected water consumption level. Correspondingly, the City’s 
shortage levels depicted in Table 8.8 are bundled in such a way that if a conservation stage to 
reduce water consumption by 40 percent were mandated (CWC standard shortage level 4), the 
prohibitions and additional conservation measures activated by the City’s Phase 3 will provide 
more than enough shortage responses to exceed the conservation goal. 

SANfERNANID 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 233 of 290



The City Council will implement the provisions of the Phased Water Conservation Plan, following 
a public hearing, upon determination that the projected water shortage and the appropriate 
measures should be implemented. Any provision requiring curtailment in the use of water shall 
become effective no sooner than the first billing period commencing on or after the date of 
publication of the measures adopted.  

The type of event that may prompt the City Council to declare a water shortage and implement the 
Water Conservation Plan includes a drought, a state or local emergency, a natural disaster that 
critically impacts the supply or water conveyance system, and a localized event that critically 
impacts the water supply. The water supply can be impacted due to deficient water treatment and/or 
water quality, and problems with storage, transmission, or the water distribution system. Also, 
restricted use could be triggered by the City’s wholesale water agency requesting extraordinary 
water conservation efforts in order to avoid mandatory water allocations in accordance with the 
WSAP. 

8.4.3 Prohibitions 

Mandatory Prohibitions 

In accordance with the City’s conservation policies, the City has enacted several water use 
restrictions which are enacted during times of shortage as part of the City’s Ordinance Code 1638 
(see Appendix G). In addition, the City has planned to review its current conservation plan in the 
near future. 

Prohibitions of the current conservation plan include, but are not limited to: 

2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  14 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

• Gutter flooding – No person shall cause or permit any water furnished to any property to
run or escape into any gutter if such running can be reasonably prevented.

• Washing hard-surfaced areas – No person shall use any water furnished to any property
within the city to wash sidewalks, driveways, etc. by hosing.

• Irrigation – No person shall water any type of vegetation or landscaping during the hours
of 10:00 am and 5:00 pm.

• Ornamental facilities – No person shall refill any fountain, pool or other facility containing
water solely for ornamental purposed.

• Leaks – No person shall permit leaks of water which he/she has the authority to eliminate.
• Restaurants – Restaurants shall only serve water to customers upon request.
• Washing vehicles – Washing of vehicles, trailers, boats, etc. shall be done only with a hand-

held buckets or hose equipped with a shut-off nozzle for quick rinses, except that washing
may be done with reclaimed water or a commercial car wash using recycled water.

• Watering lawns and landscape – All lawns and landscape shall be watered not more than
every other day, on the assigned day (either an odd-numbered or even-numbered day).

• Wasting generally – No person shall cause or permit water under his or her control to be
wasted.

smfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 234 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 15 

8.4.4 Consumption Reduction Methods 

In addition to the City's demand management measures, the following is a list of some of the 
consumption reduction methods that the City may implement during a water shortage:  

• Reduced pressure in water mains
• Flow & water use restrictions
• Restrict building permits
• Restrict for only priority uses
• Water Shortage pricing
• Mandatory rationing

8.4.5 Catastrophic Supply Interruption 

Given the great distances imported water supplies travel to reach the City service area, the region 
is vulnerable to interruptions along hundreds of miles of aqueducts, pipelines and other facilities 
associated with delivering the supplies to the region. Additionally, this water is distributed to 
customers through an intricate network of pipes and water mains that are susceptible to damage 
from earthquakes and other disasters, natural or otherwise. 

MWD 

MWD has comprehensive plans for stages of actions it would undertake to address a catastrophic 
interruption in water supplies through its WSDM and WSAP Plans. MWD also developed an 
Emergency Storage Objective to mitigate potential interruption in water supplies resulting from 
catastrophic occurrences within the Southern California region, including seismic events along the 
San Andreas Fault. In addition, MWD is working with the state to implement a comprehensive 
improvement plan to address catastrophic occurrences that could occur outside of the Southern 
California region, such as a probable maximum seismic event in the Delta that would cause levee 
failure and disruption of SWP deliveries. 

In July 2019, MWD’s Board adopted amendments to their Administrative Code allowing 
deliveries of member agency water supplies in MWD’s system during an emergency. With these 
enabled deliveries, MWD’s member agencies will be able to deliver their water through MWD’s 
system under specific emergency conditions. Emergency deliveries using a portion of MWD’s 
system can only be made if MWD is unable to make deliveries to a member agency due to physical 
damage to its system resulting from a natural disaster or other emergency, and there are no 
alternatives. 

City of San Fernando 

A water shortage emergency could be caused by a catastrophic event such as result of drought, 
failures of transmission facilities, a regional power outage, earthquake, flooding, supply 
contamination from chemical spills, and other adverse conditions. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 235 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  16 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

The City has an Emergency Operations Center 
(EOC) that can be activated in times of local and 
regional emergencies. The City is also a part of the 
Member Agency Response System (MARS), a 
radio communication system developed by MWD, 
which allows the City to contact other water 
member agencies during an emergency or disaster 
for assistance.  In addition, the City maintains its 
equipment and vehicles in good repair in 
preparation for responding to emergency 
conditions. The water system is designed with 
redundant features in its production, storage and 
distribution systems, and it has been recently 
automated by the installation of a telemetry and 
control system. 

The City is currently updating its Emergency Response Plan (ERP), which describes the actions 
the City will take during a catastrophic interruption of water supplies including, a regional power 
outage, an earthquake, a fire, emergency chlorination, damage or destruction to its facilities and 
other disaster. 

Due to the planning efforts of the MWD, large reservoirs are capable of supplying the City's (and 
the region's) water needs for several months provided that the water use restrictions of each agency 
are met. Lake Castaic is a large nearby reservoir that can provide emergency supplies of up to 
324,000 AF of emergency and non-emergency supplies. 

During a disaster, the City will work cooperatively with LADWP and MWD through the radio 
communication MARS to facilitate the flow of information and requests for mutual-aid within 
MWD’s 5,100 square mile service area. In the event of groundwater supply loss, all supply could 
be imported from MWD's reservoirs, and it is confirmed that the necessary capacity is available to 
do so. 

Additional emergency services in the State of California include the Master Mutual Aid 
Agreement, California Water Agencies Response Network (WARN), and Plan Bulldozer. The 
Master Mutual Aid Agreement includes all public agencies that have signed the agreement and is 
planned out of the California Office of Emergency Services. WARN includes all public agencies 
that have signed the agreement to WARN and provides mutual aid assistance. It is managed by a 
State Steering Committee. Plan Bulldozer provides mutual aid for construction equipment to any 
public agency in times of disasters when danger to life and property exists. 

8.4.6 Seismic Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan 

Introduction 

Earthquakes can vary significantly in magnitude and the amount of damage caused. Major 
earthquakes can cause loss of electrical power, damage to the City’s structures and equipment, 

Figure 8.6: Reservoirs Provide Emergency 
Supplies (Lake Skinner) 

SANfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 236 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 17 

disruption of service, and injuries to staff. This section provides a description of the City’s 
procedures (i.e., response and mitigation) after an earthquake event. 

As mandated in CWC Section 10632.5, beginning January 1, 2020, water suppliers are required to 
include a seismic risk assessment and mitigation plan as part of their WSCP to assess the 
vulnerability of each of the various facilities of their water system and mitigate those 
vulnerabilities. If an urban water supplier does not have a seismic risk assessment and mitigation 
plan, the urban water supplier may instead, per CWC Section 10632.5(c), include a local hazard 
mitigation plan (LHMP) or a multi-hazard mitigation plan. This requirement is satisfied by the 
incorporation of elements and analyses from the City’s Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) 
and ERP as well as the 2019 County of Los Angeles All-Hazards Mitigation Plan. The complete 
RRA and ERP documents are not presented within this plan due to the highly confidential 
nature of the reports. Although the City does not currently have a Seismic Risk Assessment 
and Mitigation Plan, it plans to prepare a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by the end of 2021. 

Seismology of Water Facilities & Vulnerability 

An earthquake is caused by the shifting of tectonic plates beneath the Earth’s surface. 
Ground shaking from moving geologic plates collapses buildings and bridges, and sometimes 
triggers landslides, avalanches, flash floods, fires and tsunamis. The strong ground motion of 
earthquakes has the potential to cause a great deal of damage to drinking water and 
wastewater utilities, particularly since most utility components are constructed from inflexible 
materials (i.e., concrete, metal pipes). Earthquakes create many cascading and secondary impacts 
that may include, but are not limited to: 

• Structural damage to facility infrastructure and equipment
• Water tank damage or collapse
• Water source transmission line realignment or damage
• Damage to distribution lines due to shifting ground and soil liquefaction, resulting in

potential water loss, water service interruptions, low pressure, contamination and sinkholes
and/or large pools of water throughout the service area

• Loss of power and communication infrastructure
• Restricted access to facilities due to debris and damage to roadways

According to the maps provided on the California Office of Emergency Services’ online planning 
tool (My Plan) and the California Geological Survey’s online earthquake hazards zone application 
(EQ Zapp), one known fault traverses the City’s service area, which is the San Fernando Fault 
Zone. In addition, there are areas with increased risk due to soil liquefaction. The known regional 
fault lines, landslide zones, and liquefaction zones are shown in Figure 8.7. 

ERP – Earthquake Emergency Response 

The City is currently preparing a new ERP to replace its existing ERP by December 31, 2021 in 
order to meet the requirements of America’s Water Infrastructure Act of 2018 (AWIA). The ERP 
provides City staff with the necessary information, strategies, procedures, and mitigation actions 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 237 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  18 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

to address earthquake emergencies. The Water Operations Personnel will be a part of the City 
Emergency Response Team in case of a citywide emergency. The City’s ERP policies are intended 
to guide disaster management planners and emergency responders, and to provide a consistently 
high level of preparedness at all the facilities. 

Per the ERP, after a major earthquake, the EOC will be activated if potential or significant damage 
has occurred in the City, and the situation cannot be handled by routine public safety response or 
immediate mutual aid assistance. In the event of an emergency, the Public Works Superintendent 
will inform the Water Operations Personnel, who will be required to inspect all facilities for 
apparent signs of damage or abnormal conditions and conserve the existing water supply in the 
reservoirs from loss through water line breaks in the distribution system. In addition, Water 
Operations Personnel will notify the EOC to have the Police Department warn nearby residents if 
imminent danger from flooding might occur from structural damage to reservoirs. The Public 
Works Superintendent will also inform the Fire Department of the status of availability of water 
for firefighting and other purposes. 

Mitigation Actions 

Hazard mitigation may occur during any phase of a threat, emergency, or disaster. Mitigation can 
and may take place during the preparedness (before), response (during), and recovery (after) 
phases. The process of hazard mitigation involves evaluating a hazard’s impact and identifying 
and implementing actions to minimize or eliminate the impact. 

San Fernando 
Fault Zone 

Figure 8.7: Seismic Hazards within the City’s Service Area (California Geological Survey) 
l 

SANfERNANID 

Fault Zone 

D 
"-~ Liquefaction z one -Landslide Zone 

D 
City of San F ernando Service A 

\, - rea " 

-~ :-----:::::: ____ ::-;::-.__ --=-===---- 1 ' 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 238 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 19 

County of Los Angeles 

The goals of the County of Los Angeles All-
Hazards Mitigation Plan are based on a risk 
assessment, representing a long-term vision for 
hazard reduction or enhanced mitigation 
capabilities. 

The five mitigation goals and descriptions are 
listed below: 

1. Protect Life and Property – Implement
activities that assist in protecting lives
by making homes, businesses,
infrastructure, critical facilities, and 
other property more resistant to losses
from natural, human-caused, and technological hazards. Improve hazard assessment
information to make recommendations for avoiding new development in high-hazard areas
and encouraging preventive measures for existing development in areas vulnerable to
natural, human-caused, and technological hazards.

2. Enhance Public Awareness – Develop and implement education and outreach programs
to increase public awareness of the risks associated with natural, human-caused, and
technological hazards. Provide information on tools, partnership opportunities, and funding
resources to assist in implementing mitigation activities.

3. Preserve Natural Systems – Support management and land use planning practices with
hazard mitigation to protect life. Preserve, rehabilitate, and enhance natural systems to
serve hazard mitigation functions.

4. Encourage Partnerships and Implementation – Strengthen communication and
coordinate participation with public agencies, citizens, nonprofit organizations, business,
and industry to support implementation. Encourage leadership within the County and
public organizations to prioritize and implement local and regional hazard mitigation
activities.

5. Strengthen Emergency Services – Establish policy to ensure mitigation projects are
considered for critical facilities, services, and infrastructure.

The mitigation actions and goals established by the County of Los Angeles to mitigate seismic 
risks and vulnerabilities are further described within its hazard mitigation plan. 

City of San Fernando 

After a major earthquake event, City staff will follow the emergency management phases 
described in the ERP, which include Immediate Actions, Post-Emergency Actions, and Incident 

Figure 8.8: The Five Phases of Emergency Management

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 239 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  20 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

Investigation Process and Reporting. After the Immediate Actions phase, City staff will begin 
review actions to repair damaged water facilities and prepare for future earthquake emergencies. 

Post-Emergency Actions include the following: 

1. Water Operations will prepare an action plan for cleanup and repair activities based on
the damage caused by the earthquake.

2. If electric power and/or communications remain unavailable for an extended time, the
Public Works Superintendent will plan frequent personnel visits to affected facilities.

3. Once the electricity is restored, the facility will be inspected and reset to ensure all active
components are functioning properly, including the alarm systems.  If any part of the alarm
system cannot be restored, the Public Works Superintendent will plan frequent personnel
visits to the affected facilities.

4. An incident report will be prepared. In addition, a Response Information Management
Form will be completed.

To minimize recurrence and enhance the lessons learned from each earthquake event, an incident 
investigation will be conducted and a report produced. The following guidance statements are 
provided to facilitate the process: 

1. Personnel directly involved with the incident may record the sequence of events of an
incident.

2. An incident investigation shall be initiated by a Public Works Field Supervisor or
appropriate Manager.

3. The following notes may facilitate the incident investigation process:

• Photograph the area affected by the incident and any damaged equipment.

• Put together a committee familiar with the systems affected and related operations and
maintenance.

• Convene at least one meeting of the committee to:
a) Review the facts and chain of events
b) Identify the root cause of the incident
c) Identify action items to improve the system and/or operation to minimize

likelihood of recurrence

• An incident investigation report shall be produced that may include the following:
a) Date and time of the event

b) Circumstances that led to event initiation

smfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 240 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 21 

c) Method by which the event was discovered

d) Description of the event

e) Actions taken by various employees and other entities

f) Persons injured; extent of injury and reasons for the injury

g) Equipment involved; reasons for involvement; extent of damage

h) Agencies notified (time of notification and persons contacted)

i) Observations in terms of what went right and what went wrong; what was the root
causes of the event and “what went wrong”, what can be done to minimize the
likelihood of occurrence of such conditions or to minimize their adverse impact.

Specific seismic mitigation actions/measures are further described in the City’s recently updated 
ERP. 

8.5 COMMUNICATION PROTOCOLS 

8.5.1 Introduction 

The City’s communication protocol includes the various channels that the City will utilize to 
convey critical messages regarding water shortage allocations and voluntary and mandatory 
actions. A strong communication strategy and a common understanding on the water supply 
situation and necessary actions between the City and its customers, the public, elected officials, 
and other key stakeholders are essential should the WSCP need to be activated. How the water 
shortage messages are addressed to the public are described in this communication protocol. The 
communication protocol will be in place prior to a water supply shortage and be initiated in Phase 
II water supply shortage. Activation of the communication protocol will continue through all 
subsequent water shortage phases. The City will ensure outreach efforts are reaching key audiences 
as needed. 

It is important to communicate to its customers the following when urgent conservation is needed: 

• Which shortage stage is being implemented;
• What response actions are triggered to save water;
• Why water needs to be saved; and
• What actions the City is taking to respond to the water supply situation.

8.5.2 Coordination 

The goal of the City’s outreach plans during dry periods and water shortages is to maintain 
effective coordination with key audiences. In order to maintain reliability in this communication, 
the City will work closely with the City Council. During dry periods or other times of limited 
supply, the frequency and extent of coordination will increase to ensure outreach tactics are 
consistent with the changing needs of the City and its customers.  In addition to collaboration with 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 241 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  22 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

its wholesaler, MWD, the City will seek opportunities with outside organizations and agencies to 
complement its own outreach. 

8.5.3 Communication Goals 

Communication objectives during an existing or anticipated water shortage condition include the 
following: 

• Motivate key audiences (i.e., customers) to increase conservation in following any voluntary
or mandatory actions called for at the current stage of the WSCP.

• Raise awareness of the drought, regulations, or other conditions affecting water sources and
supplies.

• Educate customers, key stakeholders, elected officials, and the general public about water
supply reliability, water quality, and water delivery.

• Prepare customers for any potential escalation of the supply shortage stages.

8.5.4 Communication Protocol for Current or Predicted Shortage 

A current or predicted shortage, as determined by the City’s Annual Assessment, will be addressed 
to the public and its customers upon submittal of the Annual Water Shortage Assessment Report 
to DWR by July 1 of every year. This notice may be conducted by the City’s website, signage in 
front of City Hall, and wholesale agency coordination. 

8.5.5 Communication Protocol for Shortage Response Actions Triggered or 
Anticipated to be Triggered 

The City’s customers and public will be notified about any triggered or anticipated to be triggered 
shortage response actions. The City monitors and measures the projected supply and demand for 
water by its customers monthly and recommends the phase of conservation required to the 
Members of the City Council. The City Council will change the phase designation as appropriate; 
however, the City Council will not impose mandatory measures without first conducting a duly-
noticed public hearing pursuant to CWC Sections 350 et seq., or 375 et seq. The appropriate phase 
of water conservation and the shortage response action triggered by the phase is then declared in 
a public notification posted on the City’s website and published in a daily newspaper. Upon 
declaration by the City Council that a water shortage emergency exists, the WSCP shall be 
implemented. The plan shall remain in effect until the City Council declares the water shortage 
emergency has ended. 

8.5.6 Other Relevant Communication Protocols 

To reduce water use consumption during any water shortage phase, the City will increase its public 
education and outreach efforts to build awareness of needed actions from the public. Moreover, 
the City will regularly revise its outreach campaign to reflect current supply conditions. Key 
communication strategies and associated water shortage phase implementation are listed below: 

• Promote available water assistance resources for vulnerable populations; specialized

smfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 242 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 23 

outreach for impacted industries (Phase II). 
• Keep stakeholders aware of conditions (all Phases).
• Proclaim phase change to key stakeholders and the general public (all Phases).
• Conduct meetings with elected officials and other key civic and business leaders (Phase II).
• Encourage reduced optional outdoor use through outreach (Phase I).

The City may implement these communication strategies through its newsletters, website, and 
social media platforms to reflect supply conditions. In addition, the City may conduct news 
briefings or other media outlets (i.e., TV, radio, newspapers) to announce changes in supply 
conditions. 

8.5.7 Crisis Communication Protocol 

In the event of a catastrophic supply interruption due to a natural disaster or damage to the City’s 
facilities, the City will implement communication procedures in accordance with local, regional, 
state, and federal emergency response guidelines as outlined in its ERP. Depending upon the 
severity of the emergency and potential damage to the City’s facilities, the City may determine 
that it is necessary to utilize the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) response 
and the Incident Command System (ICS). Public information and crisis communication are an 
integral part of the ICS structure. National Incident Management System (NIMS), SEMS, and ICS 
have been integrated into the ERP. It provides for a strategic response by all employees and assigns 
specific responsibilities in the event the plan is activated. 

When an incident occurs interrupting supply, the Public Works Superintendent will go to the 
designated EOC and begin implementation of City procedures and employ appropriate strategies 
from the shortage stages in Table 8.8. The City is required to use SEMS when the EOC is activated 
or a local emergency is declared in order to be eligible for state funding of response-related 
personnel costs. 

Crisis communication efforts will concentrate on providing information to the public and external 
audiences. Furthermore, outreach messaging will reflect emergency conditions and the need to 
focus on health and public safety. The City will keep the Members of the City Council informed 
of incident status and coordinate with public health officials. 

The City will maintain communication with its wholesaler and its customers. In addition, the City 
may also authorize release of public information to news media to announce conditions and explain 
needed action. Finally, the City will ensure ongoing coordination with emergency response 
services with daily advisories or alerts as needed. 

8.6 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 

The means by which the City will use to safeguard compliance with and enforcement of water 
shortage rules include, but are not limited to, the following:  

• Warning and citation protocols

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 243 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  24 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

• Water-waste patrols
• Fines and surcharges
• Rules and measures associated with fixing breaks or leaks in irrigation systems
• Customer service, education, and communication programs
• Other responses

The City may penalize repeat violators of water waste prohibitions through an escalating series of 
imposed actions. Compliance and enforcement protocols for violators are further detailed in the 
City’s Water Conservation Plan. 

8.6.1 Penalties or Charges 

Any customer who is suspected of violating the prohibitions triggered by the Water Conservation 
Plan, will be given a preliminary notice in writing of the violation including a description of the 
violation. The person will have 24 hours to correct the violation or terminate the use. If the 
violation is not corrected or the use terminated, the City’s Water Division may either: 

(1) Disconnect service;
(2) Install flow-restricting devices restricting water service; or
(3) Order issuance of a second preliminary notice.

Service disconnected or restricted may only be restored upon payment of the turn-on and any other 
fixed charges by the Water Conservation Plan or the rules and regulations of the water division. 

Violation of the regulations and restrictions on water use in accordance with the City’s Water 
Conservation Plan will result in penalties punishable by fees and additional water restrictions as 
follows: 

1) First Violation: $50 fine
2) Second Violation: $100 fine
3) Third Violation: $200 fine along with a flow-restrictor at the customer’s expense
4) Fourth Violation: Termination of service along with a $100 fee for termination

8.6.2 Exemption from Compliance 

A customer may be exempted from water shortage supply prohibitions to a certain type of use if 
the City's Public Works Director issues a permit allowing such use and if such permit issuance is 
based on a finding that the enforcement of the water use restriction would either: 

1) Cause an unnecessary and undue hardship to the applicant or the public; or
2) Cause or threaten an emergency condition affecting the health, sanitation, fire

protection or safety of the applicant or the public.

The Public Works Director may require the use of water conservation devices or practices as he 
deems appropriate as a condition of the exemption permit. 

smfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 244 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 25 

8.6.3 Enforcement 

The Public Works Director, the fire chief, police chief, water superintendent, or designee have the 
duty and are authorized to enforce water shortage supply prohibitions and have all the powers and 
authority contained in the California Penal Code § 836.5, including the power to issue written 
notice to appear.  

Each law enforcement officer shall, in connection with his duties imposed by law, diligently 
enforce this division. 

8.7 LEGAL AUTHORITES 

Under California law, including CWC Chapter 3 (commencing with Section 350) of Division 1, 
Parts 2.55 and 2.6 of Division 6, Division 13, and Article X, Section 2 of the California 
Constitution, the City Council is authorized to implement the water shortage response actions 
outlined in this section. In all water shortage cases, shortage response actions to be implemented 
will be at the discretion of the City Council and will be based on an assessment of the supply 
shortage, customer response, and need for demand reductions. 

It is noted that upon proclamation by the Governor of a state of emergency under the California 
Emergency Services Act, Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 8550) of Division 1 of Title 2 of 
the Government Code, based on drought conditions, the state will defer to implementation of 
locally adopted water shortage contingency plans to the extent practicable. The City will 
coordinate with any city or county within which it provides water supply services for the possible 
proclamation of a local emergency, as defined in Section 8558 of the Government Code. 

8.8 FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES OF WSCP IMPLEMENTATION 

The City’s water rate structure is designed to provide adequate reserves to allow operation of the 
system during periods of low consumption due to water shortages.  The rates have been designed 
to recover fixed costs through the monthly service charge based on meter size, and commodity 
charge based on water usage.  The City generates a positive revenue stream from continued water 
sales and maintains a reserve fund. This structure minimizes the City’s vulnerability to funding 
shortages when water consumption levels are reduced. 

8.9 MONITORING AND REPORTING 

8.9.1 Evaluation of Reductions 

Under normal conditions, potable water production figures are recorded daily. Weekly and 
monthly reports are prepared and monitored. This data is used as a baseline to measure the 
effectiveness of any water shortage contingency stage that may be implemented. 

During rationing conditions, the water budget will be monitored on a weekly, daily, or hourly 
basis depending on the severity of the drought. During a disaster shortage, production figures 
will be monitored on an ongoing basis. In addition, meter readings may be performed more 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 245 of 290



2020 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

8 -  26 SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

frequently than the normal bi-monthly schedule. 

The City prepares an annual report (eARDWP) that includes water production, consumption, and 
other information regarding its distribution system. Such reports are used to determine reductions 
in water use and take into consideration seasonal and annual fluctuations in water production. 

8.10 SPECIAL WATER FEATURE DISTINCTION 

As required under CWC 10632(b), water features that are not pools or spas must be analyzed and 
defined separately from pools and spas in the WSCP. Non-pool or non-spa water features may use 
recycled water, whereas, for health and safety considerations, pools and spas must use potable 
water. Although the City does not currently use recycled water and does not have the ability to use 
recycled water due to a lack of infrastructure, the City would use non-potable water for non-pool 
water features if and when recycled water supply ever becomes available to the City. Furthermore, 
the WSCP requires potable water recirculation for fountains and decorative water features. 

8.11 WSCP ADOPTION AND REFINEMENT PROCEDURES 

8.11.1 WSCP Public Notice and Adoption 

To encourage broad community participation in the WSCP preparation process, the City provided 
60-day notification letters to agencies within the City’s service area. Copies of the draft WSCP 
were made available for public review at City Hall and on the City website prior to the public 
hearing. Shortly before the public hearing, a two-week and a one-week notice was published in 
the local press alerting the public of the public hearing. At a subsequent board meeting following 
the public hearing, the City’s final WSCP was approved and adopted by its Councilmembers on 
June 21, 2021. Appendix D contains the City resolution adopting the WSCP. The final plan was 
submitted to DWR within 30 days of Board adoption and includes all information necessary to 
meet the requirements of CWC Section 10632.

By June 21, 2021, the City’s approved WSCP was filed with DWR. By July 1, 2021, the City’s 
plan was submitted to the California State Library, County of Los Angeles, and cities within its 
service area.  The City will make the plan available for public review no later than 30 days after 
filing with DWR. 

8.11.2 WSCP Refinement Procedures 

This section discusses the process for reviewing and updating the WSCP to ensure it remains 
actively used, relevant and appropriate to the community, and consistent with applicable state and 
requirements. It is vital that the City’s WSCP remain up to date so as to best ensure shortage risk 
tolerance is adequate, appropriate water shortage mitigation strategies are implemented as needed, 
proper procedures for water efficient practices are in place for the community, and better alignment 
with long-term water use goals. 

The City’s Public Works Superintendent is responsible for maintaining this plan and updating it 
as needed. The Civil Engineering Assistant is the primary City staff member who will carry out 

smfERNANID 
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 246 of 290



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 2020 

SECTION 8: WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 8 - 27 

this process, under the direction of the Public Works Superintendent or other appropriate staff 
member. In addition, the Public Works Superintendent, or their designee, will serve as the WSCP 
project manager and will coordinate maintenance of the plan, conduct the formal review process, 
and direct the plan updates. The project manager will assign tasks, which may include collecting 
data, developing new or updated water shortage mitigation measures, updating sections of the plan, 
and presenting the plan to others. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 247 of 290



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 248 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 249 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 250 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☐ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Sonia Gomez-Garcia, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
   
Date:  June 6, 2022 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Study Session No. 3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council review and discuss the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 
Proposed Budget. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On February 18, 2022, the City Council held a Special Study Session to review the 2022-2027 
Strategic Goals and discuss FY 2022-2023 City Council Priorities. 
 

2. On March 7, 2022, the City Council received a presentation of the Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, FY 2021-2022 Mid-year Budget 
update, and FY 2022-2023 Budget Outlook.  This marked the kick-off of the FY 2022-2023 
Budget season. 
 

3. During April 2022, the City Manager and Interim Director of Finance met with each 
Department to develop the FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget, which includes revenues and 
expenditures for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, and all Special Revenue Funds. 

 
4. On April 18, 2022, the City Council received a presentation from Management Partners 

summarizing the City Council Priority-setting Workshop held on February 18, 2022. 
 

5. On May 2, 2022, the City Council received a copy of the City of San Fernando FY 2022-2023 
Proposed Budget and it was made available on the City’s website at https://ci.san-
fernando.ca.us/finance/#1644253170471-6d73f4d7-1072. 

 
6. On May 23, 2022, the City Council held Budget Study Session No. 1 and discussed the Budget 

Overview, Administration Department and Public Works Department Operating and Capital 
Improvement Projects.  

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 251 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#1644253170471-6d73f4d7-1072
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#1644253170471-6d73f4d7-1072


Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Study Session No. 3 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

7. On May 31, 2022, the City Council held Budget Study Session No. 2 and discussed the 
Community Development Department, Recreation and Community Services Department, 
Police, Finance (including Information Technology), and City Clerk Department. 

 
8. The next Budget Study Sessions are scheduled for Monday, June 13, 2022 (if necessary) to 

discuss additional follow up items from prior Budget Study Sessions and Tuesday, June 21, 
2022, for final review and Budget Adoption.  

 
 

ANALYSIS: 

Based on City Council direction, within the remaining Department Budget presentations, staff 
has included a high-level of performance goals and related performance indicators to align with 
the City strategic goals, provide clarity, and focus during the budget process. The key intention is 
to provide information to the community and better understanding of the City’s decision-making 
process. 

In addition, Council requested to identify other funding sources such as Grants or other Special 
Revenue funds to offset staff time or other cost from the General Fund.  Within the budget 
process, staff updates the City’s Cost Allocation Plan to ensure that citywide administrative and 
support costs (accounting, payroll, HR, legal, city administration) are equitably allocated to 
internal and external sources and that a reasonable share will be returned to the City’s General 
Fund.  For FY 2022-2023 the General Fund will recover $1.5M from other funding sources.  This 
amount is already included in the proposed budget. 
 
Budgetary Items By Department. 
 
The following items have a budgetary impact and require City Council consideration to 
appropriate funds. 
 
Administration Department: 

• Increase the proposed part-time Personnel Office Clerk to full time to create a position to 
support Payroll and act as backup for the Payroll Technician for processing payroll. 
(Ongoing: $67,517) 

• Limit the part-time Personnel Office Clerk to temporary part-time (e.g., the position 
lapses after 3 years) rather than create a permanent position. (Ongoing $18,834 per yr. & 
included in the proposed budget) 
 

Community Development Department: 
• Increase the part-time Community Preservation Officer to full time (approx.. 20 additional 

hours per week). (Ongoing: $74,478)  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 252 of 290



Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Study Session No. 3 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

• Add a full time Community Preservation Officer to address code enforcement issues. 
(Ongoing:$112,391 to be split with Water Fund) 

 
Police Department: 

• Add an additional School Resource Officer (for a total of 2) to deploy onto our local school 
campuses and will be responsible for safety and crime prevention. Furthermore, serve as 
an informal counselor to students and an educator, especially in areas of law enforcement 
and positive student behavior. (Ongoing: $155,626) 

• Appropriate funds for two (2) additional police bicycles and related equipment. (One-
time: $4,950) 
 

Public Works Department: 
• Appropriate funds to implement the Parking Management Plan to identify the parking 

concerns and needs. (One-time: $100,000) 
 
Recreation and Community Services: 

• Appropriate additional funds for Senior Programs (e.g., Mothers/Father’s day dances). 
(One-time: $3,000) 

• Appropriate funds for Scholarship Programs for Special Needs and Foster Care 
populations. (Ongoing: $5,000) 

• Add a Community Service Coordinator to implement Social Service programs for the 
community and establish a Financial Literacy program. (Ongoing: $100,018) 

• Appropriate funds to collaborate with an outside agency to implement Social Service 
programs and deliver services to the community. (Ongoing: $2,500 for supplies & $5,500 
for contractual services, total $8,000) 

 
There were no additional budgetary items identified for the Finance Department or City Clerk 
Department. 
 
Objectives and Work Plan by Department. 
 
The following items have an impact on the Department’s work play, but do not require City 
Council consideration to appropriate funds.  Unless otherwise noted, these items will be included 
in each Department’s final work plan identified in the adopted budget. 
 
Administration Department: 

• Include additional information in the City Manager’s Message on the state of the City’s 
water system with some historical information on prior capital investment and necessary 
improvements to make the system more resilient. 

• Include additional information in the City Manager’s Budget Message on the long-term 
plan for addressing the condition of City streets. 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 253 of 290



Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Study Session No. 3 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

Administration Department (continued): 
• Analyze organizational structure of Information Technology Services to ensure it reports 

to the Department that has knowledge in network services. 
• If Deputy City Manager/Economic Development is not approved, then the Economic 

Development function will stay within the Community Development Department. 
 

Community Development Department: 
• The correct name to be used for the economic development study approved during the 

FY 2021-2022 Budget process is the Downtown Master Plan. 
• Re-word the Community Development Accomplishments and Work Plan narrative to 

generalize City Council actions rather than assume a certain course of action will be 
adopted. 

• More detail related to the $75,000 professional services request to provide productivity 
outcomes.   

a. Contract Building Official and supplemental Building Inspector services ($25,000):  
The service outcome would be approximately 30 inspection days per year to 
continue to provide service to the community when the staff Building Inspector is 
not available due to paid time off.  They will also be available to provide additional 
service when there are extremely busy periods and more inspections are 
requested then can be performed by City staff.  

b. Contract Planning, Environmental, and Architectural Services ($50,000):  The 
service outcome would be the ability to review and process approximately 3 to 4 
additional planning projects per month that require a higher level of review.  

 
Police Department: 

• Explore options to enhance parking enforcement or alternative methods to increase the 
City’s parking enforcement activities. 
 

Public Works Department: 
• Explore additional funding in the Water Enterprise Fund to increase reserves and ensure 

sufficient funding to add treatment facilities to all City Wells (Well 4). 
• Explore changing the position title from Senior Tree Trimmer position title to Senior Tree 

Care Specialist. 
• Explore funding opportunities for reconstruction of the poorest condition City streets 

when the slurry seal program is complete. 
 
Recreation and Community Services: 

• Explore setting aside CDBG funds to provide Recreation Program Scholarships to families 
of children with special needs. 
 

Finance Department: 
• Update the User Fee for Services to ensure that cost for services are recovered.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 254 of 290



Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Study Session No. 3 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

 
Budget Overview. 
The theme of the FY 2022-2023 City Manager’s Proposed Budget is to lay a solid foundation on 
which the next version of San Fernando will be built.  The blueprint was drawn by the City Council 
through the Strategic Goals 2022-2027 that were adopted in March 2021.  All FY 2021-2022 
Accomplishments, FY 2022-2023 Objectives (i.e., Work Plan) and Enhancements have been 
carefully reviewed to align with the City Council Strategic Goals.   
 
The Proposed Budget includes salary and benefit changes contained in the City’s six (6) labor 
agreements as well as a five percent (5%) increase to operating budget to offset significant 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases in the current economic environment. 
 
More than $3.5 million in General Fund enhancement requests were submitted by City 
Departments.  After initial review of the proposed budget, the City Manager is recommending 
$740,818 in ongoing enhancements and $415,620 in one-time enhancements in the General 
Fund.  More detailed information on approved enhancements is included in the “Recommended 
Enhancements” section of proposed budget document. 
 
Overall, the General Fund has a budget surplus (i.e., total revenues exceed total expenditures) of 
approximately $261,082.  More information regarding the FY 2022-2023 Proposed General Fund 
Budget has been provided through the scheduled Budget Study Sessions. 
 
Measure A and Measure SF.  
In June 2013, San Fernando voters approved a 0.50% local transaction use tax (Measure A) for a 
period of seven years.  In November 2018, voters approved to extend the tax indefinitely, which 
will provide financial stability to the City in the near future. In November 2020, San Fernando 
voters approved an additional 0.25% local transaction use tax (Measure SF), for a total local 
transaction use tax of .75%.  This effort was critical to keep sales tax local and avoid other taxing 
entities from passing a transaction tax that would otherwise be imposed on San Fernando 
customers, but spent regionally rather than locally.  
 
The Local Transaction Use Tax is projected to raise approximately $4.67 million in FY 2022-2023 
and will continue to be used to pay off existing debt, strength rainy day fund reserves, enhance 
services to the community and provide the financial resources necessary to implement the City’s 
Strategic Goals 2022-2027.  More detail on City’s Local Transaction Use Tax expenditures, can be 
found in the City Manager’s Budget Message in the Proposed Budget document. 
 
Capital Improvements. 
The FY 2022-2023 includes funding for a number of critical capital improvements to address the 
backlog of deferred maintenance, particularly street and parking lot resurfacing, water 
improvements and transportation and traffic safety improvements.   
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 255 of 290



Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Study Session No. 3 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 

Funding for these capital improvements is provided primarily through Special Revenue Funds, 
Capital Funds and Enterprise Funds.  
 

 
 
More detailed information regarding the FY 2022-2023 Proposed Capital Improvement Program 
may be found in the “Capital Projects” section of proposed budget document. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The total Proposed Budget for all funds is approximately $53.5 million.  The Proposed General 
Fund budget is $25.0 million (13% increase from FY 2021-2022).  In accordance with the City’s 
Budget Policy, the FY 2022-2023 Proposed General Fund Budget represents a balance budget, 
with General Fund revenues of $25.2 million and expenditures of $25.0 million estimating a 
surplus of $261,082. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council review the FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget and allocate 
the resources required to move the 2022-2027 Strategic Goals and Council Priorities forward in 
the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. FY 2022-2023 City Manager’s Proposed Budget Message 
B. FY 2022-2023 Proposed Budget - provided under separate cover and is available on the City’s 

website at the following link: https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents  

Category Carry Over from 
Previous Years

FY 2022-2023 
Proposed

Total 
Appropriation

Funding Sources

Street & Sidewalk Improvements 2,584,175           2,015,053        4,599,228        
 SB-1, Measure R & 
M and Prop C 

Parking Lot Improvements -                      100,000           100,000           

 Parking & 
Maintenance 
Operations 

Water System & Street Improvements 22,030,637         -                   22,030,637      

 Measure W, 
Enterprise Funds, 
Prop C, and Grants 

Transportation/Traffic Safety Improvements 9,012,666           -                   9,012,666        

 Prop C, Measure R 
& M, SB-1 and 
Grants 

Total 33,627,478         2,115,053        35,742,531      

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 256 of 290

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents


Enhancement Request Summary

FY 2022-2023

Ongoing One-Time
Request Dept. Request Recommend Recommend

Reclassify Economic Development Manager to Deputy City Manager/Econ. 
Dev.

Admin. 41,265         41,265 - 

Add a Personnel Office Clerk (PT) Admin. 18,834         18,834 - 
Advertising for added recruitments Admin. 7,500 - 7,500 

Additional Contractual Services for pre-employment physicals/DOJ Bkgrd 
checks

Admin. 5,000 - 5,000 

Agenda & Meeting Management Software Program City Clerk 5,500 - 5,500 

Add a Information Technology System Administrator Finance 176,000       176,000       - 
Lexipol Jail Manual Daily Training for Jail & Law Enforcement PD 27,100         - 27,100 
Building Inspection Services CD 100,000       - 25,000 

Add Administrative Assistant CD 86,651         86,651 - 

On-Call Environmental / Architectural Design Review & Planning CD 75,000         - 50,000 

Tuition Reimbursement CD 1,500 - 1,500 
Add a Management Analyst PD 155,555       155,555       - 

Additional Detective Training PD 14,600         - 14,600 

Ballistic Vests (replacement required every 5 years) PD 32,500         - 32,500 

New Officers Equipment and Uniforms PD 10,000         - 10,000 
Four (4) New Bicycles & Equipment for six (6) PD 45,844         - 18,420 
Additional Police Officers Training PD 13,500         - 13,500 

Staff Augmentation for Public Work Engineering PW 150,000       - 150,000 
Personnel Trailer Improvements and Furniture PW 55,000         - 55,000 

Add a Senior Tree Care Specialist PW 110,000       110,000       - 

Add a RCS Office Clerk (PT) - Recreation Park RCS 39,360         18,834 - 

Program Specialist RCS 93,679         93,679 - 
City Birthday Celebration RCS 8,530 5,000            - 
Fourth of July Celebration RCS 35,000         35,000 - 

Total Included in the Proposed Budget 1,307,918 740,818       415,620      

Ongoing One-Time

FY 2022-2023 Measure A/SF funds: Establish Reserves Dept. Request Recommend Recommend

Other Pension Employee Benefits (OPEB) FIN 500,000       - 500,000 

Self Insurance Fund (SIF) FIN 750,000       - 750,000 

Total Measure A/SF Uses 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 

Total Enhancement Request 2,557,918 740,818       1,665,620  

Total Proposed General Fund Expenditures 25,032,914 

Unappropriated Budget Surplus 261,082       Ongoing One-Time
City Council Enhancement Request: Not Included in Proposed Budget Dept. Request Recommend Recommend

Add Office Clerk Personnel/Payroll Admin. 67,517         67,517 - 

Increase Part-time Community Preservation Officer to Full Time CD 74,478         74,478 - 

Add FT Community Preservation Officer CD 112,391       112,391       - 

Add a additional School Resource Officer PD 155,626       155,626       - 

Funds (2) two additional bicycles & equipment PD 4,950 - 4,950 

Implementation of the Parking Management Plan PW 100,000       - 100,000 

Senior Programs (Mother/Father Day Dances) RCS 3,000 - 3,000 
Scholarship Programs for Special Needs/Foster Care population RCS 5,000 5,000            - 
Add a FT Community Service Coordinator RCS 100,018       100,018       - 
Implement Social Programs by collaborating with outside Agencies RCS 8,000 8,000            - 

TOTAL 630,980       523,030       107,950      

Total Projected General Fund Revenues 25,293,996 

General Fund Annual Surplus/Deficit (369,898)     

ATTACHMENT "A"

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 257 of 290



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 258 of 290



June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 259 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 260 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
 
Date:  June 6, 2022 
 
Subject: Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1710 Adding Chapter 24 to the San 

Fernando Municipal Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council conduct a second reading, in title only, of Ordinance  
No. 1710 (Attachment “A”) titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
California, adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal Code to prohibit smoking in multi-
unit housing.” 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  

1. On May 25, 2021, then Mayor Ballin requested to agendize an item to a future meeting 
regarding a presentation by Pueblo y Salud (PyS) about the benefits associated with a  
smoke-free housing policy. 

2. On September 3, 2021, PyS attended the Green City/Street and Parkway Tree Ad Hoc 
Committee meeting and presented information regarding the organization’s background and 
purpose, including, but not limited to, assisting cities with recommendations on steps 
towards enacting tobacco policies relating to Smoke-Free Multi-Unit Housing. 

3. On September 20, 2021, the City Council received a presentation from PyS regarding 
information on educating communities regarding civic participation, public health, culture, 
and drug, alcohol and tobacco prevention services and discussed a proposed smoke-free 
multi-unit housing policy.  After a robust discussion, the City Council continued the discussion 
to the first City Council meeting in November 2021 and directed staff to send out notices to 
residents and owners of multi-unit housing properties in the City notifying them of the 
upcoming agenda item. 
 

4. On October 25, 2021, staff mailed approximately 800 notices to residents and owners of 
multi-unit housing properties in the City.  

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 261 of 290



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1710 Adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal 
Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
5. On November 2021, a Smoke-Free Multi-Unit Housing Model Ordinance was presented to 

the City Council for discussion. The City Council expressed interest in reviewing a draft 
ordinance that balances the needs of protecting the health of non-smokers with the needs of 
individuals who smoke due to recreational uses, addiction, or otherwise. 

 
6. On March 7, 2022, the City Council reviewed a draft Smoke-Free Multi-Unit Housing 

Ordinance that was tailored to address the concerns received at prior meetings, and the City 
Council provided direction to staff to finalize the ordinance for City Council’s consideration 
for adoption.  

 
7. On April 18, 2022, the City Council conducted a public hearing to consider the proposed 

Ordinance, received two public comments relating to enforcement and community outreach, 
and continued the public hearing to May 2, 2022.  

 
8. On May 2, 2022, the City Council conducted a public hearing and discussed the proposed 

Ordinance.  Due to an emergency evacuation of City Hall, no action was taken. 
 

9. On May 16, 2022, the City Council conducted a public hearing and voted 3-2 introducing the 
proposed Ordinance for adoption with the following changes: (1) Exempt Single-Family 
homes; (2) Penalties are limited to administrative citation or infraction; and (3) Outdoor 
Designated Smoking areas do not need to be removed after 5 years.  

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
To protect and promote the public health, the City currently regulates smoking in accordance 
with state and local regulations.  State law prohibits smoking on public school property and in 
vehicles with minors.  City of San Fernando Municipal Code, Chapter 23 – OUTDOOR SMOKING 
REGULATIONS (Attachment “B”), prohibits all forms of vaping, smoking and the use of tobacco 
products in the following unenclosed places within the City: 1) Recreational areas, 2) Service 
areas, 3) Dining areas, 4) Places of employment, and 5) Other public places, when being used for 
a public event, including but not limited to a farmers' market, parade, craft fair, festival, or any 
other event which may be attended by the general public. 
 
Smoking is not currently prohibited on private residential property.  For tenants and owners of 
multi-unit housing, such as apartments and common interest communities, tobacco smoke from 
a neighboring unit that infiltrates their homes can pose a daily problem.  As a result, many local 
governments have taken proactive steps to prevent or eliminate secondhand smoke from 
infiltrating living spaces.   
 
 
 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 262 of 290



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1710 Adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal 
Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
May 16, 2022 City Council Meeting Summary. 
On May 16, 2022, a revised Ordinance that addressed previous comments from the City Council 
was presented.  The Ordinance was revised as follows:  

• Generally consistent with model ordinance and City’s Outdoor Smoking Regulations 
(Chapter 23) 

• Enforcement designated by City Manager. Police officers or code enforcement officials 
have authority to enforce.  Enforcement pursuant to general code enforcement 
provisions in the City’s Municipal Code. 

• Violations punishable as administrative citation, infraction, or misdemeanor. 

• Infraction or administrative citation can result in:  

o 1st violation: a fine not exceeding $100 

o 2nd violation: a fine not exceeding $200 

o 3rd violation: a fine not exceeding $500 for each additional violation within one 
year 

• Misdemeanor punished by fine not exceeding $1000 or imprisonment for not more than 
6 months 

• City retains the right to prosecute violations by civil action in the discretion of city 
attorney 

• Private parties may also bring civil action 

The City Council considered the revised Ordinance and voted 3-2 to amend the revised ordinance 
and introduce the following proposed Ordinance for adoption with direction to revise the 
Ordinance to reflect the following changes:  

1.  Exempt Single-Family homes.   

2. Penalties are punishable by administrative citation or infraction. 

3. Outdoor Designated Smoking areas do not need to be removed after 5 years.  

The attached Ordinance has been revised to reflect the changes voted by City Council on May 16, 
2022 as follows:  

Section 2.  Definition. 

• Exempt Single-Family homes, regardless if any unit is for rent or not.  

Section 8.  Penalties and Enforcement.  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 263 of 290



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1710 Adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal 
Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

• Violations punishable as administrative citation/infraction only.  Misdemeanor has been 
removed.  

• Leave in place for private parties to bring civil action.  

Section 3. Smoking Restrictions. 

• Remove former Subsection (e) that required Designated Smoking Area be removed after 
five years from effective date of the Ordinance. Removal of this section will allow 
Designated Smoking Area to remain.  
 

• Former Subsection (e) also prohibited smoking inside detached housing units after five 
years.  Therefore, Subsection (c) has been amended to state that smoking inside detached 
units is allowed from the effective date of the Ordinance to five years after effective date.  
This modification does not change the Ordinance as it was presented to the City Council 
on May 16, 2022.  

Other Minor changes  
• Minor technical changes throughout the Ordinance for clean-up purposes.  

 
Community Outreach. 
In May, August, and October 2021, PyS conducted independent outreach to residents of multi-
unit housing properties in San Fernando.  PyS collected 98 cards from multi-unit housing 
residents in support of a Smoke-Free Multi-Unit Housing Ordinance in San Fernando.  There are 
an estimated 2,212 multi-unit housing units in San Fernando. 
 
On October 25, 2021, staff mailed a “Notice of Upcoming Agenda Item” to approximately 800 
residents and owners of multi-family housing properties to inform them of the November 1, 2021 
City Council meeting. The notice included, among other information, a brief description of the 
item being considered, the date, place, and time of the City Council meeting, and multiple 
methods for submitting comments. 
 
On April 7, 2022, a public hearing notice was published as a 1/8-page display advertisement 
(Attachment “C”) in the San Fernando Sun newspaper to inform the community of the City 
Council’s consideration of the proposed Ordinance.  
 
Environmental Review. 
The adoption of this Ordinance is be exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (the “common sense exemption”) and 
15378(b)(5) since it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that adopting an 
ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment since the project involves 
administrative activities that do not significantly impact the environment.  The Ordinance is also 
exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15307 and 15308, as a regulatory action that protects 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 264 of 290



Second Reading for Adoption of Ordinance No. 1710 Adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal 
Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit Housing 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
natural resources and the environment, since the regulation of existing smoking and the related 
education and outreach activities in the Ordinance will reduce existing smoking practices, 
improve air quality, and reduce litter and waste from smoking debris, which includes plastic-
based cigarette filters that would otherwise impact the environment.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
City Attorney expenditures for ordinance review are included in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
Budget.  In addition, there will also be costs associated with preparing and distributing 
educational materials, as well as staff time to educate and enforce the ordinance that will be 
included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget.     
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council conduct a second reading for adoption of Ordinance No. 
1710, Adding Chapter 24 to the San Fernando Municipal Code to Prohibit Smoking in Multi-Unit 
Housing.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Ordinance No. 1710 – Redline 
B. City of San Fernando Municipal Code, Chapter 23 – OUTDOOR SMOKING REGULATIONS 
C. Advertisement placed in San Fernando Sun on April 7, 2022 
 
  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 265 of 290



ATTACHMENT “A” 

ORDINANCE NO. 1710 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, ADDING CHAPTER 24 TO THE 
SAN FERNANDO MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROHIBIT SMOKING 
IN MULTI-UNIT HOUSING  

WHEREAS, tobacco use causes death and disease and continues to be an urgent public health 
threat.  According to the World Health Organization (WHO), tobacco kills up to half of its users, 
amounting to more than 8 million deaths each year worldwide, including nearly half a million 
people who die prematurely from smoking in the United States.1  According to the United State 
Department of Health and Human Services, tobacco use can cause disease in nearly all organs of 
the body and is responsible for an estimated 87% of lung cancer deaths, 32% of coronary heart 
disease deaths, and 79% of all chronic obstructive pulmonary disease deaths, in the United 
States. It is estimated that 5.6 million of today’s Americans who are younger than 18 are 
projected to die prematurely from a smoking-related illness;2 and   

WHEREAS, tobacco use is the number one cause of preventable death in California and 
continues to be an urgent public health issue, as evidenced by the fact that an estimated 40,000 
California adults die from smoking annually. 2 Each year, smoking costs California an estimated 
$13.3 billion in direct health care expenses, $3.6 billion in Medicaid costs, and $10.4 billion in 
productivity losses.3 Research indicates that more than 25% of all adult cancer deaths in 
California are attributable to smoking;4 and 

WHEREAS, secondhand smoke has repeatedly been identified as a health hazard, as 
evidenced by the following: 

 In 2006, the U.S. Surgeon General concluded that there is no risk-free level of exposure
to secondhand smoke;5

 In 2006, the California Air Resources Board identified secondhand smoke as a toxic air
contaminant, in the same category as the most toxic automotive and industrial air

1 World Health Organization. WHO Report on the Global Tobacco Epidemic, 2019: Offer Help to Quit Tobacco Use. 2019. 
Available at: https://apps.who.int/iris/handle/10665/326043. 

2  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The Health Consequences of Smoking: 50 Years of Progress. A Report of the 
Surgeon General. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health. 2014. Available at: 
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK179276/pdf/Bookshelf_NBK179276.pdf.  

3 Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. The Toll of Tobacco in California. Available at: www.tobaccofreekids.org/problem/toll-
us/california. Accessed June 2, 2020. 

4 Lortet-Tieulent J, Sauer AG, Siegel RL, et al. State-level cancer mortality attributable to cigarette smoking in the United States. 
JAMA Intern Med. 2016;176(12):1792–1798. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2016.6530. 

5 U.S. National Cancer Institute. A Socioecological Approach to Addressing Tobacco-Related Health Disparities. National Cancer 
Institute Tobacco Control Monograph 22. NIH Publication No. 17-CA-8035A. Bethesda, MD: U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services, National Institutes of Health, National Cancer Institute. 2017. Available at: 
https://cancercontrol.cancer.gov/brp/tcrb/monographs/22/index.html. 

(Redline)

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 266 of 290

https://apps.who.int/iris/handle/10665/326043
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK179276/pdf/Bookshelf_NBK179276.pdf
https://cancercontrol.cancer.gov/brp/tcrb/monographs/22/index.html


ORD. NO. 1710 

2 

pollutants, and a serious health threat for which there is no safe level of exposure;6 

 In 2006, the California Environmental Protection Agency added secondhand smoke to 
the Proposition 65 list of chemicals known to the state of California to cause cancer, 
birth defects, and other reproductive harm;7 

 The American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers 
(ASHRAE) finds that acceptable indoor air quality in multi-unit housing requires the 
absence of secondhand smoke, cannabis smoke, and aerosol from electronic smoking 
devices;8 

 The American Heart Association and the American Lung Association recommend all 
adults and children be protected from secondhand smoke in multi-unit housing;9,10 and 

WHEREAS, exposure to secondhand smoke causes death and disease, as evidenced by the 
fact that since 1964, approximately 2.5 million nonsmokers have died from health problems 
caused by exposure to secondhand smoke and secondhand smoke was responsible for an 
estimated 34,000 heart disease-related and 7,300 lung cancer-related deaths among nonsmoker 
adults each year during 2005-2009 in the United States. 2   Research indicates that exposure to 
secondhand smoke increases the risk of coronary heart disease by 25% to 30% and increases the 
risk of stroke by 20% to 30%.2,11  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention estimated that 
secondhand smoke kills more than 400 infants every year; and  

WHEREAS, nonsmokers who live in multi-unit dwellings can be exposed to neighbors’ 
secondhand smoke, as evidenced by the following: 

 Research demonstrates that secondhand smoke in multi-unit housing can and does 
transfer between units, seeping into smoke-free areas from areas where smoking 
occurs;12  

                                                 
6 California Identifies Secondhand Smoke as a “Toxic Air Contaminant” [press release]. January 26, 2006. Available at: 

www.arb.ca.gov/newsrel/nr012606.htm. Accessed June 2, 2020. 
7 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The Health Consequences of Involuntary Exposure to Tobacco Smoke. A Report 

of the Surgeon General. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health. 2006. 
Available at: www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/sgr/2006/index.htm.8 Air Resources Board, California Environmental 
Protection Agency. Frequently Asked Questions—Environmental Tobacco Smoke. Available at: 
www.arb.ca.gov/toxics/ets/factsheetets.pdf. Accessed June 2, 2020. 

8 American Society of Heating Refrigerating and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE). 2015 Addenda Supplement to 
ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 62.1-2013, Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality. Atlanta, GA: ASHRAE. 2015. Available at: 
https://www.ashrae.org/file%20library/technical%20resources/standards%20and%20guidelines/standards%20addenda/62_1_2
013_2015supplement_20150203.pdf.  

9 American Heart Association. Policy Position on Smoke-Free Policies in Multi-Unit Housing. Washington, DC: American Heart 
Association. 2013. Available at: www.heart.org/idc/groups/ahaecc-
public/@wcm/@adv/documents/downloadable/ucm_469126.pdf. 

10 American Lung Association. Public Policy Position – Healthy Air. Chicago, IL: American Lung Association. 2019. Available 
at: https://www.lung.org/policy-advocacy/public-policy-agenda/public-policy-position-healthy-air. 

11 DiGiacomo SI, Jazayeri MA, Barua RS, Ambrose JA. Environmental Tobacco Smoke and Cardiovascular Disease. Int J Environ 
Res Public Health. 2018;16(1):96. doi: 10.3390/ijerph16010096. 

12 King BA, Travers MJ, Cummings KM, Mahoney MC, Hyland AJ. Secondhand smoke transfer in multiunit housing. Nicotine 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 267 of 290

http://www.arb.ca.gov/newsrel/nr012606.htm
http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/sgr/2006/index.htm
http://www.arb.ca.gov/toxics/ets/factsheetets.pdf
https://www.ashrae.org/file%20library/technical%20resources/standards%20and%20guidelines/standards%20addenda/62_1_2013_2015supplement_20150203.pdf
https://www.ashrae.org/file%20library/technical%20resources/standards%20and%20guidelines/standards%20addenda/62_1_2013_2015supplement_20150203.pdf
http://www.heart.org/idc/groups/ahaecc-public/@wcm/@adv/documents/downloadable/ucm_469126.pdf
http://www.heart.org/idc/groups/ahaecc-public/@wcm/@adv/documents/downloadable/ucm_469126.pdf
https://www.lung.org/policy-advocacy/public-policy-agenda/public-policy-position-healthy-air


ORD. NO. 1710 

3 

 Residents of multi-unit housing have higher levels of cotinine (a biomarker for nicotine) 
in their blood and saliva than those living in detached houses;13  

 Among children who live in homes in which no one smokes indoors, those who live in 
multi-unit housing have 45% higher cotinine levels than children who live in detached 
houses;12,13  

 Twelve studies have found between 26% and 64% of residents of multi-unit housing 
report secondhand smoke drifting into their home;13  

 Surveys have found that 65% to 90% of multi-unit housing residents who experience 
secondhand smoke in their home are bothered by it,13 and a 2019–2020 survey 
documented variations in secondhand smoke source among multi-unit housing 
residents in Los Angeles County, who reported secondhand smoke exposure from 
tobacco (39%), marijuana (36%), and e-cigarettes (9%);14 

 Between 44.0% and 46.2% of Californians living in multi-unit housing with personal 
smoke-free home policies are exposed to secondhand smoke in their home;15 and 

WHEREAS, several studies have confirmed that smoke-free multi-unit housing policies are an 
effective method to reduce secondhand smoke exposure to residents living in multi-unit 
housing.16,17,18 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION I. The recitals above are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference. 

 SECTION II. Chapter 24 in the City of San Fernando Municipal Code (“Code”) is hereby added 
to read as follows: 

 Section 1. INTENT AND PURPOSE.  

                                                 
Tob Res. 2010;12:1133-1141. doi:10.1093/ntr/ntq162. 

13 Snyder K, Vick JH, King BA. Smoke-free multiunit housing: a review of the scientific literature. Tob Control. 2016;25:9-20. 
doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2014-051849. 

14 Toy P, Yount C, Meng YY, et al. Health at Risk: Policies Are Needed to End Cigarette, Marijuana, and E-Cigarette Secondhand 
Smoke in Multi-Unit Housing in Los Angeles. Los Angeles, Calif.: UCLA Center for Health Policy Research. 2020. Available 
at: http://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/publications/Documents/PDF/2020/Health-at-Risk-policybrief-may2020.pdf. 

15 King BA, Babb SD, Tynan MA, Gerzoff RB. National and state estimates of secondhand smoke infiltration among U.S. multiunit 
housing residents. Nicotine Tob Res. 2013; 15(7):1316–1321. doi:10.1093/ntr/nts254. 

16 Hollar TL, Cook N, Quinn D, Phillips T, DeLucca M. Smoke-free multiunit housing policies show promise in reducing 
secondhand smoke exposure among racially and ethnically diverse, low-income seniors. J Immigr Minor Health. 
2017;19(6):1281–1289. doi.org/10.1007/s10903-016-0430-2. 

17 Gentzke AS, Hyland A, Kiviniemi M, Travers MJ. Attitudes and Experiences with Secondhand Smoke and Smoke-Free Policies 
Among Subsidised and Market-Rate Multiunit Housing Residents Living in Six Diverse Communities in the USA. Tob Control. 
2018;27(2):194-202. doi: 10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2016-053374. 

18 Young W, Karp S, Bialick P, et al. Health, Secondhand Smoke Exposure, and Smoking Behavior Impacts of No-Smoking 
Policies in Public Housing, Colorado, 2014-2015. Prev Chronic Dis. 2016;13:E148. doi: 10.5888/pcd13.160008. 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 268 of 290

http://healthpolicy.ucla.edu/publications/Documents/PDF/2020/Health-at-Risk-policybrief-may2020.pdf


ORD. NO. 1710 

4 

This Chapter protects the public from nonconsensual exposure to secondhand smoke in 
and around their homes by prohibiting smoking in certain locations of Multi-Unit Housing. 
Exposure to secondhand smoke has been proven to cause adverse health effects including 
but not limited to cancer, cardiovascular disease, respiratory infections, asthma, and ear 
and nasal problems. The intent and purpose of prohibiting smoking at the identified locations 
is to protect the public health, safety, and welfare by reducing the number of locations 
in the City of  San Fernando where exposure to secondhand smoke can occur.  

 Section 2. DEFINITIONS.  

For the purposes of this Chapter the following definitions shall govern unless the context 
clearly requires otherwise: 

(a) “Common Area” means every enclosed area and unenclosed area of a Multi-Unit 
Housing that residents of more than one unit are entitled to access, enter or use, 
including, but not limited to, lobbies, hallways, pathways, lobbies, courtyards, elevators, 
stairwells, laundry rooms, community rooms, restrooms or offices, entryways, 
playgrounds, gym facilities, swimming pool areas, parking garages/structures, parking 
lots, grassy or landscaped areas, walking paths, cooking areas, sitting areas and eating 
areas. 

(b) “Common interest development” means: 

(1) A community apartment project as defined in California Civil Code section 4105, 
or any successor legislation; 

(2) A condominium project as defined in California Civil Code section 4125, or any 
successor legislation; 

(3) A planned development as defined in California Civil Code section 4175, or any 
successor legislation; and 

(4) A stock cooperative as defined in California Civil Code section 4190, or any 
successor legislation. 

(c) “Designated Smoking Area” shall mean an area where smoking is permitted, as 
designated by a landlord, HOA or other person with legal control of the premises, and 
has been established in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. 

(d) “Detached Unit” means a unit in a Multi-Unit Housing that is completely detached 
from other structures and contains no shared common wall, floor or ceiling with an 
adjacent unit.  

(e) “Electronic smoking device” means any device that may be used to deliver any 
aerosolized or vaporized substance to the person inhaling from the device, including, 
but not limited to, an e-cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, vape pen, or e-hookah. 

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 269 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

5 

(f) “Enclosed area” means all space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded by 
walls, doorways, or windows, whether open or closed, covering more than 50 percent 
of the combined surface area of the vertical planes constituting the perimeter of the 
area. A wall includes any retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier, 
whether temporary or permanent. 

(g) “Homeowners’ association” or “HOA” means an organization or entity established for 
the purpose of managing or maintaining a common interest development. A 
homeowners' association shall also mean “association” as defined in California Civil 
Code section 4080, or any successor legislation. 

(h) “Landlord” means any person or agent of a person who owns, manages, or is 
otherwise legally responsible for a unit in a multi-unit residence that is leased to a 
residential tenant. For purposes of this ordinance, a tenant who sublets their unit 
(e.g., a sublessor) is not a landlord. 

(i) “Multi-Unit Housing” means a residential property containing two or more units, 
including, but not limited to, apartment buildings, common interest developments, 
senior and assisted living facilities, and long-term health care facilities.  

For purposes of this Chapter the definition of Multi-Unit Housing does not include the 
following:  

(1)  A hotel or motel that meets the requirements of California Civil Code 
Section 1940(b)(2); 

(2) A mobile home park,;  

(3) A single-family home, except if used as a health care facility subject to 
licensing requirements, ; and 

(4) A single-family home with an attached or detached accessory dwelling unit, 
junior accessory dwelling unit or second primary dwelling unit (Senate Bill 
9 urban dwelling unit) permitted pursuant to California Government Code 
sections 65852.1, 65852.2, 65852.21 or 65852.22 or an ordinance of the 
City adopted pursuant to those sections, except where one or more of the 
units is rented or offered for rent or is used as a health care facility subject 
to licensing requirements.   

(j) “New Lease” means any lease or rental agreement that allows a person to occupy a 
unit that is entered into on or after [effective date of ordinance].   

(k) “Nonsmoking Area” means enclosed or unenclosed area of a Multi-Unit Housing in 
which smoking is prohibited by:   

(1) this Chapter or other law;  

(2) binding agreement relating to the ownership, occupancy, or use of real 
property; or  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 270 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

6 

(3) a person with legal control over the area.  

(l) “Person” means any natural person, partnership, cooperative association, 
corporation, personal representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal 
entity, including government agencies. 

(m) “Smoking” means: 

(1) inhaling, exhaling, or burning, any tobacco, nicotine, cannabis, or plant 
product, whether natural or synthetic; 
 

(2) carrying any lighted, heated, or activated tobacco, nicotine, marijuana, or 
plant product, whether natural or synthetic, intended for inhalation; or 

 
(3) using an “electronic smoking device.” 

 
Smoking does not include the use of traditional, sacred tobacco as part of a lawfully 
recognized religious, spiritual, or cultural ceremony or practice. 

(n) “Unenclosed area” means any area that is not an Enclosed Area.  

(o) “Unit” means a personal dwelling space, even one lacking cooking facilities or private 
plumbing facilities, and includes any associated exclusive-use area, such as a private 
balcony, porch, deck, or patio. “Unit” includes, without limitation, an apartment; a 
condominium; a townhouse; a room in a senior facility; a room in a long-term health 
care facility, assisted living facility, community care facility, or hospital; a room in a 
hotel or motel; a dormitory room; a room in a single-room occupancy facility; a room 
in a homeless shelter; a mobile home; a camper vehicle or tent; a single-family home; 
and an accessory dwelling unit, junior accessory dwelling unit or second unit. Unit 
includes a New Unit and an Existing Unit. 

(1) “New Unit” means a unit that is issued a certificate of occupancy after 
[effective date of ordinance] or any unit that is leased or rented for residential 
use for the first time after [effective date of ordinance]. 

(2) “Existing Unit” means a unit in existence on or before [effective date of 
ordinance].  

 Section 3. SMOKING RESTRICTIONS. 

(a) Effective as of [effective date], smoking is prohibited anywhere on the premises of a 
Multi-Unit Housing as follows:  

(1) In all New Units and Existing Units governed by a New Lease, together with any 
associated outdoor exclusive-use unenclosed areas such as a private balcony, 
deck, porch or patio. 

(b) Two (2) years from [effective date], smoking is prohibited anywhere on the premises 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 271 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

7 

of a Multi-Unit Housing as follows:  

(1) In all Units, together with any associated outdoor exclusive-use areas such as 
balconies, decks, or patios; and 

(2) In all Common Areas and other outdoor areas except for a Designated Smoking 
Area established in compliance with subsection (d). 

(c) Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b), smoking is permitted inside the enclosed 
area of a Detached Unit, as of [effective date] and subject to subsection (e).].  This 
exception does not apply to and smoking is not allowed in any outdoor exclusive-use 
unenclosed areas such as balconies, decks or patios associated with the Detached 
Unit. a Detached Unit. This subsection (c) shall remain in effect until [effective date 
plus 5 years] and as of that date is repealed. 

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (b), as of two (2) years from [effective date] and subject 
to subsection (e),], smoking is permitted in a Designated Smoking Area that meets all 
the following conditions:  

(1) Must not be an enclosed area.  

(2) Must be at least twenty-five (25) feet from any indoor area, doorway, or 
window, and outdoor recreation area such as a tennis court, swimming pool, 
and picnic area, or outdoor area primarily used by children such as a 
playground.  

(3) Must be no more than 10 percent of the total unenclosed area of the property.  

(4) Must have a clearly marked perimeter.  

(5) Must be identified by conspicuous signs.  The signs shall have letters of no less 
than one (1) inch in height and shall be installed and maintained by the 
Landlord or Homeowner Association with legal control over the Designated 
Smoking Area.  

(6) If the requirements set forth in this subdivisionsubsection (d) cannot be 
satisfied due to unique circumstances affecting a Multi-Unit Housing, the 
Director of Community Development or designee may approve a smoking area 
that meets the requirements of this Chapter to the extent practicable or, if in 
his or her judgment such an area cannot be designed, the Director of 
Community Development or designee may exempt the landlord or HOA from 
the Designated Smoking Area requirement. 

(e) The requirements to permit smoking in the enclosed areas of a Detached Unit as set 
forth in subdivision (c) and in Designated Smoking Areas as set forth in subdivision (d) 
shall remain in effect until [effective date plus 5 years] and as of that date are 
repealed. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 272 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

8 

(f)(e) No person with legal control over a Multi-Unit Housing shall permit smoking 
anywhere on the premises, except as provided in subsections (c) and (d). 

(g)(f) No person with legal control over a Common Area in which smoking is prohibited 
by this Chapter or other law shall knowingly permit the presence of ashtrays, ashcans, 
or other receptacles designed for or primarily used for disposal of smoking waste 
within the area. 

 Section 4. REQUIRED AND IMPLIED LEASE TERMS FOR ALL NEW AND EXISTING UNITS IN 
MULTI-UNIT HOUSING.  

(a) After [effective date], every lease or other rental agreement for the occupancy of a Unit 
in a Multi-Unit Housing, entered into, renewed, or continued month-to-month, shall 
be amended to include the following provisions: 

(1) A clause providing that as of [effective date for new units and existing units 
governed by a new lease and as of 2 years after effective date for all units], it is a 
material breach of the agreement to smoke or allow smoking in designated 
nonsmoking areas and units, including exclusive-use areas such as balconies, 
porches, or patios. Such clause shall be substantially consistent with the following:  

“Tenant agrees and acknowledges that the premises to be occupied by tenant and 
members of tenant’s household have been designated as a smoke-free living 
environment. As of [effective date for new units and existing units governed by a 
new lease or two (2) years after effective date for all units], tenant, members of 
tenant’s household, and any guests under control of the tenant will not smoke 
anywhere: 

a) In the unit rented by tenant, including any associated balconies, decks, or 
patios, other than the enclosed areas of a detached unit; or  

b) In the common areas of the property, other than a designated smoking area.  

As of [five (5 years) from effective date] for all units, tenant, members of tenant’s 
household, and any guests under control of the tenant will not smoke anywhere 
on the premises. 

Tenant acknowledges that a breach of the smoke-free policy may render tenant 
liable to landlord for the costs to repair tenant’s unit due to damage from smoke 
odors or residue. A breach of the smoke-free policy is a breach of the lease and 
grounds for immediate enforcement action, including potential termination of the 
lease by the landlord. 

Tenant will inform tenant’s guests of the smoke-free policy. Tenant will also 
promptly give landlord a written statement of any incident where tenant observes 
smoking not allowed by this policy or believes smoke is migrating into the tenant’s 
unit from sources outside the tenant’s unit.”   

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 273 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

9 

(2) A clause providing that it is a material breach of the agreement for tenant to violate 
any law regulating smoking while anywhere on the property, or to knowingly and 
intentionally allow any other person subject to the control of the tenant to engage 
in such behavior. Such clause shall be substantially consistent with the following:  

“It is a material breach of this agreement for tenant to violate any law regulating 
smoking while anywhere on the property. Moreover, it is a material breach of this 
agreement for tenant to knowingly or intentionally allow any other person subject 
to the control of the tenant to violate any law regulating smoking while anywhere 
on the property.” 

(3) A clause expressly conveying third-party beneficiary status to all occupants of the 
Multi-Unit Housing as to the smoking provisions of the lease or other rental 
agreement. Such clause shall be substantially consistent with the following:  

“Tenant agrees that other tenants of the rental community are third-party 
beneficiaries of tenant’s smoke-free policy agreement with landlord. A tenant may 
sue another tenant for an injunction to prohibit smoking or for damages but does 
not have the right to evict another tenant. Any lawsuit between tenants does not 
create a presumption that the landlord breached this lease.” 

(b) Whether or not a landlord complies with subsection (a) above, the clauses required by 
those subsections shall be implied and incorporated by law into every agreement to 
which subsection (a) applies as of [effective date for new units and existing units 
governed by a new lease or two (2) years after effective date for all units]. 

(c) A tenant who breaches, or knowingly and intentionally allows any other person subject 
to the control of the tenant to breach, a smoking provision of a lease or other rental 
agreement for the occupancy of a unit in a Multi-Unit Housing shall be liable for the 
breach to (i) the landlord; and (ii) any occupant of the Multi-Unit Housing who is 
exposed to smoke or who suffers damages as a result of the breach.  

(d)  Failure to enforce any smoking provision required by this Chapter shall not affect the 
right to enforce such provision in the future, nor shall a waiver of any breach constitute 
a waiver of any subsequent breach or a waiver of the provision itself.  

 Section 5. REQUIREMENTS FOR RENTAL PROPERTIES.  

The following requirements apply to Multi-Unit Housing other than units in a common 
interest development that are not being rented:  

(a) On or before [effective date], every landlord shall deliver to a tenant of each New Unit 
or Existing Unit, as applicable, a copy of this Chapter and a written notice clearly 
stating: 

(1)  All new units and existing units governed by a new lease are designated 
nonsmoking units and smoking is prohibited in any such unit, including any 
associated private balcony, porch, deck, or patio, with the exception of 
enclosed areas of a detached unit, as of [effective date]; 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 274 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

10 

(2) All units are designated nonsmoking units and smoking is prohibited in any 
unit, including any associated private balcony, porch, deck, or patio, with the 
exception of enclosed areas of a detached unit, as of [two (2) years after 
effective date]; and 

(3) All common areas with the exception of Designated Smoking Areas in 
compliance with Section 2(d) of this Chapter are designated nonsmoking and 
smoking is prohibited as of [two (2) years after effective date]; and 

(4) The entire premises, including all units, any associated private balcony, porch, 
deck, or patio, and all common areas, are designated nonsmoking and 
smoking is prohibited anywhere on the premises effective as of [five (5) years 
from effective date].  

(b) As of [effective date], every landlord shall provide prospective tenants with written 
notice clearly stating that: 

(1) All units are designated nonsmoking and smoking is prohibited in any unit, 
including any associated private balcony, porch, deck, or patio, with the 
exception of enclosed areas of a detached unit, as of [two (2) years after 
effective date]; and 

(2) All common areas, with the exception of Designated Smoking Areas in 
compliance with Section 2(d) of this Chapter are designated nonsmoking and 
smoking is prohibited as of [two (2) years after effective date]; and 

(3) The entire premises, including all units, any associated private balcony, porch, 
deck, or patio, and all common areas, are designated nonsmoking and 
smoking is prohibited anywhere on the premises effective as of [five (5) years 
from effective date].  

(c) As of [two (2) years after effective date], the person or persons with legal control over 
Common Areas shall post and maintain clear and unambiguous “No Smoking” signs at 
entrances and exits, in common areas, and in conspicuous places adjoining the property 
grounds. In addition, as of [effective date + two (2) years], the person or persons with 
legal control over the Multi-Unit Housing shall post and maintain signs in sufficient 
numbers and locations in the Multi-Unit Housing to indicate that smoking is prohibited 
in all Units. The absence of signs shall not be a defense to a violation of any provision of 
this Chapter.  “No Smoking” signs are not required inside or on doorways of units.    

(d) Landlords with knowledge of violations shall take reasonable steps to investigate and 
enforce the regulations, including a written notice to the resident of the landlord’s 
knowledge of the violation, a request to cease the violation, and the course of action to 
be taken if the violation is not corrected. The landlord shall also provide resources 
provided by the City and/or County of Los Angeles to assist with nicotine dependence, 
such as referrals to quitline or online resources. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 275 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

11 

 Section 6. REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMON INTEREST DEVELOPMENTS.  

The following requirements apply to common interest developments:  

(a) On or before [effective date], the HOA shall provide to all owners of Units a copy of this 
Chapter and a written notice clearly stating that:    

(1) All new units are designated nonsmoking and smoking is prohibited in any 
new unit, including any associated private balcony, porch, deck, or patio, with 
the exception of enclosed areas of a detached unit, as of [effective date];  

(2) All units are designated nonsmoking and smoking is prohibited in any unit, 
including any associated private balcony, porch, deck, or patio, with the 
exception of enclosed areas of a detached unit, as of [two (2) years after 
effective date]; and 

(3) All common areas, with the exception of Designated Smoking Areas in 
compliance with Section 2(d) of this Chapter are designated nonsmoking and 
smoking is prohibited as of [two (2) years after effective date]; 

(4) The entire premises, including all units, any associated private balcony, 
porch, deck, or patio, and all common areas, are designated nonsmoking 
and smoking is prohibited anywhere on the premises effective as of [five (5) 
years from effective date].  

(b) As of [effective date] every seller or lessor of a Unit shall provide prospective buyers or 
renters, a copy of this Chapter and a written notice clearly stating that:    

(1) All units are designated nonsmoking and smoking is prohibited in any unit, 
including any associated private balcony, porch, deck, or patio, with the 
exception of enclosed areas of a detached unit, as of [two (2) years after 
effective date]; and 

(2) All common areas, with the exception of Designated Smoking Areas in 
compliance with Section 2(d) of this Chapter are designated nonsmoking and 
smoking is prohibited as of [two (2) years after effective date]; and 

(3) The entire premises, including all units, any associated private balcony, 
porch, deck, or patio, and all common areas, are designated nonsmoking 
and smoking is prohibited anywhere on the premises effective as of [five (5) 
years from effective date].  

(c) As of [effective date + two (2) years], the HOA, or any person having legal ownership 
or control over Common Areas, shall post and maintain clear and unambiguous "No 
Smoking" signs in sufficient numbers and locations in the common interest 
development to make it obvious to a reasonable person that smoking is prohibited 
throughout the common interest development. The absence of signs shall not be a 
defense to a violation of any provision of this chapterChapter. 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 276 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

12 

(d) HOAs with knowledge of violations shall take reasonable steps to investigate and 
enforce the regulations, including a written notice to the resident of the HOA’s 
knowledge of the violation, a request to cease the violation, and the course of action 
to be taken if the violation is not corrected. The HOA shall also distribute resources 
provided by the City and/or County of Los Angeles to assist with nicotine dependence, 
such as referrals to a quitline or other online resources.  

 Section 7. NUISANCE; OTHER 

(a) The provisions of this Chapter shall be liberally construed to protect the public health 
to the maximum effect possible. Notwithstanding (i) any provision of this Chapter or 
of this Code, (ii) any failure by any person to restrict smoking under this Chapter, or (iii) 
any explicit or implicit provision of this Code that allows smoking in any place, nothing 
in this Code shall be interpreted to limit any person’s legal rights under other laws with 
regard to smoking, including rights in nuisance, trespass, property damage, and 
personal injury or other legal or equitable principles.  

(b)  Any violation of this Chapter is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. 

(c) Nonconsensual exposure to smoke from smoking occurring on or drifting into 
residential property is a nuisance. 

 Section 8. PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT.  

(a) The remedies provided by this Chapter are cumulative and in addition to any other 
remedies available at law or in equity. 

(b) Enforcement of this chapterChapter shall be the responsibility of city manager or 
his/her designee. In addition, any peace officer or code enforcement official also may 
enforce this chapterChapter.   

(c) Any violation of this Chapter shall be punishable by administrative citation, or 
infraction, or misdemeanor and subject to fines pursuant to Chapter 1, articles II and III 
of this Code.  

(d) AnyA violation of this Chapter may, in the discretion of shall not constitute a 
misdemeanor;  and no violation of any provision of this Chapter shall be prosecuted by 
the city attorney, be prosecuted  or city prosecutor as a misdemeanor, or as an 
infraction; or may be; or remedied by a civil action, including but not limited to, 
administrative or judicial nuisance abatement proceedings, civil code enforcement 
proceedings, and suits for injunctive relief.  

(e) Causing, permitting, aiding, abetting, or concealing a violation of any provision of this 
Chapter shall also constitute a violation of this Chapter. 

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 277 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

13 

(f) No person shall intimidate, harass, or otherwise retaliate against any person who seeks 
compliance with this Chapter.   

(g) Any Person acting for the interests of itself, its members, or the general public may 
bring a civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction, including small claims court, 
to enforce this Chapter.  Upon proof of the violations, a court shall grant all appropriate 
relief including awarding actual or statutory damages including court costs and 
attorney fees, and issuing an injunction or conditional judgement.  

(h) Enforcement of this Chapter is at the sole discretion of the City.  Under no 
circumstances shall the City have any responsibility or obligation to enforce or seek 
any legal redress, at law or in equity, for any violation of this Chapter.  Nothing in this 
Chapter shall create a right of action in any Person against the City or its agents to 
compel public enforcement of this Chapter against private parties. 

 SECTION III.  CEQA Finding.   

The City Council hereby finds that the adoption of this Ordinance would be exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (the 
“common sense exemption”) and 15378(b)(5) since it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that adopting an ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment since the 
project involves administrative activities that do not significantly impact the environment.  The 
Ordinance is also exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15307 and 15308, as a regulatory action 
that protects natural resources and the environment, since the regulation of existing smoking 
and the related education and outreach activities in the Ordinance will reduce existing smoking 
practices, improve air quality, and reduce litter and waste from smoking debris, which includes 
plastic-based cigarette filters that would otherwise impact the environment.   

 SECTION IV. Inconsistent Provisions.  

Any provision of this Code or appendices thereto inconsistent with the provisions of this 
Ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistencies and no further, is hereby repealed or 
modified to the extent necessary to implement the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION V.  Severability.   
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent jurisdiction, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each and every section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard 
to whether any portion of the Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.  

  

  

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 278 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

14 

SECTION VI. Construction.  

The City Council intends this Ordinance to supplement, not to duplicate or contradict, 
applicable state and federal law and this Ordinance shall be construed in light of that intent. 
To the extent the provisions of this Code as amended by this Ordinance are substantially the 
same as the provisions of this Code as it read prior to the adoption of this Ordinance,  those 
amended provisions shall be construed as continuations of the earlier provisions  and not as 
new enactments. 

 SECTION VII. Publication and Effective Date.    

The City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this Ordinance and cause the same to be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation within fifteen (15) days after its 
adoption. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Fernando this 
6th day of June, 2022. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
               
Julia Fritz, City Clerk  Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
   Fernando, California 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
           
Richard A. Padilla, Assistant  
City Attorney 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 279 of 290



ORD. NO. 1710 

15 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Ordinance No. 1710 which was introduced on May 16, 2022 and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California at a regular meeting thereof 
held on the 6th day of June, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of June, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 280 of 290



6/2/22, 8:46 AM San Fernando, CA Code of Ordinances

1/5

(1)

(2)

Chapter 23 - OUTDOOR SMOKING REGULATIONS

Footnotes:

--- (1) ---

Cross reference— Tobacco retailing, § 22-430 et seq.; environment, ch. 34; health and sanitation, ch. 42; smoking

prohibited in parks, playgrounds and recreation centers, § 54-27.

Sec. 23-1. - De�nitions.

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this chapter shall have the meanings defined in this

section unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

Business means any sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, association, or other

entity formed for profit-making purposes.

Dining area means any area, including streets and sidewalks, which is available to or customarily used by

the general public or an employee, and which is designed, established, or regularly used for consuming food

or drink.

Employee means any person who is employed or retained as an independent contractor by any

employer or nonprofit entity in consideration for direct or indirect monetary wages or profit, or any person

who volunteers his or her services for an employer or nonprofit entity.

Employer means any business or nonprofit entity that retains the service of one or more employees.

Enclosed area means an area in which outside air cannot circulate freely to all parts of the area, and

includes an area that has:

Any type of overhead cover whether or not that cover includes vents or other openings and at

least three walls or other vertical boundaries of any height whether or not those boundaries

include vents or other openings; or

Four walls or other vertical boundaries that exceed six feet in height whether or not those

boundaries include vents or other openings.

Grounds shall include, without limitation, landscaped areas, patios, stairways, walls, parking lots, and

walkways on publicly owned property adjacent to the San Fernando Plaza and San Fernando Library Plaza.

Nicotine means a toxic colorless or yellowish oily liquid that is the chief active constituent of tobacco.

Nonprofit entity means any entity that meets the requirements of California Corporations Code section

5003 as well as any corporation, unincorporated association or other entity created for charitable, religious,

philanthropic, educational, political, social or similar purposes, the net proceeds of which are committed to

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 281 of 290

CSolis
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "B"



6/2/22, 8:46 AM San Fernando, CA Code of Ordinances

2/5

the promotion of the objectives or purposes of the entity and not to private gain. A government agency is

not a nonprofit entity within the meaning of this chapter.

Person means any natural person, business, cooperative association, nonprofit entity, personal

representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity including government agencies.

Place of employment means any area under the legal or de facto control of an employer, that an

employee or the general public may have cause to enter in the normal course of the operations, regardless

of the hours of operation.

Public place means any place, publicly or privately owned, which is open to the general public regardless

of any fee or age requirement.

Reasonable distance means a distance of 25 feet in any direction from an area in which smoking is

prohibited.

Recreational area means any area, including streets and sidewalks, that is publicly or privately owned

/owned, controlled or used by the city and open to the general public for recreational purposes, regardless

of any fee or age requirement. The term "recreational area" includes but is not limited to parks, picnic areas,

playgrounds, sports fields, golf courses, walking paths, gardens, hiking trails, bike paths, riding trails,

swimming pools, roller- and ice-skating rinks, skateboard parks, amusement parks, and beaches.

Service area means any publicly or privately owned area, including streets and sidewalks, that is

designed to be used or is regularly used by one or more persons to receive a service, wait to receive a

service or to make a transaction, whether or not such service or transaction includes the exchange of

money. The term "service area" includes but is not limited to areas including or adjacent to information

kiosks, automatic teller machines (ATMs), ticket lines, bus stops or shelters, mobile vendor lines or cab

stands.

Smoke means the gases, particles, or vapors released into the air as a result of combustion, electrical

ignition or vaporization, when the apparent or usual purpose of the combustion, electrical ignition or

vaporization is human inhalation of the byproducts, except when the combusting material contains no

tobacco or nicotine and the purpose of inhalation is solely olfactory, such as, for example, smoke from

incense. The term "smoke" includes, but is not limited to, tobacco smoke, electronic cigarette vapors, and

marijuana smoke.

Smoking means engaging in an act that generates smoke, such as, for example: possessing a lighted

pipe, a lighted hookah pipe, an operating electronic cigarette, a lighted cigar, or a lighted cigarette of any

kind; or lighting or igniting a pipe, a hookah pipe, a cigar, or a cigarette of any kind.

Tobacco product means any substance containing tobacco leaf, and any product or formulation of

matter containing biologically active amounts of nicotine that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or

otherwise distributed with the expectation that the product or matter will be introduced into a human body,

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 282 of 290



6/2/22, 8:46 AM San Fernando, CA Code of Ordinances

3/5

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(b)

(a)

(b)

but does not include any cessation product specifically approved by the United States Food and Drug

Administration for use in treating nicotine or tobacco dependence.

Unenclosed area means any area that is not an enclosed area.

Vaping means to inhale and exhale the vapor produced by an electronic cigarette or similar device, such

as, for example: mini E-cigarettes, Gig-A-likes, mid-sized vaporizers, vape pens, and mods.

(Ord. No. 1623, § 1, 9-4-2012; Ord. No. 1672, § 1, 2-20-2018)

Sec. 23-2. - Prohibition of smoking and tobacco product use in unenclosed areas.

All forms of vaping, smoking and the use of tobacco products is prohibited in the unenclosed

areas of the following places within the city, except places where smoking or the use of tobacco

products is already prohibited by state or federal law, in which case those laws apply:

Recreational areas;

Service areas;

Dining areas;

Places of employment;

Other public places, when being used for a public event, including but not limited to a

farmers' market, parade, craft fair, festival, or any other event which may be attended by the

general public, provided that smoking is permitted on streets and sidewalks being used only

in a traditional capacity as pedestrian or vehicular thoroughfares, unless otherwise prohibited

by this chapter or other law.

Nothing in this chapter prohibits any person, employer, or nonprofit entity with legal control over

any property from prohibiting vaping, smoking and tobacco product use on any part of such

property, even if vaping, smoking or the use of tobacco products is not otherwise prohibited in

that area.

(Ord. No. 1623, § 1, 9-4-2012; Ord. No. 1672, § 1, 2-20-2018)

Sec. 23-3. - Reasonable smoking distance required.

Vaping, smoking and the use of tabaco products in all unenclosed areas shall be prohibited within

a reasonable distance from any doorway, window, opening, crack, or vent into an enclosed area

in which vaping and smoking is prohibited, except while the person smoking or vaping is actively

passing on the way to another destination and provided smoke does not enter any enclosed area

in which smoking is prohibited.

Vaping, smoking and the use of tobacco products in unenclosed areas shall be prohibited within a

reasonable distance from any unenclosed areas in which smoking is prohibited under sec. 23-2 of

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 283 of 290

https://library.municode.com/


6/2/22, 8:46 AM San Fernando, CA Code of Ordinances

4/5

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

this chapter, except while the person smoking is actively passing on the way to another

destination and provided smoke does not enter any unenclosed area in which smoking is

prohibited.

(Ord. No. 1623, § 1, 9-4-2012; Ord. No. 1672, § 1, 2-20-2018)

Sec. 23-4. - Other requirements and prohibitions.

No person, employer, or nonprofit entity shall knowingly permit vaping, smoking or the use of

tobacco products in an area which is under the legal or de facto control of that person, employer

or nonprofit entity and in which vaping, smoking or the use of tobacco products is prohibited by

law, unless otherwise required by state or federal law.

No person, employer, or nonprofit entity shall knowingly or intentionally permit the presence or

placement of ash receptacles, such as, for example, ash trays or ash cans, within an area under

the legal or de facto control of that person, employer or nonprofit entity and in which vaping,

smoking or the use of tobacco products is prohibited by law, including, without limitation, within

a reasonable distance required by this chapter from any area in which vaping, smoking or the use

of tobacco products is prohibited. notwithstanding the foregoing, the presence of ash receptacles

in violation of this subsection shall not be a defense to a charge of vaping, smoking or the use of

tobacco products in violation of any provision of this chapter.

No person shall dispose of used vaping, smoking or tobacco product waste within the boundaries

of an area in which vaping and smoking is prohibited, including within any reasonable distance

required by this chapter.

A person, employer, or nonprofit entity that has legal or de facto control of an unenclosed area in

which vaping, smoking or the use of tobacco products is prohibited by this chapter shall post a

clear, conspicuous and unambiguous "no smoking no vaping" or no use of tobacco products or

"smokefree" or "tobacco-free" sign at each point of ingress to the area, and in at least one other

conspicuous point within the area. The signs shall have letters of no less than one inch in height

and shall include the international "no smoking no vaping" symbol (consisting of a pictorial

representation of a burning cigarette and e-cigarette enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across

it). Signs posted on the exterior of buildings to comply with this section shall include the

reasonable distance requirement set forth in section 23-3. For purposes of this section, the city

administrator or his/her designee shall be responsible for the posting of signs in regulated

facilities owned or leased in whole or in part by the city. Notwithstanding this provision, the

presence or absence of signs shall not be a defense to a charge of vaping, smoking or the use of

tobacco products in violation of any other provision of this chapter.

No person, employer, or nonprofit entity shall intimidate, threaten any reprisal, or effect any

reprisal, for the purpose of retaliating against another person who seeks to attain compliance

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 284 of 290

https://library.municode.com/


6/2/22, 8:46 AM San Fernando, CA Code of Ordinances

5/5

(f)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

with this chapter.

Each instance of vaping, smoking or tobacco product use in violation of this chapter shall

constitute a separate violation. For violations other than for vaping or smoking, each day of a

continuing violation of this chapter shall constitute a separate violation.

(Ord. No. 1623, § 1, 9-4-2012; Ord. No. 1672, § 1, 2-20-2018)

Sec. 23-5. - Penalties and enforcement.

The remedies provided by this chapter are cumulative and in addition to any other remedies

available at law or in equity.

Each incident of vaping, smoking or use of tobacco products in violation of this chapter is an

infraction subject chapter 1, articles II and III of the City Code. Other violations of this chapter

may, in the discretion of the city attorney, be prosecuted as infractions when the interests of

justice so requires. Enforcement of this chapter shall be the responsibility of city administrator or

his/her designee. In addition, any peace officer or code enforcement official also may enforce this

chapter.

Any violation of this chapter is hereby declared to be a nuisance.

In addition to other remedies provided by this chapter or by other law, any violation of this

chapter may be remedied by a civil action brought by the city attorney, including, but not limited

to, administrative or judicial nuisance abatement proceedings, civil or criminal code enforcement

proceedings, and suits for injunctive relief.

(Ord. No. 1623, § 1, 9-4-2012; Ord. No. 1672, § 1, 2-20-2018)

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 285 of 290

https://library.municode.com/


 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 
 
VICE MAYOR 
HECTOR A. PACHECO 
 
COUNCILMEMBER 
SYLVIA BALLIN 
 
COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 
 
COUNCILMEMBER 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 
 
(818) 898-1222 
 
WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

 
NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 

BY THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL TO 
CONSIDER ADDING A NEW CHAPTER TO THE SAN 
FERNANDO MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROHIBIT SMOKING 
IN MULTI-UNIT HOUSING  
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of 
the City of San Fernando on April 18, 2022 to consider adding a new chapter to 
the San Fernando Municipal Code to prohibit smoking in multi-unit housing.   
 
HEARING DATE:          April 18, 2022  
TIME: 6:00 P.M. 
HEARING LOCATION:   City Hall Council Chambers, 117 Macneil 

Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
PROJECT LOCATION:    City Wide 
   
Copies of the staff report will be available for public review after 12:00 noon on 
Friday, April 15, 2022 on the City’s website https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/ and at 
the City Clerk’s Office, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340.  For further 
information regarding this project, please contact Kanika Kith, Director of 
Community Development, at (818) 898-1227 or kkith@sfcity.org, or by written 
correspondence to: City of San Fernando, Community Development Department, 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340-2993. 
 
Dated this 7th day of April 2022 
City of San Fernando, California 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT “C” 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 286 of 290

http://www.sfcity.org/


June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 287 of 290



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 288 of 290



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Councilmember Sylvia Ballin 
   
Date:  June 6, 2022 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding a Cleanup and Improved Light and Safety Measures on the 

Bike Path 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I have placed this item on the agenda for the City Council to discuss and consider a cleanup and 
improved light and safety measures on the bike path.  
 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: 
 
See Attachment “A” that was submitted to request to agendize for the June 6, 2022 City Council 
Meeting to discuss and consider improved safety measures on the bike path.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no impact to the budget by discussing this item.  Additional future costs to be determined 
based on City Council direction. 
 
 
CONCLUSION:  
 
Discussion and consideration of a cleanup and improved safety measures on the bike path, and 
provide direction to staff, as applicable. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Request to Agendize an Item for City Council Discussion/Consideration 

June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 289 of 290



From: Sylvia Ballin
To: Julia Fritz
Subject: Agenda Item
Date: Wednesday, May 25, 2022 9:57:39 PM

Please add the following item on the June 6 agenda:

Clean up of the bike path, improved light and safety measures.

Sent from my iPhone

ATTACHMENT "A"
June 6, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 290 of 290


	06-06-22 CC&SA Agenda
	1 - Cover Sheet & 1
	1 - FIN_City Warrant (06-06-22) ATT A_EXH A
	FIN_City Warrant (06-06-22) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (06-06-22) ATT A_EXH A

	2
	2 - FIN_Successor Agency Warrant (06-06-22)
	FIN_Successor Agency (06-06-22) AR_ATT A
	FIN_Successor Agency Warrant (06-06-22) ATT A_EXH 1

	3
	3 - CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (6-6-22)
	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (6-6-22) AR
	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (6-6-22) ATT A
	RESOLUTION NO. 8155

	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (6-6-22) ATT B

	4
	4 - ADM_Reso Juneteenth National Holiday (6-6-2022)
	ADM_Reso Juneteenth National Holiday (6-6-2022) AR
	ADM_Reso Juneteenth National Holiday (6-6-2022) ATT A

	5
	5 - PW_Trash Svcs Billing Set PH (6-6-22)
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing Set PH (6-6-22) AR
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing Set PH (6-6-22) ATT A
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing Set PH (6-6-22) ATT B
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing Set PH (6-6-22) ATT C
	[DATE]
	CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL SERVICE, LLC.
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
	Sincerely,
	Nick Kimball
	City Manager
	PLEASE TEAR ALONG DOTTED LINE ABOVE AND MAIL THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE
	Subject Property/Service Address:
	IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD OR DEBIT CARD, PLEASE FILL OUT BELOW. WE ALSO ACCEPT CHECKS BY PHONE
	__12949 TELEGRAPH ROAD, SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670 - TELEPHONE (800) 298-4898 FAX (562) 347-4092__
	June 13, 2022

	«O_NAME»
	________________________________________________________________________
	PROPERTY OWNER NOTICE


	Account #:  902 - «CUST»
	Balance Due:             $ «TOTAL»
	Collection Department



	6
	6 - RCS_Consideration to Adopt Resolution Suspension Camping Ordinance_(06-06-22)
	RCS_Consideration to Adopt Resolution Suspension Camping Ordinance_(06-06-22) AR
	RCS_Consideration to Adopt Resolution Suspension Camping Ordinance_(06-06-22) ATT A

	7
	7 - RCS_NIB_Las Palmas Park Design (06-06-22)
	RCS_NIB_Las Palmas Park Design (06-06-22) AR
	RCS_NIB_Las Palmas Park Design (06-06-22) ATT A  EXH 1
	NOTICE INVITING BIDS
	Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals will be received by the City of San Fernando, California, for furnishing the following:
	GENERAL INFORMATION

	The City of San Fernando offers seven park facilities that provide recreational opportunities to the community.  All park facilities are conveniently located within a 2-mile radius and easily accessible to residents.  Typical amenities include activit...
	The City of San Fernando is interested in contracting with an experienced and qualified firm to provide professional design services for the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project detailed in the Scope of Service.  Las Palmas Park is approximately 7.7...
	The existing park amenities include an open field, ball diamonds, a playground, several picnic shelters, and basketball courts. The is also a Community Center housing a gymnasium, Banquet room, and a Learning Center.  The objective of the Las Palmas P...
	The Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program is funding the Las Palmas Park Revitalization Project.  As such, all contracted work must comply with the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code.
	BACKGROUND
	INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING FIRMS
	SCOPE OF SERVICE
	REQUIRED SERVICES
	PROPOSED TERM OF CONTRACT
	SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION
	METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES
	INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED
	2. Include a Proposal Summary Section
	This section presents a well-conceived service plan. This section of the proposal shall establish the Firm's understanding of the City’s objectives, work requirements, and the Firm’s ability to satisfy those objectives and requirements.  Describe the ...



	8
	8 - CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22)
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) AR
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT A
	The documents and other materials that constitute the record of the proceedings upon which the Planning and Preservation Commission’s decision is based, which include, but are not limited to, the environmental documents, staff reports, as well as all ...

	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT B
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT B
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT B2
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT B3 (2)

	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT C
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT C
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT C2
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT C3
	SE Cover Pages
	SE Redline Pages 36, 37, 46, 47
	Safety_Existing Conditions Tech Page 14
	EJ Technical Report pages 8, 10,11


	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT D
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT E
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT F
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT G
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT H
	CD Housing Element Safety Element Update CC (6-6-22) ATT I
	1-SCAG 1-13-22
	2-Caltran 12-27-21
	3-San Ynez Band 12-21-21
	4-901-1041 Truman 1-14-22
	5-Californians for Homeownership 3-20-22
	6-Aszkenazy Housing Sites 5-2-22


	9
	9 - PW_Water Conservation Resolution (6-6-22)
	PW_Water Conservation Resolution (6-6-22) AR
	PW_Water Conservation Resolution (6-6-22) ATT A
	PW_Water Conservation Resolution (6-6-22) ATT B

	10
	10 - FIN_FY 2022-23 Budget Study Session No. 3 (6-6-22) AR
	FIN_FY 2022-23 Budget Study Session No 3 (6-6-22) AR
	FIN_FY 2022-23 Budget Study Session No. 3 (6-6-22) ATT A

	11
	11 - CDD_Multi Unit Housing Smoking Ordinance (6-6-22)
	CDD_Multi Unit Housing Smoking Ordinance (6-6-22) AR
	CDD_Multi Unit Housing Smoking Ordinance (6-6-22) ATT A Redline
	CDD_Multi Unit Housing Smoking Ordinance (6-6-22) ATT B
	CDD_Multi Unit Housing Smoking Ordinance (6-6-22) ATT C

	12
	12 - BALLIN_Discussion Clean Up Bike Path, Light Safety (06-06-2022)
	BALLIN_Discussion Clean Up Bike Path, Light Safety (06-06-2022) AR
	BALLIN_Discussion Clean Up Bike Path, Light Safety (06-06-2022) ATT A




